
JULY 21, 2021 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 4:30 P.M. Closed Session; 5:00 P.M. Regular Session 
201 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 

MAYOR Paul McNamara 
DEPUTY MAYOR Michael Morasco 

COUNCIL MEMBERS Consuelo Martinez 
Tina Inscoe 
Joe Garcia 

CITY MANAGER Sean McGlynn 
 CITY CLERK Zack Beck 

CITY ATTORNEY Michael McGuinness 
DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Adam Finestone (Interim) 

DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING SERVICES Julie Procopio 



2 

Public Comment: To submit comments in writing, please do so at the following link: 
https://www.escondido.org/agenda-position.aspx. 

The meeting will be available for viewing via public television on Cox Communications Channel 19 
(Escondido only). The meeting will also be live streamed online at the following link: 
https://www.escondido.org/meeting-broadcasts.aspx 

In the event a quorum of the City Council loses electrical power or suffers an internet connection 
outage not corrected within 15 minutes, the meeting will be adjourned. Any items noticed as public 
hearings will be continued to the next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council. Any other 
agenda items the Council has not taken action on will be placed on a future agenda. 

ELECTRONIC MEDIA: 
Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be submitted 
to the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the Council meeting at which it is to be shown.   

The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system.  The media 
must be labeled with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact 
information for the person presenting the media.   

The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers. 
City staff will queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak.  Materials shown to 
the Council during the meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the Clerk.   

The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content 
of electronic media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable 
to live presentations. 

https://www.escondido.org/agenda-position.aspx
https://www.escondido.org/meeting-broadcasts.aspx


3 
 

 

July 21, 2021 
4:30 p.m. Meeting 

 
Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL:  Garcia, Inscoe, Martinez, Morasco, McNamara 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

In addition to speaking during particular agenda items, the public may address the Council on any item which 
is not on the agenda provided the item is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council.  State law 
prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such items, but the matter may be referred to the City 
Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please refer to the back page of the agenda for 
instructions.) Speakers are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications. 

CLOSED SESSION: (COUNCIL/RRB) 

I. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54957.6) 
a. Agency Representatives: Sean McGlynn (City Manager), Jessica Perpetua (Director of         
Human Resources) and/or designee 
Employee Organization: ECEA Unit (ACE and SUP)  
 

 

ADJOURNMENT 



4 
 

 

July 21, 2021 
5:00 P.M. Meeting 

 
Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION: 
City Council agendas allow an opportunity for a moment of silence and reflection at the beginning of the evening meeting.  
The City does not participate in the selection of speakers for this portion of the agenda, and does not endorse or sanction 
any remarks made by individuals during this time.  If you wish to be recognized during this portion of the agenda, please 
notify the City Clerk in advance.   
 
FLAG SALUTE   
 
ROLL CALL:  Garcia, Inscoe, Martinez, Morasco, McNamara 
   
PRESENTATION:        Certificate of Recognition for the Witman Family Foundation 
 
CLOSED SESSION REPORT 
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 
items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please 
refer to the back page of the agenda for instructions.) NOTE:  Depending on the number of requests, comments 
may be reduced to less than 3 minutes per speaker and limited to a total of 15 minutes. Any remaining speakers 
will be heard during Oral Communications at the end of the meeting. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Items on the Consent Calendar are not discussed individually and are approved in a single motion.  However, 
Council members always have the option to have an item considered separately, either on their own request 
or at the request of staff or a member of the public. 
1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/RRB) 



5 

2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council)
Request the City Council approve the City Council and Housing Successor Agency warrant numbers:

• 354380 - 354573 dated July 7, 2021
Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Christina Holmes)

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None Scheduled

4. SETTING SPECIAL TAX LEVY FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2000-01
(HIDDEN TRAILS) -
Request the City Council approve setting the Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District (CFD)
No. 2000-01(Hidden Trails). A special tax is levied annually on real property within the Community
Facilities District No. 2000-01 and is collected through the County of San Diego Assessor's Office.  The
proceeds from the special tax are used to meet debt service obligations from the issuance of bonds for
the District.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Christina Holmes)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-75 

5. SETTING SPECIAL TAX LEVY FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-01
(EUREKA RANCH) -
Request the City Council approve setting the Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District (CFD)
No. 2006-01 (Eureka Ranch). A special tax is levied annually on real property within the Community
Facilities District No. 2006-01 and is collected through the County of San Diego Assessor's Office.  The
proceeds from the special tax are used to meet debt service obligations from the issuance of bonds for
the District.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Christina Holmes)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-76 

6. SETTING SPECIAL TAX LEVY FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020-2 (THE
VILLAGES) -
Request the City Council approve setting the Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District (CFD)
No. 2020-2 (The Villages). A special tax is levied annually on real property within the Community
Facilities District No. 2020-2 and is collected through the County of San Diego Assessor's Office.  The
proceeds from the special tax are used to meet debt service obligations from the issuance of bonds for
the District.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Christina Holmes)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-78 

7. SETTING SPECIAL TAX LEVY FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020-1 (PUBLIC
SERVICES) -
Request the City Council approve setting the Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District (CFD)
No. 2020-01 (Public Services). A special tax is levied annually on real property within the Community
Facilities District No. 2020-1 and is collected through the County of San Diego Assessor's Office.  The
proceeds from the special tax are used to provide public services including public safety, maintenance,
administration, community development and services provided by the City.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Christina Holmes)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-77 



6 

8. ESTABLISHING THE PROPERTY TAX RATE AND FIXED CHARGE ASSESSMENTS FOR
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED INDEBTEDNESS -
Request the City Council approve establishing the property tax rate and fixed charge assessments for
bonded indebtedness for the Fiscal Year 2021-22. Each year, a property tax rate is established to
generate an amount of revenue from the property tax base that is sufficient to pay the General
Obligation Bond debt service (principal and interest) for the current tax year.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Christina Holmes)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-79 

9. AMENDMENT AND NOVATION AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION TO EXAMINE SALES
AND USE TAX RECORDS FROM THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TAX AND FEE
ADMINISTRATION -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Examination of Sales and Use Tax Records, and
approve the amendment and novation agreement with Municipal Resource Consultants and
MuniServices, LLC.  The Amendment and Novation agreement updates the records of the California
Department of Tax and Fee Administration, and updates the authorized designated list of City
employees by title that will be allowed to examine sales and use tax records of the California
Department of Tax and Fee Administration.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Christina Holmes)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-101 

10. ADOPTION OF SPECIFIC ALIGNMENT PLAN FOR GRAND AVENUE -
Request the City Council approve adopting a specific alignment plan for Grand Avenue from Escondido
Blvd. to Juniper St. for the Grand Avenue Phase I Vision project.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-108 

11. PROCUREMENT OF STREET LIGHT POLES, FIXTURES AND STRING LIGHTING FOR THE
GRAND AVENUE VISION PROJECT – PHASE 1 -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the City Manager to issue a purchase order to procure
twenty-four street light poles and LED light fixtures for the Grand Avenue Phase I Vision project in
advance of the construction project.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-104 

12. NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE STORM DRAIN PIPE LINING AND REHABILITATION
PROJECT - PHASE 2 -
Request the City Council approve and accept the public improvements and authorize staff to file a
Notice of Completion for the Storm Drain Lining and Rehabilitation Project - Phase 2. The project
rehabilitated twenty-one (21) corrugated metal pipelines totaling over half a mile in length.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-105 



7 

13. PAYMENT TO SDG&E FOR RELOCATION OF ELECTRIC FACILITIES FOR THE CITRACADO
PARKWAY EXTENSION PROJECT -
Request the City Council approve authorizing payment to San Diego Gas and Electric for relocation of
SDG&E’s existing transmission and distribution electric facilities that are in conflict with the Citracado
Parkway Extension Project (“Project”). SDG&E has received bids for the work and expects to complete
the relocation during August/September 2021.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-106 

14. DECLARATION OF VACANCY - HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION -
Request the City Council approve declaring a vacancy to the Historic Preservation Commission, per Sec.
33-791 of the Escondido Municipal Code.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck)

CONSENT RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/RRB at a previous 
City Council/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting.  (The title of Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are 
deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

15. 2021 - 2022 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK PLAN -
Request the City Council receive a report and presentation on a work plan developed by the Planning
Commission for 2021 and 2022 as an advisory body to the City Council, and direct Planning Division
staff to work with the Planning Commission on the items identified in the work plan.

Staff Recommendation: Provide Direction (Community Development Department: Adam
Finestone)

16. SIGN REGULATIONS -
Request the City Council discuss sign regulations in the City of Escondido, per the request of
Councilmember Martinez during the June 9, 2021 City Council Meeting.

Staff Recommendation: None (Councilmember: Consuelo Martinez)

FUTURE AGENDA 

17. FUTURE AGENDA -
The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief
announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed.

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck)



8 

COUNCIL MEMBERS SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS AND OTHER REPORTS 

CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 
Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. This report is also available on the City’s website, 
www.escondido.org. 

• WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT -

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 
items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers 
are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications.  

ADJOURNMENT 

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 
Date Day Time Meeting Type Location 

July 28 - - No Meeting - 
August 4 - - No Meeting - 
August 11 Wednesday 4:00 & 5:00 p.m. Regular Meeting Council Chambers 
August 18 Wednesday 4:00 & 5:00 p.m. Regular Meeting Council Chambers 



9 

TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL 

The public may address the City Council on any agenda item. Please complete a Speaker’s form and give it to 
the City Clerk.  Submission of Speaker forms prior to the discussion of an item is highly encouraged.  Comments 
are generally limited to 3 minutes. 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under “Oral Communications.” 
Please complete a Speaker’s form as noted above. 

Handouts for the City Council should be given to the City Clerk.  To address the Council, use the podium in the 
center of the Chambers, STATE YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD and speak directly into the microphone. 

AGENDA, STAFF REPORTS AND BACK-UP MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE: 

• Online at http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx
• In the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall
• Placed in the Council Chambers (See: City Clerk/Minutes Clerk) immediately before and during the

Council meeting.

AVAILABILITY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS AFTER AGENDA POSTING:  Any supplemental writings 
or documents provided to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council 
Chambers while the meeting is in session. 

LIVE BROADCAST 

Council meetings are broadcast live on Cox Cable Channel 19 and U-verse Channel 99 – Escondido Gov TV. 
They can also be viewed the following Sunday and Monday evenings at 6:00 p.m. on those same channels. 
The Council meetings are also available live via the Internet by accessing the City’s website at 
www.escondido.org, and clicking the “Live Streaming –City Council Meeting now in progress” button on the 
home page. 

Please turn off all cellular phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 

The City Council is scheduled to meet the first four Wednesdays 
of the month at 4:00 in Closed Session and 5:00 in Open Session. 

(Verify schedule w ith City Clerk ’s Office) 
Members of the Council also sit as the Successor Agency to the Community Development 

Commission, Escondido Joint Powers Financing Authority, 
 and the Mobilehome Rent Review Board. 

CITY HALL HOURS OF OPERATION 
Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact our ADA Coordinator at 
839-4643.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 

arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

Listening devices are available for the hearing impaired – please see the City Clerk. 

http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx


Consent Item No. 1 July 21, 2021

A F F I D A V I T S

OF

I T E M 

P O S T I N G



Staff Report - Council

 Consent Item No. 2      July 21, 2021         File No. 0400-40

SUBJECT: Approval of Warrants

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION:

Request approval for City Council and Housing Successor Agency warrant numbers 354380 – 
354573 dated July 7, 2021.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The total amount of the warrants for the period of July 1 – July 7, 2021, is $1,610,361.46 

BACKGROUND:

The Escondido Municipal Code Section 10-49 states that warrants or checks may be issued and paid 
prior to audit by the City Council, provided the warrants or checks are certified and approved by the 
Director of Finance as conforming to the current budget. These warrants or checks must then be 
ratified and approved by the City Council at the next regular Council meeting.



Consent Item No. 3 July 21, 2021

A P P R O V A L

O F

M I N U T E S



Staff Report - Council

Consent Item No. 4        July 21, 2021             File No. 0685-20

SUBJECT: Setting Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District No. 2000-01 (Hidden 
Trails)

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-75, setting the Special Tax Levy 
for Community Facilities District No. 2000-01 (Hidden Trails) (the “District”) for Fiscal Year 2021-22.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

A Special Tax is levied annually on land within Community Facilities District No. 2000-01 (Hidden 
Trails) and collected through the County of San Diego Treasurer-Tax Collector’s Office.  The funds 
from the Special Tax are used to meet debt service obligations from the issuance of bonds for the 
District.

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

The City Council approved the establishment of Community Facilities District No. 2000-01 (Hidden 
Trails) on September 20, 2000, and has annually adopted a resolution setting the annual Special Tax 
Levy.  Prior year’s Resolution No. 2020-78 was adopted on July 15, 2020.

BACKGROUND:

At the request of the property owner/developer and pursuant to the City’s Statement of Goals and 
Policies Regarding the Establishment of Community Facilities Districts, Community Facilities District 
No. 2000-01 (Hidden Trails) was formed and bonds issued for the purpose of acquiring certain 
backbone facilities including street, water and sewer facilities which were constructed within the 
Hidden Trails development as authorized in Section 6 of the Resolution of Formation No. 2000-241R 
adopted in March of 2000.  As required, the proceeds of the bonds were used only for such 
authorized purposes. As of September 30, 2005, all proceeds were expended, and the projects 
completed.  As of July 1, 2021, $1,615,000 of principal remain outstanding and the bonds mature on 
September 1, 2031.  

According to the Special Tax Report for Community Facilities District No. 2000-01 (Hidden Trails), a 
Special Tax shall be levied annually on land within the District and collected in the same manner and 
at the same time as ordinary ad valorem property taxes.  The City is responsible for annually 



Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District 2000-01 (Hidden Trails)
July 21, 2021
Page 2

determining the Special Tax liability for each parcel within the District and for providing this 
information to the County of San Diego in August of every year.  

A Maximum Special Tax Rate was established for developed residential property and undeveloped 
property.  The amount of the Maximum Special Tax and Proposed Actual Special Tax for Fiscal Year 
2021-22 is attached as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. 2021-75.

A comparative analysis of the annual Special Tax Levy Calculation for Fiscal Year 2021-22 is 
presented on Attachment “1”.  As noted in the analysis, the 2021-22 Special Tax Levy requirement 
increased by 1.20% in the amount of $2,437.82 or an average of $8.41 per parcel.  

Actual cash resources available for the 2021-22 levy are estimated to be approximately $10,745 
greater than the amount used in the calculation of the 2021-22 tax levy. The additional available cash 
is not used in the current year levy calculation, as the use of all available cash for the 2021-22 levy 
would result in very large variances in the levy from this year to next (a large levy decrease in current 
year and then a subsequent year large levy increase).  The additional $10,745 in available cash 
resources will be used in the levy calculations of the future tax years.  

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Christina Holmes, Director of Finance
07/14/21 4:44 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Attachment “1” CFD 2000-01 (Hidden Trails) Special Tax Levy Comparative Analysis
2. Resolution No. 2021-75 Approving the Special Tax Rate for CFD 2000-01 (Hidden Trails)
3. Resolution No. 2021-75 – Exhibit A Special Tax Rates for FY 2021-22



Attachment "1" 

DRAFT: 03/05/2021

City of Escondido CFD 2000-01 (Hidden Trails)
Analysis of Special Tax Levy Requirement (Fund 727)

Tax Year 2021-22

Actuals
FY 2019-20

Estimated
Actuals

FY 2020-21

Proposed /
Budget

FY 2021-22

Change from Prior Year

Description $ %

Beginning Balance (07/01) $174,910.37 $172,681.55 $172,231.23

Revenue
Special Taxes 203,745.63 205,517.19
Interest 2,332.22 1,501.65

$206,077.85 $207,018.84 $0.00
Expenditures
Cost of Bonded Indebtedness:

Interest Due 09/01 Reported Fiscal Year 9/1/2019 40,003.13 9/1/2020 38,353.13 9/1/2021 36,484.38
Principal Due 09/01 Reported Fiscal Year 9/1/2019 110,000.00 9/1/2020 115,000.00 9/1/2021 115,000.00
Interest Due 03/01 Reported Fiscal Year 3/1/2020 38,353.13 3/1/2021 36,484.38 3/1/2022 34,471.88

Interest Due 09/01 Pending Year Obligation 9/1/2022 34,471.88
Principal Due 09/01 Pending year Obligation 9/1/2022 125,000.00

Total Principal and Interest Due from Annual Levy $188,356.26 $189,837.51 $345,428.14

Cost of Collection (Proposed Fiscal Year Shown at Maximum) 19,950.41 17,631.65 23,433.19
Available Cash Account Balances to Reduce Levy 10,746.81

$19,950.41 $17,631.65 $34,180.00

Total Annual Expenditures 208,306.67 207,469.16 379,608.14

Ending Balance (6/30) 172,681.55 172,231.23 (207,376.91)

Calculated Annual Special Tax Requirement $202,513.36 $204,942.20 $207,376.91

Approved / Proposed Levy as Allocated among 290 Parcels $202,513.36 $204,940.34 $207,378.16 $2,437.82 1.20%
Average Levy per Dwelling Unit $698.32 $706.69 $715.10 $8.41 1.20%



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-75

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
ACTING AS LEGISLATIVE BODY OF 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 
2000-01 (HIDDEN TRAILS), PROVIDING FOR 
THE LEVY OF AN ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX 
FOR SUCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escondido, California (the “Legislative 

Body”), has initiated proceedings, held a public hearing, conducted an election, and 

received a favorable vote from the qualified electors to authorize the levy of a Special Tax 

in a Community Facilities District, all as authorized pursuant to the terms and provisions 

of the “Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982,” being Chapter 2.5, Part 1, Division 

2, Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”).  This Community 

Facilities District is designated as Community Facilities District No. 2000-01 (Hidden 

Trails) (the “District”); and

WHEREAS, this Legislative Body, by the adoption of the Ordinance No. 2000-30 

(the “Ordinance”) pursuant to Section 53340 of the Government Code of the State of 

California, has authorized the levy of Special Taxes (as such term is defined in the 

Ordinance) within the District to finance authorized facilities; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53340 provides that this legislative body 

may provide, by resolution, for the levy of the Special Taxes in the current tax year at the 

same rates or at a lower rate than the rate provided for in the Ordinance, if such resolution 

is adopted and a certified list of all parcels subject to the Special Tax levy including the 

amount of the Special Tax to be levied on each parcel for the current tax year (the 



“Certified Parcel List”) is timely filed by the clerk or other official designated by this 

legislative body with the Auditor of the County of San Diego (the “County Auditor”) on or 

before August 10 of the applicable tax year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District No. 2000-01 

(Hidden Trails), as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That this legislative body hereby authorizes and provides for the levy of the 

Special Tax within the District on those Taxable Properties (as such term is defined in the 

Ordinance) within the District for Fiscal Year 2021-22 so long as the rates of such Special 

Tax are the same rates or lower rates than the rates provided for in the Ordinance.  The 

Proposed Special Tax Rates for the District for Fiscal Year 2021-22 are contained on 

Exhibit “A” attached to this Resolution and incorporated by this reference. After adoption 

of this Resolution, the Finance Director of the City, or Finance Director’s designee, may 

make any necessary modifications to these Special Tax Rates to correct any errors, 

omissions or inconsistencies in the listing or categorization of parcels to be taxed or in 

the amounts to be charged to any category of parcels; provided, however, that any such 

modifications shall not result in an increase in the Special Tax applicable to any category 

of parcels and can only be made prior to the submission of the tax rolls to the County 

Auditor.

3. That the Finance Director is hereby designated and directed to prepare and 

submit a Certified Parcel List to the County Auditor on or before August 10, or such later 

date to which the County Auditor may agree, setting forth the amount of the Special Tax 



to be levied on each Taxable Property within the District calculated pursuant to the 

Ordinance and subject to the limitations set forth in Section 2 above.

4. That the Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner as ordinary ad 

valorem property taxes are collected, and shall be subject to the same penalties and 

same procedure and sale in cases of any delinquency for ad valorem taxes, and the 

Treasurer-Tax Collector of the County of San Diego is hereby authorized to deduct 

reasonable administrative costs incurred in collecting any said Special Tax.  Any Special 

Taxes that may not be collected on the County of San Diego (“County”) tax roll shall be 

collected through a direct billing procedure by the Treasurer of the City of Escondido,  or 

his/her designee acting for and on behalf of the District.

5. That the County Auditor is hereby directed to enter in the next County 

assessment roll on which taxes will become due, opposite each lot or parcel of land 

affected in a space marked “public improvements, special tax” or by any other suitable 

designation, the installment of the Special Tax.

6. That the County Auditor shall then, at the close of the tax collection period, 

promptly render to the District a detailed report showing the amount and/or amounts of 

such Special Tax installments, interest, penalties and percentages so collected and from 

what property collected, and also provide a statement of any percentages retained for the 

expense of making any such collection.



Resolution 2021-75
Exhibit “A”
Page 1 of 1

Exhibit “A”

City of Escondido
Community Facilities District 2000-01 

(Hidden Trails)

Special Tax Rates for Fiscal Year 2021/22

Land Use
Categories Description

Assigned
Special Tax

Proposed Actual
Special Tax*

Category 1**
Residential

Property $0.39 per sq. ft. $0.26720 per sq. ft.

Category 2**
Other

Property $2,861 per net acre $1,960.14 per net acre

Category 3
Undeveloped

Property $3,290 per net acre $0.00 per net acre

* Special Tax rates shown above have been rounded to decimals shown, actual tax rates are
not rounded.

** The Proposed Actual Special Tax shown above is the authorized levy for the current fiscal 
year. The submitted actual levy maybe reduced as directed by the Finance Director.



Staff Report - Council

Consent Item No. 5    July 21, 2021 File No. 0685-20

SUBJECT: Setting Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District No. 2006-01 (Eureka 
Ranch)

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-76, setting the Special Tax Levy for 
Community Facilities District No. 2006-01 (Eureka Ranch) (the “District”) for Fiscal Year 2021-22.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

A Special Tax is levied annually on land within Community Facilities District No. 2006-01 (Eureka 
Ranch) and collected through the County of San Diego Treasurer-Tax Collector’s Office.  The funds 
from the Special Tax are used to meet debt service obligations from the issuance of bonds for the 
District.

PREVIOUS ACTION:

The City Council approved the establishment of Community Facilities District No. 2006-01 (Eureka 
Ranch) on September 27, 2006, and has annually adopted a resolution setting the annual Special 
Tax Levy.  Prior year’s Resolution No. 2020-77 was adopted on July 15, 2020.

BACKGROUND:

At the request of the property owner/developer and pursuant to the City’s Statement of Goals and 
Policies Regarding the Establishment of Community Facilities Districts, Community Facilities District 
No. 2006-01 (Eureka Ranch) was formed and bonds were issued for the purpose of providing street, 
storm drain and sewer improvements as well as utility undergrounding within the Eureka Ranch 
development and East Valley Parkway area as authorized in Section 6 of the Resolution of Formation 
No. 2006-227 adopted in September of 2006.  As required, the proceeds of the bonds were held in a 
separate account and used only for such authorized purposes.  As of June 30, 2013, all proceeds 
were expended, and the projects completed.  As of July 1, 2021, $12,075,000 of principal remain 
outstanding and the bonds mature on September 1, 2036.  

According to the Special Tax Report for Community Facilities District No. 2006-01 (Eureka Ranch), a 
Special Tax shall be levied annually on land within the District and collected in the same manner and 
at the same time as ordinary ad valorem property taxes.  The City is responsible for annually 



Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District 2006-01 (Eureka Ranch)
July 21, 2021
Page 2

determining the Special Tax liability for each parcel within the District and for providing this 
information to the County of San Diego in August of every year.

A Maximum Special Tax Rate was established for developed residential property and undeveloped 
property.  The amount of the Maximum Special Tax and Proposed Actual Special Tax for Fiscal Year 
2021-22 is attached as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. 2021-76.

A comparative analysis of the annual Special Tax Levy Calculation for Fiscal Year 2021-22 is 
presented on Attachment “1”.  As noted in the analysis, the 2021-22 Special Tax Levy requirement 
decreased by 0.26% in the amount of $2,782.75 or an average of $8.23 per parcel. 

The delinquency contingency provision for the 2021-22 levy calculation increased by $1,108.11.  This 
increase was due to realization of an increase in the actual Fiscal Year 2020-21 delinquency rate 
(from 1.06% to 1.17%). 

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Christina Holmes, Director of Finance
07/14/21 4:44 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Attachment “1” CFD 2006-01 (Eureka Ranch) Special Tax Levy Comparative Analysis
2. Resolution No. 2021-76 Approving the Special Tax Rate for CFD 2006-01 (Eureka Ranch)
3. Resolution No. 2021-76 - Exhibit “A” Special Tax Rates for FY 2021-22



Attachment "1"

City of Escondido CFD 2006-01 (Eureka Ranch)
Analysis of Special Tax Levy Requirement (Fund 728)

Tax Year 2021-22

Actuals
FY 2019-20

Estimated
Actuals

FY 2020-21

Proposed /
Budget

FY 2021-22

Change from Prior Year

Description $ %

Beginning Balance (07/01) $792,360.88 $798,782.26 $817,302.77

Revenue
Special Taxes 1,058,899.98 1,086,579.32
Interest 9,497.29 5,917.47

$1,068,397.27 $1,092,496.79 $0.00
Expenditures
Cost of Bonded Indebtedness:

Interest Due 09/01 Reported Fiscal Year 9/1/2019 284,650.00 9/1/2020 277,600.00 9/1/2021 268,000.00
Principal Due 09/01 Reported Fiscal Year 9/1/2019 470,000.00 9/1/2020 480,000.00 9/1/2021 500,000.00
Interest Due 03/01 Reported Fiscal Year 3/1/2020 277,600.00 3/1/2021 268,000.00 3/1/2022 258,000.00

Interest Due 09/01 Pending Year Obligation 9/1/2022 258,000.00
Principal Due 09/01 Pending year Obligation 9/1/2022 525,000.00

Total Principal and Interest Due from Annual Levy $1,032,250.00 $1,025,600.00 $1,809,000.00

Cost of Collection (Proposed Fiscal Year Shown at Maximum) 29,725.89 48,376.28 53,834.73
Contingency for Delinquency (Proposed Current Year Only) - - 12,232.47

$29,725.89 $48,376.28 $66,067.20

Total Annual Expenditures 1,061,975.89 1,073,976.28 1,875,067.20

Ending Balance (6/30) 798,782.26 817,302.77 (1,057,764.43)

Calculated Annual Special Tax Requirement $1,053,501.35 $1,060,547.72 $1,057,764.43

Approved / Proposed Levy as Allocated among 338 Parcels $1,053,501.24 $1,060,547.18 $1,057,764.43 ($2,782.75) -0.26%
Average Levy per Dwelling Unit $3,116.87 $3,137.71 $3,129.48 ($8.23) -0.26%



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-76

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
ACTING AS LEGISLATIVE BODY OF 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 
2006-01 (EUREKA RANCH), PROVIDING FOR 
THE LEVY OF AN ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX 
FOR SUCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escondido, California (the “Legislative 

Body”), has initiated proceedings, held a public hearing, conducted an election, and 

received a favorable vote from the qualified electors to authorize the levy of a Special Tax 

in a Community Facilities District, all as authorized pursuant to the terms and provisions 

of the “Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982,” being Chapter 2.5, Part 1, Division 

2, Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”).  This Community 

Facilities District is designated as Community Facilities District No. 2006-01 (Eureka 

Ranch) (the “District”); and

WHEREAS, this Legislative Body, by the adoption of Ordinance No. 2006-32 (the 

“Ordinance”) pursuant to Section 53340 of the Government Code of the State of 

California, has authorized the levy of Special Taxes (as such term is defined in the 

Ordinance) within the District to finance authorized facilities; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53340 provides that this legislative body 

may provide, by resolution, for the levy of the Special Taxes in the current tax year at the 

same rates or at a lower rate than the rate provided for in the Ordinance, if such resolution 

is adopted and a certified list of all parcels subject to the Special Tax levy including the 

amount of the Special Tax to be levied on each parcel for the current tax year (the 



“Certified Parcel List”) is timely filed by the clerk or other official designated by this 

legislative body with the Auditor of the County of San Diego (the “County Auditor”) on or 

before August 10 of the applicable tax year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District No. 2006-01 

(Eureka Ranch), as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That this legislative body hereby authorizes and provides for the levy of the 

Special Tax within the District on those Taxable Properties (as such term is defined in the 

Ordinance) within the District for Fiscal Year 2021-22 so long as the rates of such Special 

Tax are the same rates or lower rates than the rates provided for in the Ordinance.  The 

Proposed Special Tax Rates for the District for Fiscal Year 2021-22 are contained on 

Exhibit “A” attached to this Resolution and incorporated by this reference.  After adoption 

of this Resolution, the Finance Director of the City, or Finance Director’s designee, may 

make any necessary modifications to these Special Tax Rates to correct any errors, 

omissions or inconsistencies in the listing or categorization of parcels to be taxed or in 

the amounts to be charged to any category of parcels; provided, however, that any such 

modifications shall not result in an increase in the Special Tax applicable to any category 

of parcels and can only be made prior to the submission of the tax rolls to the County 

Auditor.

3. That the Finance Director is hereby designated and directed to prepare and 

submit a Certified Parcel List to the County Auditor on or before August 10, or such later 

date to which the County Auditor may agree, setting forth the amount of the Special Tax 



to be levied on each Taxable Property within the District calculated pursuant to the 

Ordinance and subject to the limitations set forth in Section 2 above.

4. That the Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner as ordinary ad 

valorem property taxes are collected, and shall be subject to the same penalties and 

same procedure and sale in cases of any delinquency for ad valorem taxes, and the 

Treasurer-Tax Collector of the County of San Diego is hereby authorized to deduct 

reasonable administrative costs incurred in collecting any said Special Tax.  Any Special 

Taxes that may not be collected on the County of San Diego ( “County”) tax roll shall be 

collected through a direct billing procedure by the Treasurer of the City of Escondido, or 

his/her designee acting for and on behalf of the District.

5. That the County Auditor is hereby directed to enter in the next County 

assessment roll on which taxes will become due, opposite each lot or parcel of land 

affected in a space marked “public improvements, special tax” or by any other suitable 

designation, the installment of the Special Tax.

6. That the County Auditor shall then, at the close of the tax collection period, 

promptly render to the District a detailed report showing the amount and/or amounts of 

such Special Tax installments, interest, penalties and percentages so collected and from 

what property collected, and also provide a statement of any percentages retained for the 

expense of making any such collection.



Exhibit “A” 

City of Escondido 

Community Facilities District No. 2006-01 

(Eureka Ranch) 

Special Tax Rates for Fiscal Year 2021/22 

Tax Class 

Building 
Square 
Footage 
(“BSF”) 

Assigned         
Special Tax 

Proposed Actual 
Special Tax* 

Residential Property**: 

Tax Class 1 > 3,600 $1.214 per BSF $0.9261 per BSF 

Tax Class 2 3,251 – 3,600 $1.275 per BSF $0.9726 per BSF 

Tax Class 3 2,851 – 3,250 $1.350 per BSF $1.0298 per BSF 

Tax Class 4 2,551 – 2,850 $1.407 per BSF $1.0733 per BSF 

Tax Class 5 < 2,550 $1.526 per BSF $1.1641 per BSF 

Non-Residential Property**: 

Tax Class 6 NA $20,750.00 per Acre $15,829.01 per Acre 

Undeveloped Property NA $20,750.00 per Acre $0.00 per Acre 

* Special Tax Rates shown above have been rounded to decimals shown, actual tax rates are not rounded.
  **  The Proposed Actual Special Tax shown above is the authorized levy for the current fiscal year.  The submitted 

   actual levy may be reduced as directed by the Finance Director. 

Resolution No. 2021-76 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 1



Staff Report - Council

  Consent Item No. 6            July 21, 2021 File No. 0685-20

SUBJECT: Setting Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District No. 2020-2 (The 
Villages)

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-78, setting the Special Tax Levy for 
Community Facilities District No. 2020-2 (The Villages) (the “District”) for Fiscal Year 2021-22.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

A Special Tax will be levied annually on land within Community Facilities District No. 2020-2 (The 
Villages) and collected through the County of San Diego Treasurer-Tax Collector’s Office.  The funds 
from the Special Tax will be used to meet the requirements established at the time of formation of the 
District.

PREVIOUS ACTION:

The Villages Project was approved by the City Council on November 15, 2017.  

On June 12, 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2019-83, authorizing a Reimbursement 
Agreement to evaluate a request to form a Community Facilities District (“CFD”) for The Villages 
Project to fund public facilities. 

On April 8, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-25 declaring its intent to establish 
CFD No. 2020-2, The Villages Project CFD to fund public facilities.  

On May 13, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-45 approving the establishment of 
Community Facilities District No. 2020-2 (The Villages) and authorizing the Council to adopt annually 
a resolution setting the Special Tax Levy.  This is the first year that Council will set this Special Tax 
Levy for The Villages CFD.  

BACKGROUND:

A Community Facilities District (“CFD”) is a special taxing district that is formed at the request of a 
project proponent with the approval of the local jurisdiction. CFD's were established in State 
Government Code in 1982 (also referred to as the Mello-Roos Act) to provide an alternate method for 



Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District 2020-2 (The Villages)
July 21, 2021
Page 2

private property owners to finance the acquisition, construction and maintenance of certain public 
capital facilities, and/or to cover the related cost of ongoing services.

CFD No. 2020-2 was formed on May 13, 2020, to fund the public facilities fees associated with the 
Villages Project (“Project”), a development that includes 380 residential homes; recreational, social, 
and community amenities in a Village Center; and approximately 48.9 acres of permanent open 
space with active greenbelts and 3.5 acres of parks.  The Project is currently under construction and 
it is anticipated that when the majority of the units are either under construction or completed the CFD 
bonds will be issued.  

Under the Acquisition and Funding Agreement with Lennar Homes, approved on April 8, 2020, prior 
to the issuance of bonds the Assigned Special Tax rates are to be levied on all parcels classified as 
Developed Property.  A lot located within the Project that has a Building Permit issued prior to March 
1 of the previous fiscal year in which the Special Tax is being levied is classified as Developed 
Property.  There are 216 developed lots in the Project that had building permits issued before March 
1, 2021 that will be assessed the Special Tax Levy in FY2021/22.  The special tax rate is governed by 
the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax ("RMA") established at the time CFD No. 
2020-2 was formed.  The Assigned Special Tax rate defined in the RMA is based on the Land Use 
Category of each property. 

Shown below is a summary of the FY2021/22 Special Tax Rates by Land Use Category:

Land Use 
Category
(Residential 

Property)

Developed 
Floor Area
(square feet)

Building 
Permits

Assigned 
Special Tax FY2021/22 Levy

1 > 3,199 14 $2,793.78 $39,112.92
2 2,950 to 3,199 15 2,711.16 40,667.40
3 2,700 to 2,949 15 2,618.34 39,275.10
4 2,450 to 2,699 16 2,516.34 40,261.44
5 2,200 to 2,449 18 2,406.18 43,311.24
6 1,950 to 2,199 41 2,132.82 87,445.62
7 1,700 to 1,949 14 2,109.36 29,531.04
8 1,450 to 1,699 60 1,921.68 115,300.80
9 < 1,450 23 1,804.38 41,500.74

216 $476,406.30

The Special Taxes received by the City will be deposited to a separate fund of the City to be used for 
annual administrative expenses and fund the authorized facilities or future bond debt service 
payments.        



Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District 2020-2 (The Villages)
July 21, 2021
Page 3

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Christina Holmes, Director of Finance
07/14/21 4:44 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2021-78 Approving the Special Tax Rate for CFD 2020-2 (The Villages)
2. Resolution No. 2021-78 – Exhibit “A” CFD 2020-2 (The Villages) Special Tax Levy Rates



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-78

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
ACTING AS LEGISLATIVE BODY OF 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 
2020-2 (THE VILLAGES), PROVIDING FOR 
THE LEVY OF AN ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX 
FOR SUCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escondido, California (the “Legislative 

Body”), has initiated proceedings, held a public hearing, conducted an election, and 

received a favorable vote from the qualified electors to authorize the levy of a Special Tax 

in a Community Facilities District, all as authorized pursuant to the terms and provisions 

of the “Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982,” being Chapter 2.5, Part 1, Division 

2, Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”).  This Community 

Facilities District is designated as Community Facilities District No. 2020-2 (The Villages) 

(the “District”); and

WHEREAS, this Legislative Body, by the adoption of the Ordinance No. 2020-11 

(the “Ordinance”) pursuant to Section 53340 of the Government Code of the State of 

California, has authorized the levy of Special Taxes (as such term is defined in the 

Ordinance) within the District to finance authorized facilities; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53340 provides that this legislative body 

may provide, by resolution, for the levy of the Special Taxes in the current tax year at the 

same rates or at a lower rate than the indexed rates provided for in the Ordinance, if such 

resolution is adopted and a certified list of all parcels subject to the Special Tax levy 

including the amount of the Special Tax to be levied on each parcel for the current tax 



year (the “Certified Parcel List”) is timely filed by the clerk or other official designated by 

this legislative body with the Auditor of the County of San Diego (the “County Auditor”) on 

or before August 10 of the applicable tax year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District No. 2020-2 (The 

Villages), as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That this legislative body hereby authorizes and provides for the levy of the 

Special Tax within the District on those Taxable Properties (as such term is defined in the 

Ordinance) within the District for Fiscal Year 2021-22 so long as the rates of such Special 

Tax are the same rates or lower rates than the rates provided for in the Ordinance.  The 

Proposed Special Tax Rates for the District for Fiscal Year 2021-22 are contained on 

Exhibit “A” attached to this Resolution and incorporated by this reference.  After adoption 

of this Resolution, the Finance Director of the City, or Finance Director’s designee, may 

make any necessary modifications to these Special Tax Rates to correct any errors, 

omissions or inconsistencies in the listing or categorization of parcels to be taxed or in 

the amounts to be charged to any category of parcels; provided, however, that any such 

modifications shall not result in an increase in the Special Tax applicable to any category 

of parcels and can only be made prior to the submission of the tax rolls to the County 

Auditor.

3. That the Finance Director is hereby designated and directed to prepare and 

submit a Certified Parcel List to the County Auditor on or before August 10, or such later 

date to which the County Auditor may agree, setting forth the amount of the Special Tax 



to be levied on each Taxable Property within the District calculated pursuant to the 

Ordinance and subject to the limitations set forth in Section 2 above.

4. That the Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner as ordinary ad 

valorem property taxes are collected, and shall be subject to the same penalties and 

same procedure and sale in cases of any delinquency for ad valorem taxes, and the 

Treasurer-Tax Collector of the County of San Diego is hereby authorized to deduct 

reasonable administrative costs incurred in collecting any said Special Tax.  Any Special 

Taxes that may not be collected on the County of San Diego ( “County”) tax roll shall be 

collected through a direct billing procedure by the Treasurer of the City of Escondido, or 

his/her designee acting for and on behalf of the District.

5. That the County Auditor is hereby directed to enter in the next County 

assessment roll on which taxes will become due, opposite each lot or parcel of land 

affected in a space marked “public improvements, special tax” or by any other suitable 

designation, the installment of the Special Tax.

6. That the County Auditor shall then, at the close of the tax collection period, 

promptly render to the District a detailed report showing the amount and/or amounts of 

such Special Tax installments, interest, penalties and percentages so collected and from 

what property collected, and also provide a statement of any percentages retained for the 

expense of making any such collection.



Developed                
Floor Area

> 3,199 sqft $2,793.78 per DU(4) $2,793.78 per DU(4)

2,950 to 3,199 sqft $2,711.16 per DU(4) $2,711.16 per DU(4)

2,700 to 2,949 sqft $2,618.34 per DU(4) $2,618.34 per DU(4)

2,450 to 2,699 sqft $2,516.34 per DU(4) $2,516.34 per DU(4)

2,200 to 2,449 sqft $2,406.18 per DU(4) $2,406.18 per DU(4)

1,950 to 2,199 sqft $2,132.82 per DU(4) $2,132.82 per DU(4)

1,700 to 1,949 sqft $2,109.36 per DU(4) $2,109.36 per DU(4)

1,450 to 1,699 sqft $1,921.68 per DU(4) $1,921.68 per DU(4)

< 1,450 sqft $1,804.38 per DU(4) $1,804.38 per DU(4)

 Non-Residential

NA $24,832.92 per Acre $24,832.92 per Acre

 Backup Special Tax

NA $2,713.61 per Lot $0.00 per Lot

NA $2,548.48 per Lot $0.00 per Lot

NA $2,084.97 per Lot $0.00 per Lot

NA $24,832.92 per Acre $0.00 per Acre

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4) Dwelling unit or "DU" is as defined in the formation documents.

Special Tax Rates for Fiscal Year 2021-22

City of Escondido
Community Facilities District No. 2020-2

(The Villages)

Exhibit "A"

The Proposed Actual Special Tax shown above is the authorized levy for the current fiscal year. The
submitted actual levy may be reduced as directed by the Finance Director.

Special Tax Rates shown above have been rounded to decimals shown, actual tax rates are not
rounded.

7

8

9

10

The Assigned Special Tax Rates have been increased by 2% from the tax rates established at the
time of formation in accordance with the formation documents.

SUB16-009A

SUB16-009B

SUB16-009C

 Undeveloped Property

NA

4

5

Assigned                    

Special Tax(1)(2)

Proposed Actual    

Special Tax(2)(3)

6

Land Use 
Category

 Residential Property

1

2

3

Resolution No. 2021-78 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 1



Staff Report - Council

Consent Item No. 7        July 21, 2021            File No. 0685-20

SUBJECT: Setting Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 (Public 
Services)

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-77, setting the Special Tax Levy 
for Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 (“Public Services CFD”) for Fiscal Year 2021-22.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

A special tax is levied annually on real property within the Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 
and is collected through the County of San Diego Treasurer-Tax Collector’s Office.  The proceeds 
from the special tax are used to provide public services including public safety, maintenance, 
administration, community development and services provided by the City.

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

On January 15, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-2, directing staff to prepare 
documents necessary to consider the formation of a Community Facilities District to offset ongoing 
municipal costs of services resulting from new development.

On April 8, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-24 declaring its intent to establish 
Community Facilities District (“CFD”) No. 2020-1, a CityWide CFD to fund municipal services required 
for new development.  

On May 13, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-44 approving the establishment of 
Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 (“Public Services CFD”) and authorizing the Council to adopt 
annually a resolution setting the Special Tax Levy.  

BACKGROUND:

As a part of the City’s ongoing efforts to address projected budget shortfalls, the City contracted with 
Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. (“KMA”) on January 15, 2020, to complete a Fiscal Impact Analysis 
(“FIA”) for new residential development.  KMA reviewed the City’s FY 2019/20 budget to determine 
the per capita cost of providing municipal services for new residential development involving Police, 
Fire, Public Works, Community Services, and General Services (support departments).  



Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District 2020-1 (Public Services)
July 21, 2021
Page 2

The FIA determined that the per capita cost of providing municipal services for new residential 
development exceeds the anticipated revenue received, including property taxes, property tax in lieu 
of Vehicle License Fees (“VLF”), intergovernmental, property transfer tax, fines, forfeitures, permits, 
licenses, and sales tax generated by new residents. Based on these findings, the current structural 
budget deficit is anticipated to increase with each new residential development project.

On May 13, 2020, CFD No. 2020-1 was formed and established a CityWide Public Services CFD with 
the goal of making new development revenue neutral.  The Public Services CFD provides a 
streamlined way for projects to offset their impact to ongoing public services through a special tax 
levied on the annual property tax bill.  Voluntary annexation of a development to the Public Services 
CFD occurs by resolution of the City Council. 

The special tax rate is governed by the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax ("RMA") 
established at the time CFD No. 2020-1 was formed.  The special tax rates were calculated at the 
time of formation based on the cost of providing public services, less revenue generated by the 
development for various classifications of residential property, or Land Use Category.  The projected 
annual costs of Public Services provided to CFD No. 2020-1 were between $536 and $783 per 
residential dwelling unit in 2020 dollars.  The special tax rates for the Public Services CFD escalates 
at the maximum rate of inflation as determined by the Consumer Price Index and at the minimum rate 
of 2% per year.  The applicable increase for the current year is 2%.  

The City’s cost of providing municipal services, including Police, Fire, Public Works, Community 
Services, and General Services, has increased since the special tax rates were calculated in 
FY2019/20.  The FY2021/22 General Fund Operating Budget increased by 6% compared to the prior 
fiscal year while projected Operating Revenue increased by 3%, a net increase in operating costs of 
3%.  In addition, the FY2021/22 General Fund Operating Budget does not account for the unfunded 
annual maintenance costs totaling approximately $7.4 million for CityWide parks, streets, building, 
and fleet maintenance/replacement.  As a result of the increasing costs of providing municipal 
services, the proposed special tax rates listed in Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. 2021-77 have been 
increased by the minimum 2% from the tax rates established at the formation of CFD No. 2020-1.  

Prior to July 30 of each year, the special tax levy will be set by the City Council for all properties within 
the Public Services CFD that have received a building permit as of March 1 of that year.  There are 
216 developed lots located in The Villages Project that had building permits issued before March 1, 
2021, that will be assessed the Special Tax Levy in FY2021/22.  



Special Tax Levy for Community Facilities District 2020-1 (Public Services)
July 21, 2021
Page 3

Shown below is a summary of the proposed FY2021/22 Special Tax levy by Land Use Category:

Land Use Category Density
Building 
Permits

Proposed 
Special Tax 

Rate
Proposed 

FY2021/22 Levy

1 Less than 5.5 DU/Acre - $546.72 -

2 5.5 to less than 18 DU/Acre 216 $757.86 $196,285.74

3 18.0 to less than 30 DU/Acre - $739.50 -

4 30 DU/Acre or Greater - $798.66 -

The services to be funded through the Public Services CFD include public safety, maintenance, and 
administrative expenses for services provided by the City.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Christina Holmes, Director of Finance
07/14/21 4:44 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2021-77 Approving the Special Tax Rate for CFD 2020-1 (Public Services)
2. Resolution No. 2021-77 – Exhibit A Special Tax Rates for FY 2021-22



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-77

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
ACTING AS LEGISLATIVE BODY OF 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 
2020-1 (PUBLIC SERVICES), PROVIDING 
FOR THE LEVY OF AN ANNUAL SPECIAL 
TAX FOR SUCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escondido, California (the “Legislative 

Body”), has initiated proceedings, held a public hearing, conducted an election, and 

received a favorable vote from the qualified electors to authorize the levy of a Special Tax 

in a Community Facilities District, all as authorized pursuant to the terms and provisions 

of the “Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982,” being Chapter 2.5, Part 1, Division 

2, Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”).  This Community 

Facilities District is designated as Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 (Public 

Services) (the “District”); and

WHEREAS, this Legislative Body, by the adoption of the Ordinance No. 2020-1 

(the “Ordinance”) pursuant to Section 53340 of the Government Code of the State of 

California, has authorized the levy of Special Taxes (as such term is defined in the 

Ordinance) within the District to finance authorized facilities; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53340 provides that this legislative body 

may provide, by resolution, for the levy of the Special Taxes in the current tax year at the 

same rates or at a lower rate than the indexed rates provided for in the Ordinance, if such 

resolution is adopted and a certified list of all parcels subject to the Special Tax levy 

including the amount of the Special Tax to be levied on each parcel for the current tax 



year (the “Certified Parcel List”) is timely filed by the clerk or other official designated by 

this legislative body with the Auditor of the County of San Diego (the “County Auditor”) on 

or before August 10 of the applicable tax year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 

(“Public Services”), as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That this legislative body hereby authorizes and provides for the levy of the 

Special Tax within the District on those Taxable Properties (as such term is defined in the 

Ordinance) within the District for Fiscal Year 2021-22 so long as the rates of such Special 

Tax are the same rates or lower rates than the rates provided for in the Ordinance.  The 

Proposed Special Tax Rates for the District for Fiscal Year 2021-22 are contained on 

Exhibit “A” attached to this Resolution and incorporated by this reference.  After adoption 

of this Resolution, the Finance Director of the City, or Finance Director’s designee, may 

make any necessary modifications to these Special Tax Rates to correct any errors, 

omissions or inconsistencies in the listing or categorization of parcels to be taxed or in 

the amounts to be charged to any category of parcels; provided, however, that any such 

modifications shall not result in an increase in the Special Tax applicable to any category 

of parcels and can only be made prior to the submission of the tax rolls to the County 

Auditor.

3. That the Finance Director is hereby designated and directed to prepare and 

submit a Certified Parcel List to the County Auditor on or before August 10, or such later 

date to which the County Auditor may agree, setting forth the amount of the Special Tax 



to be levied on each Taxable Property within the District calculated pursuant to the 

Ordinance and subject to the limitations set forth in Section 2 above.

4. That the Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner as ordinary ad 

valorem property taxes are collected, and shall be subject to the same penalties and 

same procedure and sale in cases of any delinquency for ad valorem taxes, and the 

Treasurer-Tax Collector of the County of San Diego is hereby authorized to deduct 

reasonable administrative costs incurred in collecting any said Special Tax.  Any Special 

Taxes that may not be collected on the County of San Diego (“County”) tax roll shall be 

collected through a direct billing procedure by the Treasurer of the City of Escondido, or 

his/her designee acting for and on behalf of the District.

5. That the County Auditor is hereby directed to enter in the next County 

assessment roll on which taxes will become due, opposite each lot or parcel of land 

affected in a space marked “public improvements, special tax” or by any other suitable 

designation, the installment of the Special Tax.

6. That the County Auditor shall then, at the close of the tax collection period, 

promptly render to the District a detailed report showing the amount and/or amounts of 

such Special Tax installments, interest, penalties and percentages so collected and from 

what property collected, and also provide a statement of any percentages retained for the 

expense of making any such collection.



Density Unit

                  
Maximum 
Special 

Tax(1)(2)

Proposed 
Actual    
Special 

Tax(2)(3)

Less than 5.5 DU/Acre DU $546.72 $546.72

5.5 to less than 18 DU/Acre DU $757.86 $757.86

18.0 to less than 30 DU/Acre DU $739.50 $739.50

30 DU/Acre or Greater DU $798.66 $798.66

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4) Dwelling unit or "DU" is as defined in the formation documents.

The Assigned Special Tax Rates have been increased by the greater of the Index
or 2% from the tax rates established at the time of formation in accordance with
the formation documents.
Special Tax Rates shown above have been rounded to decimals shown, actual tax
rates are not rounded.
The Proposed Actual Special Tax shown above is the authorized levy for the
current fiscal year. The submitted actual levy may be reduced as directed by the
Finance Director.

Applicable to all Zones Annexed as of March 1, 2021

3

4

Land Use 
Category

1

2

Exhibit "A"

City of Escondido
Community Facilities District No. 2020-1

(Services)

Special Tax Rates for Fiscal Year 2021-22

Resolution No. 2021-77 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 1



Staff Report - Council

  Consent Item No.  8  July 21, 2021 File No. 0480-40

SUBJECT: Establishing the Property Tax Rate and Fixed Charge Assessments for General 
Obligation Bonded Indebtedness

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-79 to establish the property tax rate 
and fixed charge assessments for bonded indebtedness for Fiscal Year 2021-22.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

A total of $4,805,750 will be needed for the annual debt service payments for the General Obligation 
Bonds.  This represents $1,265,375 due in March 2022 and $3,540,375 due in September 2022.

PREVIOUS ACTION:

The City Council certified the results of the November 2, 2004, election approving Proposition P on 
December 1, 2004.  On July 12, 2006, the City Council authorized the issuance and sale of the 
General Obligation Bonds. The Bonds provided financing for the construction of three new fire 
stations, a replacement of Fire Station 1, and a combined Police and Fire Headquarters Facility. 

The City of Escondido General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2004, Series A (Fire, Police, and 
Emergency Response Measure) were refunded on June 9, 2015 by the issuance of the General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2015.  The Bonds mature on September 1, 2036.  

BACKGROUND:

General Obligation Bonds are secured by the legal obligation to levy an ad valorem property tax upon 
taxable property within the City in an amount sufficient to pay the yearly debt service (principal and 
interest) payment.  The debt service payment for March 2022 is $1,265,375 and the debt service 
payment for September 2022 is $3,540,375.  The City is required to set a tax rate to meet these 
financial obligations.  The assessed value for property in Escondido is used as the basis for applying 
the levy to taxable properties.  

The starting point for calculating the property tax levy is the current year taxable assessed value.  To 
this assessed value amount, a delinquency factor is applied.  The City’s fiscal year 2020-21 
delinquency rates for secured and unsecured property are estimated to be 0.50 percent and 2.18 



Property Tax Rate for General Obligation Bonds
July 21, 2021
Page 2

percent, respectively, and the five-year average delinquency rates were 0.92 percent and 1.81 
percent. 

For Fiscal Year 2021-22, the City has used a 3 percent delinquency factor in calculating the property 
tax rate for both secured and unsecured property.  This rate is an increase from the prior year factor, 
taking into account the last fiscal year of increasing delinquency rates while still providing a 
conservative provision for estimated fiscal year 2021-22 delinquencies.  The delinquency factors used 
in calculation of the property tax rate for the past five tax years 2016-17 to 2020-21 were 2.5 percent, 
3.5 percent, 2.5 percent, 2.5 percent, and 3.0 percent respectively.

The County of San Diego has provided to the City the estimated 2021-22 Fiscal Year assessed 
valuations to be used for the tax rate computation.  A two-year comparison of the City’s secured and 
unsecured assessed valuations, as adjusted by the applicable annual delinquency factor, is shown 
below. The net collectible assessed valuations increased by approximately 3.2 percent.  This increase 
in net collectible assessed value will cause a decrease in the calculated property tax rate for fiscal 
year 2021-22.

% Increase
(Decrease)

Description FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 in Valuation

Secured Assessed 
Valuation $17,253,142,377.00 $17,931,895,126.00 

Less Delinquency Factor (517,594,271.31) (537,956,853.78)
  Net Collectible Secured 16,735,548,105.69 17,393,938,272.22 3.09%

Unsecured Assessed Valuation 583,387,537.00 466,412,368.00 
Less Delinquency Factor (17,501,626.11) (13,992,371.04)
  Net Collectible Unsecured 565,885,910.89 452,419,996.96 (20.1%)

TOTAL ALL NET 
COLLECTIBLE $17,301,434,016.58 $17,846,358,269.18 3.2%

The property tax rate calculation takes into account any additional financial resources in the Debt 
Service Fund that may be used to reduce the amount of tax levy needed, including investment 
interest received, fund balance, penalties and interest received on delinquent property tax receipts, 
and other miscellaneous taxable revenue. 

In order to collect the required debt service, the property tax rate will be set at 0.02065 per $100 of 
assessed value.  This represents $20.65 per $100,000 of assessed value, resulting in a decrease of 
$2.39 when compared to last year’s property tax rate of $23.04.



Property Tax Rate for General Obligation Bonds
July 21, 2021
Page 3

During the November 2, 2004 election, the ballot measure provided to the citizens of Escondido 
estimated that the average annual tax rate over the life of the bonds would be $33.44 for $100,000 of 
assessed valuation for single family homes, based on a 3 percent annual growth rate in secured 
assessed valuations.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Christina Holmes, Director of Finance
07/14/21 4:44 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2021-79
2. Resolution No. 2021-79 – Exhibit “A” Certificate and Calculation of Property Tax Rate for 2020-21



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-79

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
ESTABLISHING THE PROPERTY TAX RATE 
AND FIXED CHARGE ASSESSMENTS FOR 
BONDED INDEBTEDNESS FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2021-22

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escondido desires to establish the rate 

of property tax required to generate an amount of revenue from the tax base to provide 

sufficient moneys to pay debt service on the voter approved bonded indebtedness 

payable during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the total net taxable secured assessed valuation of the City of 

Escondido is now estimated at $17,931,895,126 full value; and

WHEREAS, the total net taxable unsecured assessed valuation of the City of 

Escondido is now estimated at $466,412,368 full value.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the property tax rate within the City for the City of Escondido General 

Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 (Fire, Police, and Emergency Response 

Measure) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, be and hereby is established at 

$0.02065 per $100 assessed value.



3. That the City Manager and the Director of Finance are each hereby directed 

and authorized to take any and all actions necessary to ensure that such property tax rate 

is enrolled with the County of San Diego Auditor & Controller, including, but not limited to, 

filing the Tax Amount Rate Certificate which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and is 

incorporated by this reference.



Resolution No. 2021-79
Exhibit A

Page 1 of 2

$61,520,000
CITY OF ESCONDIDO

San Diego County, California
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015
(Fire, Police and Emergency Response Measure)

I, Christina Holmes, hereby certify that I am the Finance Director of the City of Escondido 
(the “City”), and as such I am authorized to execute this certificate on behalf of the City.

I hereby further certify that in connection with the City’s $61,520,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 (Fire, Police and Emergency Response Measure) the City Council 
has adopted the attached Resolution No. 2021-79 establishing the tax rate and fixed charge 
assessments for bonded indebtedness for 2021-22 and attached herewith is the summary for the 
calculation of the property tax rate for 2021-22. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this 21st day of July, 2021.

CITY OF ESCONDIDO

By:
 

Christina Holmes, Director of Finance



Resolution No. 2021-79
Exhibit A

Page 2 of 2

Delinquency FY 21-22
Rate at Tax Rate
3.00% Calculation

Resources Required:

Annual Debt Service Payments:
March 2022 1,265,375.00$       
September 2022 3,540,375.00

Total Required 4,805,750.00$   

Resources Available:

Cash as of June 30, 2021 4,559,596.75
Debt Service Payment, September 2021 (3,484,500.00)
Payment of Trustee Fees (1,000.00)
Consultant Fees (3,050.00)

Remaining Cash Resources after next Debt Service Payment 1,071,046.75
FY 20-21 Property Tax Revenue Apportionment #13,
  not yet recorded in G/L (estimated) 38,157.86

Total Resources Available for FY 21-22 Debt Service Payments 1,109,204.61

Net FY 21-22 Tax Revenues needed for Debt Service Requirement 3,696,545.39

Unsecured Calculation:

FY 21-22 Taxable Unsecured Assessed Valuation for the City -
  without Homeowners Exemptions 466,412,368.00
Delinquency Factor (13,992,371.04)

Estimated Net Collectible Unsecured Asssessed Valuation 452,419,996.96
FY 20-21 Tax Rate Per $100 of Net Assessed Value 0.023040

Total Unsecured times Tax Rate divided by $100 104,237.57

Total Remaining FY 21-22 Debt Service Coverage Requirement
  to be Levied against Secured Property 3,592,307.83$   

Secured Calculation:

FY 21-22 Taxable Secured Assessed Valuation for the City -
  without Homeowners Exemptions 17,931,895,126.00
Delinquency Factor (537,956,853.78)

Estimated Net Collectible Secured Asssessed Valuation 17,393,938,272.22

Net FY 21-22 Collectible Taxable Secured Assessed Valuation
  divided by $100

FY 21-22 Tax Rate per $100 of Net Assessed Value

$173,939,382.72 

0.02065

City of Escondido
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015

Calculation of Debt Service Requirements

Description

Fiscal Year 2021-22



Staff Report - Council

  Consent Item No.  9              July 21, 2021 File No. 0600-10, A-3374

SUBJECT: Amendment and Novation Agreement and Authorization to Examine Sales and 
Use Tax Records from the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-101, Authorizing the Examination of 
Sales and Use Tax Records, and approve the amendment and novation agreement with Municipal 
Resource Consultants and MuniServices, LLC.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

There is no financial impact associated with the consideration and adoption of this Resolution.  The 
Amendment and Novation agreement updates the records of the California Department of Tax and 
Fee Administration, and updates the authorized designated list of City employees by title that will be 
allowed to examine sales and use tax records of the California Department of Tax and Fee 
Administration.

BACKGROUND:

The State of California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 7056 authorizes the examination of 
confidential sales and use tax data to officers or employees of local jurisdictions who are designated 
by resolution of the legislative body of the jurisdiction. The review of confidential information is 
governed by state law and sets certain requirements and conditions for the disclosure of sales and 
use tax records. State law also establishes criminal penalties for the unlawful disclosure of sales and 
use tax information.

On September 26, 1973, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 73-47 allowing the City to contract 
with the State Board of Equalization, now the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration 
(“CDTFA”), to perform all functions incident to the administration and collection of sales and use 
taxes. 

On February 24, 1993, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 93-63 authorizing the examination of 
sales and use tax records by the City Manager or other officer or employee of the City as designated 
in writing by the City Manager to the State Board of Equalization.  The 1993 Resolution also 
authorized Municipal Resource Consultants, as a representative of the City, to examine confidential 
sales and use tax records.

Municipal Resource Consultants continues to provide services for the analysis and reporting of the 
City’s sales and use tax records collected for the City by the CDTFA.  Through acquisition, the 



Authorization to Examine Sales and Use Tax Records
July 21, 2021
Page 2

Municipal Resource Consultants company name has varied at times; however, MuniServices LLC is 
and always has been the registered legal entity for sales tax examination purposes. For that reason, 
the CDTFA issued a ruling that any contracts and/or resolutions that do not reference the company 
name of MuniServices LLC must be corrected. CDTFA Legal has agreed that this can be done with a 
contract novation agreement referencing the City’s existing contract, which they have approved.  

With the attached Amendment and Novation Agreement, the Assuming Party (MuniServices, LLC) 
becomes entitled to all rights, title, and interest of the Assigning Party (Municipal Resource 
Consultants). With City Council’s approval, this document will be forwarded to the CDTFA to be 
placed on record.

This adopting resolution further formalizes the following staff positions that have access to the data 
on behalf of the City and their ability to work with the CDTFA:

 Assistant City Manager
 Deputy City Manager
 City Attorney
 Director of Finance
 Deputy Director of Economic Development 

By listing the names in the resolution itself rather than authorizing position titles via letter of 
designation, the City’s permanent record includes all of the authorized titles which allows for ease of 
update and more accurate recordkeeping. The proposed resolution also authorizes the City Manager 
to send letters of designation should additional positions need to be authorized to examine records.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Christina Holmes, Director of Finance
07/14/21 4:44 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2021-101, Authorizing the Examination of Sales and Use Tax Records
2. Resolution No. 2021-101, Exhibit “A” – Amendment and Novation Agreement



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-101

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE EXAMINATION OF 
SALES AND USE TAX RECORDS

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance Number 73-47, the City of Escondido (“City”) 

entered into a contract with the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration to 

perform all functions incident to the administration and collection of sales and use 

taxes; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code section 7270, the City 

entered into a contract with the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration to 

perform all functions incident to the administration and collection of transactions and 

use taxes; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escondido deems it desirable and 

necessary for authorized officers, employees and representatives of the City to examine 

confidential sales or transactions and use tax records of the Department pertaining to 

sales and use taxes collected by the Department for the City pursuant to that contract; 

and

WHEREAS, Section 7056 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code  sets 

forth certain requirements and conditions for the disclosure of Department records, and 

Section 7056.5 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code establishes criminal 

penalties for the unlawful disclosure of information contained in, or derived from, the 

sales or transactions and use tax records of the Department.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the Assistant City Manager, Deputy City Manager, City Attorney, 

Director of Finance, and Deputy Director of Economic Development, or other officer or 

employee of the City designated in writing by the City Manager to the California 

Department of Tax and Fee Administration is hereby appointed to represent the City 

with authority to examine sales or transactions and use tax records of the Department 

pertaining to sales and use taxes  collected for the City by the Department pursuant to 

the contract between the City and the Department. 

3.   The information obtained by examination of Department records shall be 

used only for purposes related to the collection of  City sales and use taxes by the 

Department pursuant to that contract.

 4. That MuniServices, LLC is hereby designated to examine the sales or 

transactions and use tax records of the Department pertaining to sales and use taxes 

collected for the City by the Department. The person or entity designated by this section 

meets all of the following conditions, which are also included in the contract between 

the City and MuniServices, LLC:

a) has an existing contract with the City to examine those sales or transactions 

and use tax records;



b) is required by that contract to disclose information contained in, or derived 

from, those sales or transactions and use tax records only to the officer or 

employee authorized under Section 1 of this resolution to  examine the 

information.

c) is prohibited by that contract from performing consulting services for a retailer 

during the term of that contract;

d) is prohibited by that contract from retaining the information contained in, or 

derived from those sales or transactions and use tax records, after that 

contract has expired.

5.  That MuniServices, LLC is hereby designated to examine the sales or 

transactions and use tax records of the Department pertaining to any petition or appeal 

for the reallocation/redistribtuion of sales or transactions and use taxes that was filed by 

MuniServices, LLC on behalf of the City pursuant to the contract between the 

MuniServices, LLC and City.  The person or entity designated by this section meets all 

of the following conditions, which are also included in the contract between the City and 

the MuniServices, LLC.:

a) has an existing contract with the City to examine those sales or transactions 

and use tax records;

b) is required by that contract to disclose information contained in, or derived 

from, those sales or transactions and use tax records only to the officer or 

employee authorized under Section 1 of this resolution to  examine the 

information.



c) is prohibited by that contract from performing consulting services for a retailer 

during the term of that contract;

d) is prohibited by that contract from retaining the information contained in, or 

derived from those sales or transactions and use tax records, after that 

contract has expired.

6. That this resolution supercedes all prior resolutions of the City Council of 

the City of Escondido adopted pursuant to subdivision (b) of Revenue and Taxation 

Code section 7056.

7. That the Mayor is authorized to execute, on behalf of the City, an 

Amendment and Novation Agreement between Municipal Resource Consultants (the 

Assigning Party), and MuniServices, LLC (the Assuming Party), and the City of 

Escondido (the Remaining Party), which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A” 

and is incorporated by this reference.  



AMENDMENT AND NOVATION AGREEMENT AMONG 

MUNICIPAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS 

AND 

MUNISERVICES, LLC 

AND 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

THIS AMENDMENT AND NOVATION AGREEMENT (the "Novation") is made and 
entered into as of this ____ day of ________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and among 
Municipal Resource Consultants, a Delaware limited liability company with offices located 
at 5680 Trinity Parkway, Suite 120, Centreville, VA 20120 (the “Assigning Party”); 
MuniServices, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company with offices located at 5680 
Trinity Parkway, Suite 120, Centreville, VA 20120 (the “Assuming Party”); and the City of 
Escondido, a California municipal corporation with offices located at 201 North Broadway, 
Escondido, CA 92025 (“Remaining Party”).  The Assigning Party, Assuming Party, and 
Remaining Party are collectively referred to herein as the "Parties."  

THE PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1) The Parties intend that this Novation serves to amend that certain “Consulting
Agreement” between Assigning Party and Remaining Party entered into on
February 24, 1993 for professional services regarding the examination of sales
and use tax records (the “Agreement," attached hereto as Exhibit A).

2) The Assuming Party shall be substituted for the Assigning Party. The Remaining
Party recognizes Assuming Party as Assigning Party’s successor-in-interest in and
to the Agreement.  By this Agreement, the Assuming Party becomes entitled to all
rights, title, and interest, and is subject to all obligations, of the Assigning Party,
with respect to the Agreement as of and after the Effective Date. Remaining Party
and Assuming Party shall be bound by the terms of the Agreement in every way
as if Assuming Party is named in the novated Agreement in place of Assigning
Party as a party thereto.

3) This Novation may be executed on separate counterparts that, upon completion,
may be assembled into and shall be construed as one document.  Delivery of an
executed signature page of this Novation by electronic means, including an
attachment to an email, shall be effective as delivery of an executed original.

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 

Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 62



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Novation as of the 
Effective Date. 
  
  
 

ASSUMING PARTY 
 
MUNISERVICES, LLC 
 

  
 

By:____________________ 
 
Name:_________________ 
 
Title:___________________ 
 

 
 
  
 

 
ASSIGNING PARTY 
 
MUNICIPAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS 
 

  
 

By_____________________ 
 
Name:_____________________ 
 
Title:_______________________ 
 

 
  
 

REMAINING PARTY 
 
CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
 

  
 

By:_____________________ 
 
Name: Paul McNamara 
 
Title: Mayor 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 62



EXHIBIT A 

Assigned Agreement 

Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 10 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 11 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 12 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 13 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 14 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 15 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 16 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 17 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 18 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 19 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 20 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 21 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 22 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 23 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 24 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 25 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 26 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 27 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 28 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 29 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 30 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 31 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 32 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 33 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 34 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 35 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 36 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 37 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 38 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 39 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 40 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 41 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 42 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 43 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 44 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 45 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 46 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 47 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 48 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 49 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 50 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 51 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 52 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 53 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 54 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 55 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 56 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 57 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 58 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 59 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 60 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 61 of 62



Resolution No. 2021-101 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 62 of 62



Staff Report - Council

  Consent Item No. 10                July 21, 2021         File No. 1020-20

SUBJECT: Adoption of Specific Alignment Plan for Grand Avenue 

DEPARTMENT: Engineering Services Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2021-108, adopting a Specific Alignment 
Plan for Grand Avenue from Escondido Boulevard to Juniper Street, (PL21-0055).

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The estimated cost to implement the Grand Avenue Vision Plan (“Project”) between Escondido 
Boulevard and Juniper Street is $15 million.  SANDAG selected the City’s first phase for a $1,443,161 
Smart Growth Incentive Program Grant. $1.2 million in TransNet funds were budgeted as a match for 
this Project.  

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

A draft Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared for the Project pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act, and was available for public review and comment through July 12, 2021. 
The environmental document identified several mitigation measures to address and mitigate potentially 
significant project impacts to Noise and Cultural Resources to less than significant levels.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

A Specific Alignment Plan and Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the Project that narrows 
Grand Avenue to one (1) lane in each direction from Escondido Boulevard to Juniper Street, extends 
sidewalk and implements diagonal parking. 

The first phase of the Project includes the widening of sidewalk on the north-side of Grand Avenue 
between Maple Street and Broadway Avenue.  New light fixtures and festoon lighting are proposed 
between Maple Street and Kalmia Street along with removal of the medians.  Diagonal parking will be 
added on one side of the street between Escondido Boulevard and Juniper Street.  Temporary 
diagonal parking will be added on both sides of the street between Broadway Avenue and Kalmia 
Street until additional sidewalk widening is completed.  Future phases of the project will include the 
proposed roundabouts, additional sidewalk widening, lighting and other desirable features including 
virtual kiosks, public art, and gateway features as permitted by the budgeted.

The MND can be viewed on Project website that includes the plans: 
https://www.escondido.org/grand-avenue-vision-project.aspx



Specific Alignment Plan – Grand Avenue
July 21, 2021
Page 2

BACKGROUND:

In 2017, downtown merchants, property owners, residents and other key stakeholders came together 
to develop a vision to revitalize Escondido's historic Grand Avenue. Concept plans were developed 
and a public meeting was held on October 12, 2017, to receive community input on the concepts. The 
City Council approved the Project on February 14, 2018, and authorized staff to submit grant 
applications to SANDAG. The first phase of the Project was selected for funding and a Grant 
Agreement with SANDAG to partially fund phase I, was approved by the City Council on February 13, 
2019.  

A Consultant contract for design services was authorized by the City Council in August 2019. 
Downtown business owners, property owners, and key stakeholders provided input on elevation 
sketches and a concept plan in July 2020.  Survey respondents overwhelmingly supported the 
concepts offered, with 75% strongly agreeing or agreeing that the proposed improvements will add 
beauty and economic vitality to Grand Avenue.  The most popular features identified by the public 
have been incorporated into the project including string (or festoon) lighting, wider sidewalks and 
diagonal parking, which were identified as favorite features of 72%, 51% and 46% of respondents, 
respectively.

Economic Development and Engineering staff have met with each business owner and property 
owner that front the sidewalk expansion area (north side of Grand Avenue between Maple and 
Broadway).  Specific feedback from each was requested on the location of fencing to support outdoor 
dining.  Responses from the businesses and property owners was very supportive of the project and 
many businesses desire to expand outdoor dining areas.

GENERAL PLAN ANALYSIS:

Circulation Element – The Circulation Element of the Escondido General Plan classifies Grand 
Avenue as a Collector Road (84’/64’ right-of-way) with two (2) lanes in each direction.  The proposed 
project would narrow Grand Avenue to one (1) lane in each direction and re-purpose excess right of 
way for parking and wider sidewalks.  Anticipated traffic volumes can be accommodated within one 
(1) travel lane. The wider sidewalks and diagonal parking are designed to improve economic vitality of 
the downtown area.  

SUMMARY:
The Project design is complete and ready to release for public bid.  The City Council will be asked to 
award a construction contract in August 2021.  Construction is anticipated to occur over a three (3) month 
period beginning in Fall 2021.



Specific Alignment Plan – Grand Avenue
July 21, 2021
Page 3

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services
07/15/218:53 a.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2021-108
2. Exhibit A to Resolution No. 2021-108 Findings
3. Exhibit B to Resolution No. 2021-108 Specific Alignment Plan
4. Exhibit C to Resolution No. 2021-108 Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-108

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
APPROVING THE SPECIFIC ALIGNMENT 
PLAN AND ADOPTING A MITIGATED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE 
GRAND AVENUE VISION PLAN (PL21-0055) 

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) is the lead agency, pursuant to the 

California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code § 21000 et seq.) 

(“CEQA”) and the CEQA Guidelines (14 California Code of Regulations § 15000 et 

seq.), for the proposed Grand Avenue Vision Plan (“Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Project involves a Specific Alignment Plan for the narrowing of 

Grand Avenue from Escondido Boulevard to Juniper Street, widening of sidewalks, 

replacement and improvement of lighting and installation of diagonal parking and other 

streetscape improvements; and

WHEREAS, the City Council engaged an environmental consultant, Helix 

Environmental Planning, to evaluate the environmental impact of the proposed Project; 

and

WHEREAS, a Final Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration (“Final 

IS/MND”) has been prepared in compliance with all requirements contained in CEQA, 

the CEQA Guidelines, and Article 47 (Environmental Quality Regulations) of the 

Escondido Zoning Code.  Mitigation measures were developed to reduce potential 

impacts to cultural/tribal cultural resources and noise to less-than-significant levels; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered the information, 

findings, and conclusions contained in the Mitigated Negative Declaration and 

supporting documents.



           NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California on the basis of substantial evidence and based upon the whole 

record, as follows:

1. The above recitations are true. 

2. The Project will implement all mitigation measures identified in the Final 

IS/MND in order to reduce all potentially significant environmental impacts to a less-

than-significant level, in accordance with the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 

Program (“MMRP”) prepared for the Project.

3. After consideration of all evidence presented, and studies and 

investigations made by the City Council and on its behalf, the City Council makes the 

substantive findings and determinations, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” relating to the 

information that has been considered.  In accordance with the Findings of Fact and 

Factors to be Considered, and the foregoing, the City Council reached a decision on 

the matter as hereinafter set forth.

4. The Specific Alignment Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B” is subject to 

each and all of the mitigation measures set forth in Exhibit “C,” and MMRP.  

5. The Specific Alignment Plan and Final IS/MND for the Project are on file 

in the Planning Division of the Community Development Department and are available 

for inspection by anyone interested herein, and are incorporated herein by this 

reference as if fully set forth herein.  The Specific Alignment Plan is approved by the 

City Council as depicted in Exhibit “B.”

6. The Mitigated Negative Declaration was presented to the City Council on 

July 21, 2021 and considered by the City Council at its regularly scheduled meeting.



7. The Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared for the Project in 

compliance with the requirements of CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines and are 

adequate for the City of Escondido as the lead agency under CEQA.

8. Pursuant to the above findings, the City Council determines that the 

Mitigated Negative Declaration, satisfies all the requirements of CEQA and is adequate 

to serve as the required environmental documentation for the Project and, therefore, 

hereby approves and adopts the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the proposed 

modifications to the Project.



EXHIBIT “A” 
FINDINGS OF FACT 

PL21-0055 

Environmental Determination(s) 

1. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000
et. seq.) (“CEQA”), and its implementing regulations (Article 14 of the California Code of
Regulations, Section 15000 et. seq. (“CEQA Guidelines”), the City of Escondido is the Lead
Agency for the project (“Project”), as the public agency with the principal responsibility for
approving the Project.

2. An Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (“IS/MND”) for the Project was prepared,
published, circulated, and reviewed in accordance with the requirements of CEQA, the CEQA
Guidelines, and the local environmental procedures. The decision-making body of the Lead
Agency shall adopt the proposed IS/MND only if:

• It finds on the basis of the whole record before it that there is no substantial evidence the
project will have a significant effect on the environment, and

• The IS/MND reflects the Lead Agency's independent judgment and analysis.

3. The Final IS/MND and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (“MMRP”) collectively
constitute the environmental documentation under and pursuant to CEQA, the CEQA
Guidelines, and local environmental procedures relating to the Project, and shall be referred
to herein collectively as the "CEQA Documents."

4. The City Council has received the material record supporting all of the CEQA Documents for
the Project. The City Council finds the following:

 The Final IS/MND reflects the City’s independent judgment and analysis.
 There is no substantial evidence that the Project or any of its aspects could result in

significant adverse impacts or that cannot be fully mitigated.  All previously identified
impacts have been mitigated to a less-than-significant level.

 The City Council also finds that the mitigation measures listed in the MND will not cause
any potentially significant effects.

 The Final IS/MND has been completed in compliance with CEQA and it constitutes a
complete, accurate, adequate, and good faith effort at full disclosure under CEQA.

5. Mitigation measures are recommended to be incorporated as part of the adoption of the
Mitigated Negative Declaration. The recommended approval of the Project also includes the
adoption of the MMRP, attached as Exhibit C to the Resolution.

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 2



 
6. Pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21081.6(a)(2) and CEQA Guidelines Section 

15091(e), all documents and other materials that constitute the record of proceedings are 
located at the City of Escondido, City Civic Center.  The City Clerk, whose office is located at 
201 North Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025, is hereby designated as the custodian of the 
documents and other materials that constitute the record of proceedings upon which the 
Planning Commission’s decision is based.  Such documents and materials shall be available 
for public inspection and copying in accordance with the provisions of the California Public 
Records Act. 

 
Specific Alignment Plan Determinations – Grand Avenue: 
 
1. Grand Avenue between Escondido Boulevard and Juniper Street is classified as a Collector 

Street on the Circulation Diagram contained in the Mobility and Infrastructure Element of the 
Escondido General Plan. It is currently built with two lanes in each direction, a center median 
and on-street parking on both sides. As a result of the proposed Project, it has been 
determined that special conditions exist which require a detailed implementation plan for the 
roadway. 
 

2. It is desirable to provide wider sidewalks to accommodate downtown events and expand 
outdoor dining opportunities.  The addition of convenient diagonal parking is also desirable to 
support the economic vitality of downtown businesses.  The Project would support these 
changes by narrowing Grand Avenue to one lane in each direction.  It would also include mini-
roundabouts and bulb-outs where Grand Avenue intersects Maple, Broadway and Kalmia 
which would serve the dual purpose of slowing traffic through the project area, and providing 
pedestrian plazas that could accommodate outside seating, public art, and gateway features.  

 
3. The impacts to other roadways in the Project vicinity resulting from the proposed modifications 

to Grand Avenue have been analyzed as part of the Traffic Impact Analysis prepared for the 
Project (Kimley Horn, June 2021). No significant impacts will result from the proposed 
modification.  This segment of Grand Avenue would still maintain adequate capacity to 
accommodate the anticipated ADT at General Plan build-out (Year 2035) (Kimley Horn, June 
2021).  

 
4. Since the requested reclassification of Grand Avenue would be limited to a short, four-block 

segment, the SAP addresses the transition of the segment to the Collector Street segment at 
each end of the Project. 

 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 2



GRAND AVENUE VISION PLAN: SPECIFIC ALIGNMENT PLAN 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Specific Alignment Plan for the 0.4-mile segment of Grand Avenue between 

Escondido Boulevard and Juniper Street realizes the community’s vision for an activated, 

pedestrian friendly, historic downtown.  Wider sidewalks and convenient diagonal 

parking on one side of the street are incorporated through narrowing of vehicular travel 

to one lane in each direction.  To shorten pedestrian crossing distances and calm traffic, 

the project includes mini-roundabouts at three locations (Maple Street, Broadway, and 

Kalmia Street), installs curb bulb-outs 

at key locations and removes center 

medians. Green Street elements such 

as green gutters, preservation of tree 

canopy and additional landscaping 

are included where feasible. 

Streetscape improvements, such as 

colored scored concrete, 

ornamental street lights, festoon 

lighting, sidewalk etchings, public art 

features, and gateway features are 

included in the plan. 

The project supports realignment of 

North County Transit District (NCTD) Breeze bus routes 351 and 352 with bus stop amenities. 

Route 351 is rerouted along South Quince Street and West 2nd Avenue, and Route 352 is 

rerouted along West Valley Parkway and Juniper Street. Two new bus shelters and 

benches are to be installed at existing bus stops within the right of way along Second 

Avenue and Valley Parkway to support consolidation of these existing stops and to meet 

NCTD amenity standards for the combined ridership.  

Typical Cross-Section 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "B" 

Page 1 of 5



VISION PLAN 

The Vision Plan was formed through several visioning meetings with downtown 

stakeholders, a community survey and two public workshops.  The City Council adopted 

the Vision Plan on February 14, 2018 and approved the Grant Agreement to complete 

environmental clearance and Phase I on February 13, 2019. 

 

 

STREETSCAPE FEATURES 

• Mini-Roundabouts 

• Ornamental Street 

Lights  

• Festoon Lighting 

• Gateways 

• Digital 

Kiosk/Wayfinding 

• Public Art 

• Lighting 

• Fencing 

• Concrete 

• Sidewalk Etching 

 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "B" 

Page 2 of 5



DESIGN REVIEW 

 

The Historic Preservation Commission, Downtown Business Association and Public Art 

Commission provided recommendations on aesthetic components of the design, 

including ornamental street lighting, fencing and sidewalk treatments.  After considering 

all feedback, the final treatments approved by the Zoning Administrator are as follows: 

Concrete with two 

different scoring patterns 

and colors, include a 

natural grey and a tan 

color.  The larger grey 

concrete scoring pattern 

is used within outdoor 

dining spaces to 

facilitate cleaning.  

 

 

Based on the recommendation of the Historic 

Preservation Commission, unadorned fencing is 

used as appropriate for the historic downtown.  This 

selection will also provide for easy replacement and 

matching for future business owners, as outdoor 

dining spaces evolve over time. 

 

Acorn-style lighting in a color and style to match existing ornamental 

lights in Maple Plaza is used.  Taller light standards (22-feet tall) will 

replace the existing pedestrian lights and will serve as mounting points 

for banner poles, hanging baskets and for the festoon lighting that will 

be installed across Grand Avenue.  

Etchings will be incorporated into 

the sidewalk within the scoring 

pattern.  The History Center has 

provided a list of interesting facts 

about Escondido’s history that will 

serve as the basis for these 

etchings. 

 

 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "B" 

Page 3 of 5



 

ADDITIONAL STREETSCAPE COMPONENTS 

The Vision Plan creates widened sidewalk areas that provide opportunities to install 

additional streetscape components, including digital kiosks for wayfinding, gateway 

signage and other public art opportunities.  Art components will be selected by the 

appropriate body, such as the Public Art Commission or City Council, in advance of their 

installation. 

 

PROJECT PHASING 

Phase I includes wider sidewalks on one side of the street between Maple Street and 

Broadway to improve walkability and expand outdoor dining areas. Ornamental street 

lights and festoon lighting are installed between Maple St. and Kalmia St. in the first phase 

with median removal along these two blocks.  Re-striping between Escondido Blvd. and 

Juniper St. is completed adding diagonal parking on one side of the street.  Diagonal 

parking is added on both sides of the street on an interim basis between Broadway and 

Kalmia St., until sidewalk widening can be accomplished on this block. 

Future phases include wider sidewalks on both sides of the street and completion of the 

three proposed mini-roundabouts. Ornamental and festoon lighting is to be added on 

the remaining blocks with median removal in these areas.  The roundabout at Broadway 

is anticipated to be completed in the earlier phases of implementation, since this support 

elimination of the turn-lanes and median that is required to accommodate sidewalk 

expansion on both sides of the street.  Additional pop-outs of sidewalk into parking areas 

could be considered to accommodate higher demands for outdoor dining or to further 

activate the street.  Figure 1 shows completion of the first phase with the locations of 

future roundabouts shown in blue. 

Completion of the first phase is budgeted and planned to be completed during late 

2021.  Future phases will be completed based on funding allocated to the project. 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "B" 

Page 4 of 5



Grand Avenue Vision Project
I:\

PR
O

JE
CT

S\
K\

KH
A\

KH
A-

39
_G

ra
nd

Av
e\

M
ap

\I
SM

N
D\

Fi
g3

_S
ite

Pl
an

.in
dd

   
KH

A-
39

  1
2/

17
/2

02
0 

- S
AB

Project Site Plan

Source: Kimley-Horn (2020)

GRAND AVENUE

ES
C

O
N

D
ID

O
BO

U
LE

VA
R

D

GRAND AVENUE

M
AP

LE
ST

R
EE

T

BR
O

AD
W

AY

GRAND AVENUE GRAND AVENUE

JU
N

IP
ER

ST
R

EE
T

KA
LM

IA
ST

R
EE

T

NORTH

LEGEND

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
- S

EE
 B

EL
O

W
 L

EF
T

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
- S

EE
 A

BO
VE

 R
IG

H
T

GRAND AVENUE VISION PROJECT
30% CONCEPT PLAN     

MAY 2020
K:\SND_MUNI\095293015 - Grand Avenue Vision\Design\Exhibits\2020.02.06 - Updated Layout\InDesign\Grand Avenue Vision - 30% Design Layout.indd

0’ 40’ 80’

SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT/EXPANSION

Figure 1

GRAND AVENUE VISION PLAN | Specific Alignment Plan

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "B" 

Page 5 of 5



MITIGATION MONITORING REPORTING PROGRAM 
PROJECT NAME:   Grand Avenue Vision Project 
CITY FILE NO.  PL 21-0055  
APPROVAL BODY: Escondido City Council 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The complete project corridor encompasses a 0.4-mile segment of Grand Avenue between Escondido 
Boulevard and Juniper Street and would include mini-roundabouts at three locations (Maple Street, Broadway, and Kalmia Street), 
streetscape improvements, public art features, narrowing of Grand Avenue to one lane in each direction and using the excess width 
to create wider sidewalks, and diagonal parking on one side of the street resulting in increased on-street parking. Other project 
features include: 

• Installation of curb bulb-outs at key locations and a wider sidewalk. Phase I includes wider sidewalks on one side of the street
between Maple Street and Broadway to improve walkability and comply with American Disability Act standards. Future
phases will include wider sidewalk on both sides of the street between Juniper Street and Escondido Boulevard.

• Removal of medians and restripe Grand Avenue to add diagonal parking between Escondido Boulevard and Juniper Street.

• Traffic signal modifications at the intersections of Escondido Boulevard and Juniper Street

• Preservation of existing trees, where feasible, and installation of trees and other landscaping.

• Installation of wayfinding signage and entry features to support first and last-mile trips.

• Installation of ornamental lights.

The project also proposes to realign North County Transit District Breeze bus routes 351 and 352 that currently traverse the project 
corridor. Route 351 would be rerouted along South Quince Street and West 2nd Avenue, and Route 352 would be rerouted along 
East and West Valley Parkway and Juniper Street. Existing bus stops along Grand Avenue within the project corridor would be 
removed. With the realigned bus routes, the total distance of Route 351 would slightly increase by 0.01 mile and Route 352 would be 
the same distance. Two new bus shelters and benches would be installed at existing bus stops within the right of way along Second 
Avenue and Valley Parkway. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 1 of 14



PROJECT LOCATION: The proposed project is located City of Escondido along a 0.4-mile segment of Grand Avenue between 
Escondido Boulevard and Juniper Street in the Downtown Historic District. 

PROJECT MANAGER:     Jonathan Schauble, Principal Engineer CIP 
PHONE NUMBER:     
EMAIL:  

(760) 839-4072 
jschauble@escondido.org

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 2 of 14



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the  
Grand Avenue Vision Project 

Mitigated Negative Declaration/Initial Study Environmental Checklist 
Project No. PL 21-0055 

The City of Escondido adopts this Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) in accordance with Public 
Resources Code (PRC) Section 21081.6 and Section 15097 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 
The purpose of the MMRP is to ensure that the Grand Avenue Vision Project (proposed project), which is the subject of the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) and Initial Study Environmental Checklist, complies with all applicable environmental 
mitigation requirements. The mitigation described in the MND and summarized below provides a broad purpose and 
overview of actions that will occur in order to reduce identified environmental impacts.  

For each project that is subject to CEQA, PRC Section 21081.6 requires the Lead Agency to monitor performance of the 
mitigation measures included in any environmental document to ensure that the specified mitigation is implemented. The 
City of Escondido is the designated Lead Agency for the proposed project. The City is responsible for review of all monitoring 
reports, enforcement actions, and document disposition related to implementation of the MMRP.  

After review and approval by the Lead Agency, minor changes to the MMRP are permitted but can only be made by the 
City of Escondido. No deviations from this MMRP shall be permitted unless it continues to satisfy the requirements of PRC 
Section 21081.6, as determined by the City of Escondido.  

The organization of the MMRP follows the subsection formatting style presented within the MND and Initial Study 
Environmental Checklist. Only those subsections of the environmental issues presented in the Initial Study Environmental 
Checklist that have mitigation measures are provided below in the MMRP table. All other subsections do not contain 
mitigation measures. For each mitigation measure, the MMRP table identifies the following: 1) mitigation measure, 
2) implementation action, 3) responsible agency/party, 4) monitoring schedule, and 5) verification date.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 3 of 14



MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
Cultural Resources 
CUL-1: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, 
the Applicant shall enter into a Tribal Cultural 
Resource Treatment and Monitoring Agreement 
(also known as a Pre-Excavation Agreement) with 
a tribe that is traditionally and culturally affiliated 
with the Project Location (“TCA Tribe”). The 
purposes of the agreement are (1) to provide the 
Applicant with clear expectations regarding tribal 
cultural resources, and (2) to formalize protocols 
and procedures between the Applicant/Owner and 
the TCA Tribe for the protection and treatment of, 
including but not limited to, Native American 
human remains, funerary objects, cultural and 
religious landscapes, ceremonial items, traditional 
gathering areas and cultural items, located and/or 
discovered through a monitoring program in 
conjunction with the construction of the Project, 
including additional archaeological surveys and/or 
studies, excavations, geotechnical investigations, 
grading, and all other ground-disturbing activities. 
The agreement shall incorporate, at a minimum, 
the performance criteria and standards, protocols, 
and procedures set forth in mitigation measures 
CR-2 through CR-10, and the following 
information: 

• Parties entering into the agreement and 
contact information. 

• Responsibilities of the Property Owner or 
their representative, archaeological 
monitors, and tribal monitors.  

 

• Applicant should enter into 
a Tribal Cultural Resource 
Treatment and Monitoring 
Agreement. 

Applicant; City of 
Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division 

X    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 4 of 14



Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
• Project grading and development 

scheduling, including determination of 
authority to adjust in the event of 
unexpected discovery, and terms of 
compensation for the monitors, including 
overtime and weekend rates, in addition 
to mileage reimbursement. 

• Requirements in the event of 
unanticipated discoveries, which shall 
address grading and grubbing 
requirements including controlled grading 
and controlled vegetation removal in 
areas of cultural sensitivity, analysis of 
identified cultural materials, and on-site 
storage of cultural materials. 

• Treatment of identified Native American 
cultural materials. 

• Treatment of Native American human 
remains and associated grave goods. 

• Confidentiality of cultural information 
including location and data. 

• Negotiation of disagreements should they 
arise. 

• Regulations that apply to cultural 
resources that have been identified or 
may be identified during project 
construction. 

CUL-2: Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the 
Applicant shall provide written verification to the 
City that a qualified archaeologist and a Native 
American monitor associated with a TCA Tribe 

• Require verification and 
approval of qualified 
archaeologist. 

Applicant; City of 
Escondido 
Community 

Development 

X    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 5 of 14



Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
have been retained to implement the monitoring 
program. The archaeologist shall be responsible 
for coordinating with the Native American monitor. 
This verification shall be presented to the City in a 
letter from the Project archaeologist that confirms 
the selected Native American monitor is 
associated with a TCA Tribe. The City, prior to 
any pre-construction meeting, shall approve all 
persons involved in the monitoring program. 

Department 
Planning Division 

CUL-3: The qualified archaeologist and a Native 
American monitor shall attend all applicable pre-
construction meetings with the General Contractor 
and/or associated subcontractors to explain and 
coordinate the requirements of the monitoring 
program. 

• Require monitoring
program coordination.

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Qualified 

Archaeologist; 
Grading Contractor 

X 

CUL-4: During the initial grubbing, site grading, 
excavation or disturbance of the ground surface 
(including both on- and off-site improvement 
areas), the qualified archaeologist and the Native 
American monitor shall be present full-time. If the 
full-time monitoring reveals that the top soil 
throughout the Project impact area (both on and 
off-site) has been previously removed during the 
development of the roads and buildings within the 
Project area, then a decrease of monitoring to 
part-time monitoring or the termination of 
monitoring can be implemented, as deemed 
appropriate by the qualified archaeologist in 
consultation with the Native American monitor. 
The frequency of subsequent monitoring shall 
depend on the rate of excavation, the materials 
excavated, and any discoveries of tribal cultural 
resources as defined in California Public 
Resources Code Section 21074. The qualified 
archaeologist, in consultation with the Native 
American monitor, shall be responsible for 
determining the duration and frequency of 
monitoring considering these factors. 

• Require on-site
archaeological monitor and
Native American Monitor.

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Archaeological 
Monitor; Field 
Engineering 

Division 

X 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 6 of 14



Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
Archaeological and Native American monitoring 
will be discontinued when the depth of grading 
and soil conditions no longer retain the potential to 
contain cultural deposits (i.e., soil conditions are 
comprised solely of fill or granitic bedrock). 
CUL-5: In the event that previously unidentified 
tribal cultural resources are discovered, all work 
must halt within a 100-foot radius of the discovery. 
The qualified archaeologist and the Native 
American monitor shall evaluate the significance 
of the find and shall have the authority to modify 
the no-work radius as appropriate, using 
professional judgment. The qualified archaeologist 
and Native American Monitor shall consider the 
criteria identified by California Public Resources 
Code sections 21083.2(g) and 21074, and CEQA 
Guidelines sections 15064 and 15064.5(c) in 
determining the significance of a discovered 
resource. If the professional archaeologist and 
Native American monitor determine that the find 
does not represent a culturally significant 
resource, work may resume immediately, and no 
agency notifications are required. Isolates and 
clearly non-significant deposits shall be 
documented in the field and collected, and 
monitored grading can immediately proceed. 

• Require identification and
preservation of any
unidentified cultural
resources.

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Project 

Archaeologist; 
County Coroner; 
Native American 

Monitor 

X 

CUL-6: If the qualified archaeologist and Native 
American monitor determine that the find does 
represent a potentially significant tribal cultural 
resource, considering the criteria identified by 
California Public Resources Code sections 
21083.2(g) and 21074, and CEQA Guidelines 
sections 15064 and 15064.5(c), the archaeologist 
shall immediately notify the City of said discovery. 
The qualified archaeologist, in consultation with 
the City, the consulting TCA Tribe(s), and the 
Native American monitor, shall determine the 
significance of the discovered resource. A 
recommendation for the tribal cultural resource’s 
treatment and disposition shall be made by the 

• Require identification and
preservation of any
significant tribal resource.

• Consultation with Native
American Monitor.

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Project 

Archaeologist; 
Native American 

Monitor; TCA Tribe 

X 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 7 of 14



Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
qualified archaeologist in consultation with the 
TCA Tribe(s) and the Native American monitor 
and be submitted to the City for review and 
approval. If the find is determined to be a Tribal 
Cultural Resource under CEQA, as defined in 
California Public Resources Code 
Section 21074(a) though (c), appropriate 
treatment measures will be implemented. Work 
may not resume within the no-work radius until the 
City, through consultation as set forth herein, 
determines either that: 1) the discovery does not 
constitute a Tribal Cultural Resource under 
CEQA, as defined in California Public Resources 
Code Section 21074(a) through (c); or 2) the 
approved treatment and disposition measures 
have been completed. 
CUL-7: All sacred sites, significant tribal cultural 
resources, and unique archaeological resources 
encountered within the Project area shall be 
avoided and preserved as the preferred 
mitigation. The avoidance and preservation of the 
significant tribal cultural resource or unique 
archaeological resource must first be considered 
and evaluated in consultation with the TCA 
Tribe(s) as required by CEQA and in compliance 
with all relevant mitigation measures for the 
Project. If any significant tribal cultural resource or 
unique archaeological resource has been 
discovered and such avoidance or preservation 
measure has been deemed to be infeasible by the 
City’s Director of Community Development (after a 
recommendation is provided by the qualified 
archaeologist, in consultation with the TCA 
Tribe(s) and Native American monitor, making a 
determination of infeasibility that takes into 
account the factors listed in California Public 
Resources Code sections 21061.1, 21081(a)(3), 
and CEQA Guidelines section 15091, and in 
accordance with all relevant mitigation measures 
for the Project), then culturally appropriate 

• Require research design
and data recovery
program.

• Consultation with Native
American Monitor.

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Project 

Archaeologist; 
TCA Tribe 

X 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 8 of 14



Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
treatment of those resources, including but not 
limited to funding an ethnographic or ethnohistoric 
study of the resource(s), and/or developing a 
research design and data recovery program to 
mitigate impacts shall be prepared by the qualified 
archaeologist (using professional archaeological 
methods), in consultation with the TCA Tribe and 
the Native American monitor, and shall be subject 
to approval by the City. No artifact sampling for 
analysis is allowed, unless approved by the 
consulting TCA Tribe(s). Before construction 
activities are allowed to resume in the affected 
area, the research design and data recovery 
program activities must be concluded to the 
satisfaction of the City 
CUL-8:  As specified by California Health and 
Safety Code section 7050.5, if human remains are 
found on the Project site during construction or 
during archaeological work, the person 
responsible for the excavation, or his or her 
authorized representative, shall immediately notify 
the San Diego County Coroner’s office. 
Determination of whether the remains are human 
shall be conducted on site and in situ where they 
were discovered by a forensic anthropologist, 
unless the forensic anthropologist and the Native 
American monitor agree to remove the remains to 
a temporary off-site location for examination. No 
further excavation or disturbance of the site or any 
nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie 
adjacent remains shall occur until the Coroner has 
made the necessary findings as to origin and 
disposition. A temporary construction exclusion 
zone shall be established surrounding the area of 
the discovery so that the area would be protected, 
and consultation and treatment could occur as 
prescribed by law. If the Coroner determines the 
remains are Native American and not the result of 
a crime scene, the Coroner will notify the NAHC, 
which then will designate a Native American Most 

• Require identification and
preservation of any
undiscovered cultural
resources or human
remains.

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Project 

Archaeologist; 
County Coroner 

X 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 9 of 14



Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
Likely Descendant (MLD) for the project 
(California Public Resources Code § 5097.98) for 
proper treatment and disposition in accordance 
with California Public Resources Code section 
5097.98. The designated MLD will have 48 hours 
from the time access to the property is granted to 
make recommendations concerning treatment of 
the remains. If the City does not agree with the 
recommendations of the MLD, the NAHC can 
mediate (California Public Resources Code § 
5097.94). If no agreement is reached, the remains 
shall be kept in situ, or reburied in a secure 
location in close proximity to where they were 
found and where they will not be further disturbed 
(California Public Resources Code § 5097.98). 
Work may not resume within the no work radius 
until the lead agency, through consultation as 
appropriate, determines that the treatment 
measures have been completed to their 
satisfaction. The analysis of the remains shall only 
occur on site in the presence of the MLD, unless 
the forensic anthropologist and the MLD agree to 
remove the remains to an off-site location for 
examination. 
CUL-9: If the qualified archaeologist elects to 
collect any tribal cultural resources, the Native 
American monitor must be present during any 
cataloging of those resources. Moreover, if the 
qualified archaeologist does not collect the 
cultural resources that are unearthed during the 
ground-disturbing activities, the Native American 
monitor may, at their discretion, collect said 
resources for later reburial on the Project site or 
storage at a local curation facility. Any tribal 
cultural resources collected by the qualified 
archaeologist shall be repatriated to the TCA 
Tribe for reburial on the Project site. Should the 
TCA Tribe(s) decline the collection, the collection 
shall be curated at the San Diego Archaeological 
Center. All other resources determined by the 

• Require that a Native 
American monitor is 
present during any testing 
or cataloging.  

• Any tribal cultural 
resources collected by the 
qualified archaeologist 
shall be repatriated to the 
TCA Tribe.  

• Any tribal cultural 
resources collected by the 
qualified archaeologist that 
are denied collection by the 
TCA Tribe shall be curated 
at the San Diego 
Archaeological Center.  

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Project 

Archaeologist 

 X X  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 10 of 14



Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
qualified archaeologist, in consultation with the 
Native American monitor, to not be tribal cultural 
resources, shall be curated at the San Diego 
Archaeological Center. 

• Any resource determined
not to be a tribal cultural
resource shall be curated
at the San Diego
Archaeological Center.

CUL-10: Prior to the release of the grading bond, 
a monitoring report and/or evaluation report, if 
appropriate, that describes the results, analysis, 
and conclusions of the archaeological monitoring 
program and any data recovery program on the 
Project site, shall be submitted by the qualified 
archaeologist to the City. The Native American 
monitor shall be responsible for providing any 
notes or comments to the qualified archaeologist 
in a timely manner to be submitted with the report. 
The report will include California Department of 
Parks and Recreation Primary and Archaeological 
Site Forms for any newly discovered resources. A 
copy of the final report will be submitted to the 
South Coastal Information Center after approval 
by the City. 

• Require documentation of
analysis and data by the
qualified archaeologist.

• Consultation with Native
American Monitor.

Qualified 
Archaeologist; 

Native American 
Monitor 

X 

Noise 
NOI-1: Noise from project construction activities 
shall comply with the thresholds and hours 
specified by the City of Escondido. Construction 
shall only occur between the hours of 7:00 a.m. 
and 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and on 
Saturdays between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 
5:00 p.m. Construction noise shall not exceed 75 
dBA LEQ (one hour) unless a variance has been 
obtained in advance from the City.  

Appropriate measures to reduce construction 
noise shall be implemented may include, but not 
be limited to, the following: 

• Construction equipment shall be properly
outfitted and maintained with

• Require incorporation of
construction noise
minimization measures.

City of Escondido/
Engineering Division 

X 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 11 of 14



Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
manufacturer-recommended noise-
reduction devices. 

• Diesel equipment shall be operated with 
closed engine doors and equipped with 
factory-recommended mufflers. 

• Mobile or fixed “package” equipment 
(e.g., arc welders and air compressors) 
shall be equipped with shrouds and noise 
control features that are readily available 
for that type of equipment. 

• Electrically powered equipment shall be 
used instead of pneumatic or internal‐
combustion powered equipment, where 
feasible. 

• Unnecessary idling of internal combustion 
engines (e.g., in excess of 5 minutes) 
shall be prohibited. 

• The use of noise‐producing signals, 
including horns, whistles, alarms, and 
bells, shall be for safety warning 
purposes only. 

• No project‐related public address or 
music system shall be audible at any 
adjacent sensitive receptor.  

• Any truck or equipment equipped with 
back-up alarm moving within 300 feet of a 
noise-sensitive land use should have the 
normal back-up alarm disengaged and 
safety provided by lights and flagman or 
broad-spectrum noise backup alarm (as 
appropriate for conditions) used in 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 12 of 14



Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
compliance with the Occupational Safety 
and Health Administration safety 
guidelines. 

• Work should be scheduled to avoid
impacts to noise-sensitive receptors,
such scheduling demolition activities
outside of school hours. If noise
generating work cannot be scheduled to
avoid impacts, temporary sound barriers
or sound blankets shall be installed
between construction operations and
adjacent noise-sensitive land uses.
Where required, the project Contractor
shall construct a temporary noise barrier
at least 6 feet in height meeting the
specifications listed below (or of a Sound
Transmission Class [STC] 19 rating or
better) to attenuate noise. Barriers shall
exceed the height of the project
equipment’s noise-generating
components.

• If a temporary barrier is used, all barriers
shall be solid and constructed of wood,
plastic, fiberglass, steel, masonry, or a
combination of those materials, with no
cracks or gaps through or below the wall.
Any seams or cracks must be filled or
caulked. If wood is used, it can be tongue
and groove or close butted seams and
must be at least ¾-inch thick or have a
surface density of at least 3.5 pounds per
square-foot. Sheet metal of 18-gauge
(minimum) may be used if it meets the
other criteria and is properly supported
and stiffened so that it does not rattle or
create noise itself from vibration or wind.
Noise blankets, hoods, or covers also

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 13 of 14



Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
may be used, provided they are 
appropriately implemented to provide the 
required sound attenuation.  

• The on-site construction supervisor shall
have the responsibility and authority to
receive and resolve noise complaints. A
clear appeal process shall be established
prior to construction commencement to
allow for resolution of noise problems that
cannot be immediately solved by the site
supervisor.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-108 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 14 of 14



Staff Report - Council

 Consent Item No. 11              July 21, 2021 File No. 0470-25

SUBJECT: Procurement of Street Light Poles, Fixtures and String Lighting for the Grand 
Avenue Vision Project - Phase 1

DEPARTMENT: Engineering Services Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-104 authorizing the City Manager to 
issue a Purchase Order to procure twenty-four (24) street light poles, LED light fixtures, and 
associated string “Market Style” lighting for the first phase of the Grand Avenue Vision Project 
(“Project”).

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The Project is funded with a SANDAG Smart Growth Incentive Program Grant in the amount of 
$1,443,161 and TransNet funding in the amount of $1,100,000.  The street light package is estimated 
to cost $450,000 and is included in the Project budget.

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

On February 13, 2019, the City Council approved the grant agreement and budgeted grant-matching 
funds to implement the first phase of the Project.  The City Council authorized a Consulting 
Agreement for Design on August 21, 2019.

On February 10, 2021, staff provided a presentation on the status of the Project.

BACKGROUND:

In 2017, downtown merchants, property owners, residents and other key stakeholders came together 
to develop a vision to revitalize Escondido's historic Grand Avenue. Concept plans were developed 
and a public meeting was held on October 12, 2017 to receive community input on the concepts. The 
City Council approved the Grand Avenue Vision Plan on February 14, 2018, and authorized staff to 
submit grant applications to SANDAG. The cost to implement the full Vision Plan is estimated at $15-
million.  This is a phased project that will occur over several years as funding becomes available.



Procurement of Street Light Poles, Fixtures, and String Lighting for the Grand Avenue Vision Project
July 21, 2021
Page 2

SANDAG selected the first phase of the Project to receive funding.  The project includes the following 
components:

Narrowing of Grand Avenue to one (1) lane in each direction between Escondido and 
Juniper, and restriping of parking lanes to include diagonal parking on at least one (1) side 
of the street.

Extension of the sidewalk on the north side of the street between Maple and Broadway to 
expand outdoor dining opportunities and increase walkable space.

Installation of new street lighting between Maple and Kalmia, and removal of the medians.

The Project design was presented to the Public Art Commission, Historic Preservation Commission 
and Downtown Business Association Board in February and March 2021.  Input from these groups 
and a July 2020 community survey was incorporated into the final design documents.  The light 
fixtures selected are an acorn style light to match those in Maple Plaza.  The lights will be equipped 
with mounting brackets for banners and hanging baskets.  In addition, the light standards will serve 
as a mounting point for the market style lighting that will crisscross Grand Avenue.  The design of the 
lights is shown in Attachment “1” to the staff report.

Early procurement for the street lighting package is recommended because the lights are specially 
fabricated and require special design to support the market lighting.  By completing design of the 
poles with the selected vendor in advance, the estimated 12-week time necessary to fabricate the 
poles can run concurrently with bidding, contract award and mobilization for the construction 
contract.  

The Project design is complete and ready to release for public bid.  The City Council will be asked to 
award a construction contract in August 2021.  Construction is anticipated to occur over a three-month 
period beginning in Fall 2021.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services
07/15/21 8:53 a.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Attachment “1” – Street Light Design
2. Resolution No. 2021-104



P21-0004         GRAND AVENUE VISION PROJECT

RECORD DRAWING

PRINT ENGINEER'S NAME DATER.C.E. _________

City of Choice

CITY PROJECT NO.
ENG. 21-0011

City of Choice
PRELIM

IN
ARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTIO
N

100% SUBMITTAL
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

KIMLEY-HORN

401 B STREET, STE. 600

602.371.4538
SAN DIEGO, CA 92101

MICHAEL A. COLOMBO

J NTS

TYPICAL PULL BOX LAYOUT AND CONNECTION TO THEME COLUMN DETAILI NTS

FESTOON LIGHTING CONNECTION SUPPORT TO POLE DETAILF NTS

FESTOON LIGHTING WIRE ROPE ASSEMBLY DETAILH NTS

STREET LIGHTING POLE WITH FESTOON LIGHTING  DETAILG NTS

ELECTRICAL AND LIGHTING DETAILS

TRENCH DETAIL- NARROW TRENCH BACKFILL PER CITY OF ESCONDIDO
STANDARD DRAWING G-2-E

Attachment "1"



LEGEND:

GRAND AVENUE

N
 B

R
O

AD
W

AY

S 
BR

O
AD

W
AY

S 
M

AP
LE

ST
R

EE
T

M
AP

LE
 S

TR
EE

T 
PL

AZ
A

GRAND AVENUE

S 
KA

LM
IA

ST
R

EE
T

S 
KA

LM
IA

ST
R

EE
T

P21-0004         GRAND AVENUE VISION PROJECT

RECORD DRAWING

PRINT ENGINEER'S NAME DATER.C.E. _________

City of Choice

CITY PROJECT NO.
ENG. 21-0011

City of Choice
PRELIM

IN
ARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTIO
N

100% SUBMITTAL
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

KIMLEY-HORN

401 B STREET, STE. 600

602.371.4538
SAN DIEGO, CA 92101

MICHAEL A. COLOMBO

ELECTRICAL AND LIGHTING PLAN

NORTH

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
ST

A.
 1

12
+2

0 
 S

EE
 B

EL
O

W
 L

EF
T

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
ST

A.
 1

12
+2

0 
 S

EE
 A

BO
VE

 R
IG

H
T

ELECTRICAL NOTES

CONDUIT SCHEDULE

Attachment "1"



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-104

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ISSUE A PURCHASE ORDER TO PROCURE 
STREET LIGHT POLES, LED FIXTURES, AND 
STRING LIGHTING FOR THE GRAND 
AVENUE VISION PROJECT – PHASE 1.

WHEREAS, on February 13, 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2019-

33, authorizing the City Manager to execute a SANDAG Smart Growth Incentive Program 

(“SGIP”) Grant Agreement for the Grand Avenue Streetscape Improvement Project – 

Phase 1. A Budget Adjustment in the amount of $2,543,161 was approved to accept 

$1,443,161 grant funds with an additional  $1,100,000 in matching funds; and

WHEREAS, on August 21, 2019, the City Council authorized a Consutling 

Agreement for Design; and

WHEREAS, on February 10, 2021, the City Council heard a presentation on the 

status of the Grand Avenue Vision Plan – Phase 1 Project; and 

WHEREAS, on July 21, 2021, the City Council will be asked to adopt Resolution 

No. 2021-108 certifying the Mitigated Negative Declaration and adopting the Specific 

Alignment Plan for the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the City Manager or his designee is authorized to issue a purchase 

order to procure street light poles, LED fixtures, and string lighting for the Grand Avenue 

Vision Project – Phase 1 to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.



3. That the City Manager is authorized to make a determination regarding the 

lowest responsive and responsible bidder and make a final determination on any bid 

protest submitted.

4. That the City Manager is authorized to approve change orders for material 

procurement based on the final design in an amount not to exceed 20-percent of the total 

purchase order amount.



Staff Report - Council

  Consent Item No. 12   July 21, 2021 File No. 0600-95

SUBJECT: Notice of Completion for the Storm Drain Pipe Lining and Rehabilitation Project – 
Phase 2

DEPARTMENT: Engineering Services

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-105 authorizing the City Engineer to 
file a Notice of Completion (“NOC”) for the Storm Drain Pipe Lining and Rehabilitation Project – 
Phase 2 (“Project”).

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The Project is funded through Gas Tax funds.  The final Project cost of $471,772.00 is $13,097.00 
lower than the bid price.  

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

On September 16, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-117, authorizing the Mayor 
and City Clerk to execute a Public Improvement Agreement with Sancon Technologies, Inc. 
(“Contractor”), the lowest responsible bidder, for the amount of $484,869.00 for construction of the 
Project.

BACKGROUND:

The Project is the second phase of the City’s Storm Drain Pipe Lining and Rehabilitation Project.  In 
this phase, twenty-one (21) of the City’s most critical Red Flag storm drain facilities were 
rehabilitated.  The project rehabilitated storm drains by grouting voids, performing point repairs, 
protrusion repairs, and installing a cured in place pipe (CIPP) resin liner to restore the pipeline.  

The project rehabilitated ½-mile of Corrugated Metal Pipe (CMP) Storm Drain.  This project included 
work on seven (7) structures located within narrow storm drain easements requiring close 
coordination with property owners and the contractor.  During the project inspection phase, it was 
found that new deterioration within a pipeline near Escondido Boulevard required one hundred and 
sixty-six lineal feet of additional lining.  A second pipeline near Glasgow Lane, which upon inspection 
was determined to be intact with minimal corrosion, will be repaired in a future project phase.  The 
Public Works Streets Department provided two (2) access points and additional grouting / structure 
rehabilitation that resulted in a cost savings of approximately $25,000.  



Notice of Completion for the Storm Drain Pipe Lining and Rehabilitation Project 
July 21, 2021
Page 2

Before and after pictures highlighting the lining and rehabilitation improvements have been provided 
in Attachment “1”. 

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services
07/15/21 8:53 a.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Attachment “1” – Project Photos
2. Resolution No. 2021-105



Facility 17312 / 17312A – Meyers Avenue 

Before      After 

Facility 11365 – Auto Parkway 

Before     After 

Attachment "1"



Facility 18180A – Martin Drive 

Before     After 

Facility 16907 – Park Drive 

Before     After 

Attachment "1"



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-105

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY ENGINEER TO 
FILE, ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A NOTICE 
OF COMPLETION FOR THE STORM DRAIN 
PIPE LINING AND REHABILITATION 
PROJECT PHASE 2.

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 

2020-117, authorizing execution of the Public Improvement Agreement for the 

construction of the Storm Drain Pipe Lining and Rehabilitation Project (“Project”) in the 

amount of $484,869.00; and

WHEREAS, this City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to close the contract based on the actual and final contract value of 

$471,772.00; and 

WHEREAS, the construction for the Project was completed by Sancon 

Technologies, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) staff and the City Engineer deems the 

filing of the Notice of Completion (“NOC”) to be valid and recommends approval; and

WHEREAS, this City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to approve the filing of the NOC.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the City Council accepts the recommendation of the City Engineer.



3. That the City Council hereby approves the request to file a NOC for the 

Storm Drain Pipe Lining and Rehabilitation Project Phase 2.



Staff Report - Council

 Consent Item No. 13      July 21, 2021         File No. 0600-75

SUBJECT: Payment to SDG&E for Relocation of Electric Facilities for the Citracado Parkway 
Extension Project

DEPARTMENT: Engineering Services Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-106, authorizing payment to SDG&E in 
the amount of $2,234,897 to relocate existing transmission facilities for the Citracado Parkway 
Extension Project (“Project”).

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

Funds in the amount of $31.9 million remain in the Project budget, including a $12.5 million Local 
Partnership Program grant, a competitive grant selected by Caltrans. The construction phase is 
anticipated to cost $33 million.  The adopted Capital Improvement Program (“CIP”) projects additional 
programming of TransNet and Traffic Impact Fees totaling $6.2 million.

PREVIOUS ACTION:

In June 2015, the City of Escondido (“City”) entered into an Electric Transmission Facility Relocation 
Agreement (“Agreement”) with San Diego Gas & Electric (“SDG&E”) to initiate design for relocation of 
the existing 69kV overhead transmission power lines to accommodate the Project. The City paid 
SDG&E $45,000 at that time.

On July 17, 2019 the City Council authorized payment to SDG&E in the amount of $511,921 to complete 
the Project design and reserve poles for construction.

On November 18, 2020 the City Council authorized payment to SDG&E in the amount of $174,300 as 
required by Agreement with SDG&E for design and pre-order cabling materials necessary to relocate 
transmission electric lines.

BACKGROUND:

Relocation of substantial SDG&E electric infrastructure is necessary as the existing overhead lines and 
poles lie within the future extended Citracado Parkway and are in conflict with the Project. The City is 
responsible for the costs of relocation of SDG&E facilities located within an easement that existed prior 
to the City acquiring the land for the roadway extension.  The requested payment to SDG&E includes 
the cost of realignment of those electric facilities and the cost to administer construction. 

The following is a breakdown of anticipated costs associated with SDG&E transmission work.



Payment to SDG&E for Citracado Parkway Extension Project
July 21, 2021
Page 2

Construction cost $525,428
Short Lead Material Costs (Estimate for both Trans and Dist) $40,000
Construction Support Cost $30,000
Post Construction Reconciliation $3,040
Rock Excavation $942,840
Indirects (45%) $693,589
Construction Fee Request (with Rock Excavation)
Total Fee Collected to date
Total Project Cost

$2,234,897
$756,212

$2,991,109

The Agreement states that the City is responsible for the actual costs of relocation.  If costs exceed this 
total, the City will be required to reimburse SDG&E for those expenses. A substantial contingency has 
been provided to deal with difficulty drilling into rocky soils.  If actual costs are less than this total, 
SDG&E would return unused funds to the City. The City will have the opportunity review any proposed 
change orders associated with the work.  Additional payments, on the order of $150,000, are anticipated 
to be required to pay for distribution electric relocation as necessary for the transmission relocation.  
These payments are expected to be within the City Manager’s level of authority (under $200,000). 

Project Schedule:

SDG&E has completed the design, procured steel poles, and received bids for the relocation of existing 
overhead electric transmission facilities that are in conflict with the Project. SDG&E is currently working 
to coordinate with area residents on the brief service interruptions necessary to construct the project 
with the expectation that relocation will begin in mid-September 2021 and be completed in November 
2021. Once SDG&E completes their relocation, construction of the Citracado Parkway Extension 
Project may begin.

Staff has submitted a request to the California Transportation Commission (“CTC”) to allocate funds for 
construction at their August 18th meeting.  After allocation of funding by the CTC, Caltrans will issue an 
authorization to proceed with construction, and the Project will be advertised for bids.  Construction is 
anticipated to begin in late 2021 or early 2022, and require approximately 18-months to complete.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services
07/15/21 8:53 a.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2021-106
2. Resolution No. 2021-106 - Exhibit “A” Electric Facilities Relocation Agreement with SDG&E



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-106

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
APPROVE, ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A 
PAYMENT TO SDG&E FOR THE 
CITRACADO EXTENSION PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City Council has allocated funding in the adopted Capital 

Improvement Program Budget for the Citracado Extension Project (“Project”); and

WHEREAS, the City entered into a Electric Transmission Facility Relocation 

Agreement with San Diego Gas and Electric (“SDG&E”), included as Exhibit “A”, for 

relocation of electric facilities in conflict with the Project; and

WHEREAS, a payment to SDG&E, in the amount of $2,234,897, is required to 

pay for relocation of SDG&E’s facilities as necessary to accommodate the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to approve, on behalf of 

the City, a payment to SDG&E in the amount of $2,234,897.



Electric Transmission Facility Relocation Agreement 

(" Agreement") 

Date Prepared ,.Ju H ;(2- 2 � , 2015 SDG&E Work Order No. 292857 
-------

Name and Address of Applicant: 
Billing/Notice Address for Applicant 
(If Different) 

Matthew Souttere, Project Engineer 
City of Escondido 
201 North Broadway 
Escondido, California 92025 
Telephone: ("7 (pt7) g �'}-4 S-74 Project Address: Per the attached
E-mail m ;sav:H-:ea;. re. � S.Of\d iol. Engineering Fee Request
Fed. Tax ID# A .

O; o
':)

g_J'.,-.J �'> - {pOdO -10 & 

1.0 Scope of Work. 

1.1 Scope. Applicant requests San Diego Gas & Electric Company ("SDG&E") to 
modify or relocate certain of its electric transmission facilities. Applicant acknowledges that 
such relocations can be complex, lengthy processes. Applicant has investigated other 
alternatives, but believes the Project to be the only practical alternative. Applicant requests 
SDG&E to perform the engineering services necessary for the Project, as defined in the 
accompanying Engineering Fee Request (See Section 2.2.1.). It is understood and agreed that 
the description of the Project is general in nature, that this Agreement is intended to cover all 
work necessitated by the Project, and that deviation from that description may be made by 
SDG&E in its discretion and business judgment to meet the practical requirements of the Project, 
including, but not limited, to matters of safety, avoidance of substructures, and compliance with 
federal, state or local government requirements, including Environmental Impact Reports when 
required. 

1.2 Purpose. This Agreement sets forth the terms and conditions under which 
SDG&E will perform the engineering services for the Project. It is an offer, which must be 
accepted by Applicant within thirty (30) days ("Acceptance Time Period") of the date shown 
above. Acceptance shall be by Applicant signing and returning the Agreement to SDG&E along 
with payment of the Engineering Fee Estimate within the Acceptance Time Period. If the 
Agreement has not been accepted by the end of the Acceptance Time Period, the offer shall 
automatically terminate without any further action on SDG&E's part. If Applicant requests 
SDG&E to continue with the Project after the Acceptance Time Period has passed, SDG&E, at 
its sole option, may prepare a new Agreement with a new Conceptual Cost Estimate or may use 
this Agreement, in either case making appropriate adjustments to the expected Project 
completion date. 

Resolution No. 2021-106 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 1 of 8



2.0 Costs. 

2.1 Total Actual Cost. Customer shall pay SDG&E its Total Actual Cost (Section 2.3 
below) for the engineering services necessary for the Project, in accordance with the payment 
provisions below. Initial payments by Applicant are based upon estimates, but shall be trued-up 
in accordance with Section 2.3. 

2.2 Conceptual Cost Estimate. The Conceptual Cost Estimate for the Project is 
$450,000 to $600,000. This estimate is furnished only for the convenience of Applicant to give 
Applicant a general idea of the order of magnitude of the expected Total Actual Cost, including 
the applicable gross-up of various components necessary to reimburse SDG&E for tax it is 
required to pay on the payments made by Applicant ("CIAC Tax"). It is intended to reflect 
SDG&E's general past experience of the cost of similar work under favorable conditions. 
Because of unforeseen contingencies and other factors, the Total Actual Cost may be 
considerably higher or lower than the Conceptual Cost Estimate. Therefore, the Conceptual Cost 
Estimate is not a warranty by SDG&E of the Total Actual Cost. The Conceptual Cost Estimate 
includes the Engineering Fee Estimate, Materials Fee Estimate, and Construction Fee Estimate 
and must be paid to SDG&E in advance, in accordance with the schedule set out in the 
subsections below. All Estimates will include applicable CIAC Tax. Although the Conceptual 
Cost Estimate includes the Engineering Fee Estimate, the Materials Fee Estimate and the 
Construction Fee Estimate, no materials will be ordered or construction begun until a separate 
procurement and construction agreement is agreed upon and executed by SDG&E and Applicant 
("Procurement/Construction Agreement"). 

2.2.1 Engineering Fee Estimate. SDG&E's Engineering Fee Estimate is set 
forth on the separate Fee Request, which is being provided to Applicant with this Agreement. 
The Engineering Fee covers SDG&E's costs incurred in route selection and design of the 
Project, (including support functions such as surveying, right-of-way processing, construction 
cost estimates, etc.). The Engineering Fee Request must be paid by Applicant to SDG&E within 
the Acceptance Time Period. If Applicant does not so pay it, the provisions of Section 1.2 shall 
apply. 

2.2.2 Materials Fee Estimate. Certain long lead-time materials may be 
necessary for the Project. If so, SDG&E may notify Applicant of the estimated cost for these 
materials. Applicant shall pay the Materials Fee Estimate within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
SDG&E's Fee Request. SDG&E shall have no obligation to order such materials until it has 
received payment. As noted above, SDG&E shall not procure any materials or submit a 
Materials Fee Estimate to Applicant until and only if the Procurement/Construction Agreement is 
executed by the parties. 

2.2.3 Construction Fee Estimate. SDG&E may include its estimated costs for 
its own necessary permits, approvals, recording fees and other miscellaneous charges as well as 
estimated construction costs in the Construction Fee Estimate. The Construction Fee Estimate 
shall be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of SDG&E's Fee Request. SDG&E shall have no 
obligation to proceed with the Project until it has received payment. As noted above, SDG&E 
shall not submit a Construction Fee Estimate to Applicant until and only if the 
Procurement/Construction Agreement is executed by the parties. 

-2-

Resolution No. 2021-106 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 2 of 8



2.2.4 Payment of Fee Requests. If Applicant does not pay the Materials or 
Construction Fee Estimates within thirty (30) days of execution of the Procurement/Construction 
Agreement, the delay will cause at least a corresponding delay in SDG&E's ordering of the 
materials and/or completion of the Project. Failure to pay either the Materials or Construction 
Fee Estimates when due may be considered by SDG&E to be a termination of the 
Procurement/Construction Agreement. The Fee Requests for the Engineering Fee Estimate, the 
Materials Fee Estimate, and the Construction Fee Estimate are a part of this Agreement and are 
incorporated by reference; samples of each are attached hereto. 

2.2.5 Revisions to Estimates. SDG&E may, but shall not be required to, revise 
any of the components of the Engineering Fee Estimates, if it has reason to believe such 
estimates are no longer accurate. SDG&E may then send a revised Engineering Fee Request, 
and the additional amount shall be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Fee Request. 
SDG&E shall have no obligation to proceed with the engineering services necessary for the 
Project until it has received payment, but it may choose to proceed before payment is received. 
If Applicant does not pay the additional Fee within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Fee Request, 
such failure may be considered by SDG&E to be a termination of the Agreement. 

2.3 Total Actual Cost. After the design for the Project is complete, SDG&E will 
determine the Total Actual Cost for the engineering services portion of the Project, including 
labor, fees, and overheads. If the Total Actual Cost is less than the payments Applicant has 
previously made pursuant to Section 2.2 above, SDG&E shall refund the difference (without 
interest). If the Total Actual Cost is greater, SDG&E shall invoice Applicant for the difference. 
Payment shall be due and payable within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice. If not so paid, 
a late charge of 5% per annum of the balance due shall be imposed beginning with the 31st day 
and continuing until paid. SDG&E will attempt to determine the Total Actual Cost within ninety 
days of completion of the Project design, but shall have no obligation to do so or liability for 
failure to do so. Applicant's liability for payment of any additional Total Actual Cost shall 
continue for the time set forth in the applicable statue of limitations. 

3.0 No Warranty. SDG&E's Conceptual Cost Estimate shall not be deemed a 
warranty, express or implied, as to the Total Actual Cost. Field conditions, changes in the 
scope of the Project, delays, factors such as those set forth in Section 4, and other factors 
may cause the Total Actual Cost to substantially exceed the estimates. 

4.0 Schedule. SDG&E will attempt to accommodate Applicant's schedule, to the extent 
reasonably possible. SDG&E shall have no liability, however, due to its inability to meet 
Applicant's schedule or for delays in the Project's schedule. The ability to meet Applicant's 
schedule and SDG&E's Project schedule is contingent on many factors, including, but not 
limited to site availability, other workloads, material delivery, outage approval by the 
Independent System Operator ("ISO"), SDG&E's utility operating needs, timely receipt of 
payments and Route Approval from Applicant, factors affecting Applicant's schedule such as its 
obtaining of all required permits and easements, and approval of any required Environmental 
Impact Report, obtaining of any required CPUC approval for the Project, and other events or 
circumstances. SDG&E may notify Applicant of SDG&E's estimated schedule for completion 
of Project design at the time it provides the Engineering Fee Request, but it need not do so. 
SDG&E will attempt to notify Applicant if it becomes aware that the Project schedule has 
changed, but shall have no liability to Applicant for failure to so notify Applicant. 

. -3-

Resolution No. 2021-106 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 3 of 8



Resolution No. 2021-106 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 4 of 8



Resolution No. 2021-106 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 5 of 8



Resolution No. 2021-106 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 6 of 8



Resolution No. 2021-106 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 7 of 8



Resolution No. 2021-106 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 8 of 8



Staff Report - Council

 Consent Item No. 14              July 21, 2021             File No. 0120-10

SUBJECT: Declaration of Vacancy – Historic Preservation Commission

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk’s Office

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is requested that the City Council declare a vacancy on the Historic Preservation Commission, per 
Sec. 33-791 of the Escondido Municipal Code.

BACKGROUND: 

Commissioner Carol Breitenfeld has served on the Historic Preservation Commission since 2008. 
Commissioner Breitenfeld has not attended a Historic Preservation Commission meeting since July 
16, 2020. City staff has attempted to contact Commissioner Breitenfeld over the phone and in writing 
(Attachment “1”) multiple times over the last year to see if she would like to continue to serve on the 
Historic Preservation Commission. City Staff has not received a response from Commissioner 
Breitenfeld.

Per Sec. 33-791 of the Escondido Municipal Code (Attachment “2”), “members of the historic 
preservation commission shall be appointed by the mayor from among the residents of the 
geographic area within the City’s general plan. Members shall serve at the pleasure of the council, 
and may be removed from office at any time, without cause”.

Therefore, it is requested that the City Council remove Commissioner Breitenfeld and declare a 
vacancy on the Historic Preservation Commission, per Sec. 33-791 of the Escondido Municipal Code. 
City Staff will then solicit applications to fill the vacancy, which is set to expire on March 31, 2024.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Zack Beck, City Clerk
07/14/21 4:23 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Attachment “1” – Email to Commissioner Breitenfeld
2. Attachment “2” – Escondido Municipal Code Section 33-791



From: Zachary Beck
To: "breitps4610@att.net"
Subject: Historic Preservation Commission
Date: Monday, May 17, 2021 11:52:00 AM
Attachments: image001.jpg

Ms. Breitenfeld,

I hope all is well and that you are having a nice day so far.

With that being said, I wanted to check in and see how everything is coming along with your role on
the Historic Preservation Commission? I heard from City staff that you have not been able to attend
a commission meeting over the last six months.

On that note, I wanted to see if you would still like to remain on the commission? Feel free let me
know your thoughts and I will proceed accordingly.

Please let me know if you have any questions, or if there is anything else I can do to be of assistance
to you regarding this item. I hope you have a great day.

Best Regards,
Zack Beck

Zack Beck, CMC, CPMC
City Clerk
City Clerk’s Office | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4560 | Main: 760-839-4617
www.escondido.org

Attachment "1" 



Sec. 33-791. Historic preservation commission. 

(a) Established membership. An historic preservation commission (HPC), shall be established by and

serve at the discretion of the city council. The HPC shall act in an advisory capacity to the city council and 

planning commission in all matters relating to the identification, protection, retention and preservation of 

historical sites and areas within the city. All members of the HPC shall have demonstrated special interest, 

competence, experience or knowledge in historical preservation. Prior to appointment by mayor, the 

prospective HPC members shall have demonstrated that they meet the requirements of a commissioner set 

forth under the certified local government guidelines. 

(b) Unless otherwise provided by this code, appointments of members of all boards and commissions

created by the city council and their terms of office shall be governed by the following provisions: 

(1) The HPC shall be comprised of seven (7) individuals from the community who represent a variety of

perspectives related to historical preservation and which shall include the following: 

(A) Professionals in the fields of American studies, anthropology, cultural geography, architecture,

archaeology or other historical preservation-related disciplines. A minimum of two (2) and preferably a 

majority shall serve on the HPC to the extent these professionals are available in the community, 

(B) Historians (a minimum of one (1)),

(C) Members of the Escondido historic society (a minimum of one (1)),

(D) Also, considered desirable to serve on the HPC are: owners of historical structures listed on the

Escondido historic sites survey; and a representative from any formally approved historical district; 

(2) Members of the historic preservation commission shall be appointed by the mayor from among the

residents of the geographic area within the city’s general plan. Members shall serve at the pleasure of the 

council, and may be removed from office at any time, without cause; 

(3) The terms of office for members of the historic preservation commission shall be for a four (4) year

period commencing with the actual date of appointment and ending on January 31st of the fourth year 

thereafter; and 

(4) Any vacancy which occurs prior to the expiration of a term shall be filled by appointment for the

unexpired portion of such term. 

(c) HPC duties. The HPC shall act in an advisory capacity to the city council and planning commission in all

matters relating to the identification, protection, retention, and preservation of historical sites and areas 

within the city and shall have the following responsibilities: 

(1) Prepare an annual report to the mayor and city council on the activities, cases, decisions and other

work of the HPC; 

(2) Investigate and report to the city council on the use of various federal, state, local or private funding

sources and mechanisms available to promote historical resource preservation in the city; 

(3) Assume whatever responsibilities and duties assigned to it by the state under the certified local

government provisions of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 as amended. (Ord. No. 2000-23, § 4, 

9-13-00; Ord. No. 2001-7, § 3, 3-21-01; Ord. No. 2005-05, § 10, 10-26-05; Ord. No. 2008-14, § 7, 5-14-08; Ord. 

No. 2008-16, § 4, 7-16-08; Ord. No. 2017-12, § 5, 12-6-17) 

Attachment "2" 



Staff Report - Council

  Current Business Item No. 15                     July 21, 2021            File No. 0120-10

SUBJECT: 2021 – 2022 Planning Commission Work Plan

DEPARTMENT: Community Development

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council receive a report and presentation on a work plan developed by the 
Planning Commission for 2021 and 2022 as an advisory body to the City Council, and direct Planning 
Division staff to work with the Planning Commission on the items identified in the work plan.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The City of Escondido (“City”) incurs costs associated with each of the projects identified in the Planning 
Commission Work Plan (“Work Plan”).  Many of the projects require only staff time, the cost of which is 
covered by the Community Development Department budget. Others require the use of consultant 
services for which the City incurs hard costs. The City received SB 2 and LEAP grant funding for the 
following Work Plan projects:  Housing Element Update; Sector Feasibility Study; East Valley Specific 
Plan and associated Environmental Impact Report; Pre-Approved ADU Plans; Downtown Specific Plan 
Open Space Standards Review; and Downtown Parking Study. TransNet funds have been budgeted 
for the Active Transportation Plan. The only Work Plan project for which funds have not been allocated 
is the Green Infrastructure Plan, however staff has identified a potential grant opportunity. 

PREVIOUS ACTION:

The Planning Commission created the Work Plan over a series of meetings in the Spring of 2021. On 
May 25, 2021, the Planning Commission approved the Work Plan through adoption of Planning 
Commission Resolution No. 2021-04. Staff work on many of the projects on the Work Plan is already 
underway.

BACKGROUND:

The Planning Commission was created pursuant to Chapter 20 of the Escondido Municipal Code. The 
Planning Commission is an advisory body to the City Council on land use matters. It has final decision-
making authority (except upon appeal) on some projects and recommends action to the City Council 
on others. As such, the Planning Commission assists the City Council in the formulation of policies and 
ordinances that implement the General Plan. 

Planning Division staff works closely with the Planning Commission to thoroughly review and analyze 
projects before decisions are made and recommendations are made to the City Council. Projects 



Planning Commission Work Plan
July 21, 2021
Page 2

brought before the Planning Commission consist of either development and land use applications which 
are requested by project proponents (i.e. applicants), or policy work in the form of codes, ordinances, 
programs, plans, etc., which are deemed for various reasons to be in the best interest of the City. Staff 
time required to process development and land use applications is funded in part by application fees 
outlined in the City’s fee schedule. The City Council acknowledged through the adoption of the fee 
schedule that fees assessed for certain application types may not yield full cost recovery. For policy 
work, funding must cover staff time and resources. Therefore, it is useful to know that those resources 
are being expended in a manner consistent with the City Council’s vision for the City. 

The Work Plan, included as Attachment “1” to this report, consists of projects that are considered policy 
work and does not include development and land use entitlement applications that are applicant-driven. 
Some Work Plan projects have been initiated by staff in order to implement the General Plan and other 
adopted City plans and programs, and to achieve consistency with state legislation. Others have been 
funded by grants which the City Council authorized staff to apply for. As such, work on a majority of the 
projects on the Work Plan has already been endorsed by the City Council, either directly or through 
reference by other policy documents. Staff believes that work on all Work Plan projects that either do 
not involve consultant services, or where funding for consultant services has already been allocated is 
appropriate because those projects have been endorsed by the City Council in one fashion or another. 
Staff acknowledges that Work Plan projects for which consultant services are necessary but not yet 
funded cannot be undertaken until funding has been allocated. 

Staff is seeking direction on the Work Plan from the City Council. Aside from Work Plan projects that 
are either grant-funded or that have statutory deadlines and requirements, staff is soliciting input on 
any changes to the Work Plan with regard to projects listed on it and prioritization of those projects. 
Specific direction is sought regarding the Green Infrastructure Plan because that item is currently 
unfunded. A source of grant funding was recently identified (California Resiliency Challenge; RFP 
included as Attachment “2”), however the City Council has not authorized staff to submit an application 
for said grant at this time.  A representative of a subcommittee of the Planning Commission will be 
providing a presentation on green infrastructure planning to aid the City Council in providing policy 
direction.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Adam Finestone, Interim Director of Community Development
07/14/21 4:27 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Attachment “1” 2021 – 2022 Planning Commission Work Plan
2. Attachment “2” California Resiliency Challenge RFP



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 1 of 4

Planning Commission Work Plan (May 25, 2021)

Section 1. Ongoing or Recurring Work Plan Elements

1. Education.   Provide support for Commissioners through on-going training and learning opportunities to enable more informed decision-making. 
- Registration for in-state travel to professional trade conferences (i.e. League of California Cities and/or APA)*;
- Registration for professional trade webinars (ULI, APA, AEP, etc.) and/or relevant web castings*; and/or
- Provide staff-facilitated presentations. 

* Training and learning opportunities involving “for-fee” registrations will be made available to Commission members on a rolling basis, starting with the newest members first.  The number of registrations will be established by 
the Department budget, which is subject to change from time to time.

2. Director’s report.  Provide a report from the City Planner or Director of Community Development at the end of each Commission meeting to identify upcoming agenda items. 

Section 2.  Program Specific Work Plan Elements

Project Name Brief Description Deliverable
Council 

Authorized 
(Y/N)

State 
Mandate

 (Y/N)

CAP Related 
Implementation 

(Y/N)

Status and Program 
Timeline Budget Required Funded 

(Y/N)
Planning Commission 

Role

1 Business Recovery 
Ordinance 

Evaluate the City’s 
regulatory business relief 
measures and determine if 
any measures should be 
effective on a more 
permanent basis

Zoning Code 
Amendment(s) or 
Specific Plan 
Amendment(s)

Yes No No  In development
 Timeline: 3 to 4 

months
 Est. Summer 2021

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)

2 Downtown Specific 
Plan Ground Floor 
Retail Amendment 

Evaluate the ground floor 
retail requirements in the 
downtown specific plan and 
develop recommendations 
to remove the use 
requirement if it is not 
desired for a key pedestrian 
activity area

Specific Plan 
Amendment

Yes No No  In development
 Timeline: 6 to 8 

months
 Est. Summer 2021

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)

3 Annual Omnibus 
Code Clean-Up

Amendments to various 
sections of the Municipal 
and Zoning Codes to address 
recent changes in State law, 
to provide clarity in our 
regulations, and to correct 
errors

Zoning Code 
Amendment(s)

Yes Yes No  In development 
 Timelines: 4 to 6 

months
 Est. Summer 2021

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)

4 Comprehensive 
Density Bonus 
Ordinance Update

Amendment to Article 67 of 
the Zoning Code to 
incorporate recent changes 
in State and to resolve other 
conflicts

Zoning Code 
Amendment

No Yes No  In development
 Timeline: 4 to 6 

months
 Est. Summer 2021

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 2 of 4

5 Hotel Conversion 
Ordinance 

Amendment to various 
section of the Municipal and 
Zoning Codes to address site 
and building design related 
issues associated with hotel 
conversions 

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments

No No No  In development
 Timeline: 6 to 8 

months
 Est. Summer/Fall 

2021

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)

6 Housing Element 
Update

Update of the City’s goals, 
policies, and programs to 
promote the maintenance, 
improvement, and 
development of housing 
opportunities

General Plan 
Amendment

Yes Yes No  In development
 Timeline: 14 to 18 

months
 Est. Fall 2021

$118,000 plus EIR 
costs

Yes  Informational study 
sessions

 Public Hearing(s)

7 Sector Feasibility 
Study

Development Cost/Revenue 
analysis to inform the 
Housing Element update and 
the East Valley Specific Plan

Informational 
report

Yes No No  In development 
 Timeline: 14 to 18 

months
 Est. Fall 2021

$45,000 Yes  Informational study 
sessions

8 East Valley Specific 
Plan

New rezoning program to 
accommodate future 
housing needs and the 
appropriate densities

Specific Plan 
adoption

Yes Yes No  In development 
 Timeline: 14 to 18 

months
 Est. Fall 2021

$147,000 plus EIR 
costs

Yes  Informational study 
sessions

 Public Hearing(s)

9 Building and Permit 
Processing Guide

Collateral material and 
marketing material overview 
of City development services 
and how to process land use 
development projects

Informational 
report

No No No  In development
 Timeline: 6 to 8 

months
 Est. Fall/Winter 

2021

None N/A  Discussion
 Receive and file

10 EV Parking 
Ordinance

Adopt standards for EV 
charging stations in new 
multi-family and commercial 
developments and in single-
family model homes

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments

N/A No Yes  Not initiated
 Timeline: 3 to 4 

months
 Est. Winter 

2021/22

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)

11 TDM Ordinance Amendments to the Zoning 
Code to require 
transportation demand 
management practices in 
new non-residential 
developments. 

Zoning Code 
Amendment

N/A No Yes  Not initiated
 Timeline: 6 to 8 

months
 Est. Winter 

2021/22

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)

12 Alternatively-
Fueled Water 
Heater Ordinance

Amendment to the local 
Building Code (Chapter 6 of 
the Municipal Code) to 
require the installation of 
electric water heaters In new 
residential developments 
and significant remodels

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments

N/A No Yes  Not initiated
 Timeline: 3 to 4 

months
 Est. Winter 

2021/22

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)

13 Electric Cooking 
Appliance 
Ordinance

Amendment to the local 
Building Code (Chapter 6 of 
the Municipal Code)to 
require electric cooking 

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments

N/A No Yes  Not initiated
 Timeline: 3 to 4 

months
 Est. Winter 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 3 of 4

appliances in all new multi-
family development and 
significant remodels

2021/22

14 Net Zero Energy 
Reach Ordinance

Amendment to the local 
Building Code (Chapter 6 of 
the Municipal Code) to 
require all new non-
residential development to 
achieve net zero energy 

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments

N/A No Yes  Not initiated
 Timeline: 3 to 4 

months
 Est. Winter 

2021/22

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)

15 Communications 
and Outreach 
Strategy

Discuss issues and 
opportunities community 
awareness and engagement 
strategies and identify more 
effective and efficient ways 
to get information out to the 
public

Discussion item No No No  Est. Winter 2022 None N/A  Discussion
 Receive and file

16 Annual Progress 
Report for 2021

Annual report of General 
Plan and CAP 
implementation

Informational 
report

N/A Yes Yes  Not initiated 
 Timeline: 2 to 3 

months
 Est. Spring 2022

None N/A  Discussion
 Receive and file

17 Comprehensive 
Nonconforming 
Ordinance Update

Amendment to Article 61 of 
the Zoning Code to update 
the standards and 
requirements for 
nonconforming uses and 
structures

Zoning Code 
Amendment

No No No  Not initiated 
 Timeline: 8 to 12 

months
 Est. Summer/Fall 

2022

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)

18 Pre-Approved ADU 
Plans

Develop sets of pre-
approved floor plans to help 
incentivize new accessory 
dwelling unit production

Special study Yes No No  Not initiated 
 Timeline: 12 to 18 

months
 Est. Summer/Fall 

2022

$70,000 to 
$100,000

Yes  Discussion
 Receive and file

19 Comprehensive 
Sign Ordinance 
Update

Amendment to Article 66 of 
the Zoning Code to resolve 
conflicts with first 
amendment rights and 
standards for signage

Zoning Code 
Amendment

No Yes No  Not initiated 
Timeline: 18 
months

 Est. Fall 2022

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)

20 Landscape 
Ordinance Update

Amendment to Article 62 of 
the Zoning Code to reduce 
water consumption, to 
install greywater and rain 
barrel systems in new single-
family homes and to create 
new landscaping standards 
as required by the CAP, such 
as cool roofs on multi-family 
projects

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments

N/A No Yes  Not initiated 
 Timeline: 8 to 12 

months
 Est. Fall 2022

None N/A  Public Hearing(s)

21 Green Prepare a plan to integrate a Special Study and No No No  Not initiated $100,000 No  Informal study 



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 4 of 4

Infrastructure Plan whole systems approach to 
green infrastructure 

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments 

 Timeline: 16 to 18 
months

 To be determined 
based on Council 
authorization and 
funding allocation

sessions
 Public Hearing(s)

22 Open Space 
Standards Review 
and Ordinance 
Update

Evaluate the open space 
standards in the downtown 
specific plan and develop 
recommendations to right-
size the requirements and 
incorporate new strategies 
to incorporate green space 
in new projects

Special study and 
Specific Plan 
Amendment

Yes No No  Not initiated 
 Timeline: 12 to 16 

months
 Est. Fall/Winter 

2022

$40,000 to 
$60,000

Yes  Public Hearing(s)

23 Downtown Parking 
Study and 
Ordinance Update

Develop a parking 
management plan and 
update off-street parking 
standards in the downtown 
area

Special study and 
Specific Plan 
Amendment

Yes No Yes  Not initiated 
 Timeline: 16 to 24 

months
 Est. Winter/Spring 

2023

$75,000 to 
$125,000

Yes  Public Hearing(s)

24 Active 
Transportation Plan 
(“ATP”)

Prepare a multi-modal 
infrastructure analysis and 
plan for implementation

Special study No No No  Not initiated 
 Timeline: 24 

months
 To be determined 

based on Council 
authorization and 
funding allocation

$250,000 to 
$300,000

No  Informal study 
session(s)  
The ATP is not within 
the purview of the 
Commission



California Resilience Challenge 
Request for Proposals, 2021 Grant Program 
July 12, 2021 - Application Deadline 5pm, September 13, 2021

Attachment "2" 



 

 

 

 
 

2

Major Sponsors

LEADERSHIP

Additional Sponsors

Administration

Attachment "2" 



 

• Allen Fernandez Smith, Head of Philanthropy, West Region, JPMorgan Chase 
• Matt Armsby, Vice President, Resources Legacy Fund 
• Andrew Baldonado, Managing Director State Public Affairs, Southern California 

Edison 
• Chris Benjamin, Director of Corporate Sustainability, Pacific Gas & Electric Company 
• Rick Callender, Chief Executive Officer, Valley Water 
• John Vu, Vice President of Strategy, Community Health, Kaiser Permanente 

 
 
 
 

• Stephanie Angkadjaja, Associate, Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP 
• Monica V. Arellano, Tribal Vice Chairwoman, Muwekma Ohlone Tribe 
• Claire Bonham-Carter, Principal and Director of Sustainable Development, AECOM 
• Debi Gore-Mann, President & Chief Executive Officer, Greenlining Institute 
• Ann Hayden, Senior Director, Environmental Defense Fund 
• Jennifer Helfrich, Senior Manager, State Policy West, Ceres 
• Meyo Marrufo, Environmental Director, Guidiville Rancheria 
• Jonathan Parfrey, Executive Director, Climate Resolve 
• Michelle Passero, Director of Climate Policy, The Nature Conservancy 
• Gloria Walton, President and Chief Executive Officer, The Solutions Project 
• Betty Williams, Executive Director, California-Hawaii NAACP 
• Ellen Wu, Executive Director, Urban Habitat 
• Special Advisor, Wildfire: Danielle Cagan, Vice President External Affairs, CSAA 

Insurance Group  

• Adrian Covert, Senior Vice President, Public Policy, Bay Area Council 
• Anna Sciaruto, Senior Policy Associate, Bay Area Council 

3

Steering Committee

Advisory Committee

Staff

LEADERSHIP

Attachment "2" 



Table of Contents 
1. Background………………………………………………………….. 5 

2. About the California Resilience Challenge…………… 6 

3. Request for Proposals………………………………………….. 6 

4. Eligibility………………………………………………………………. 7 

5. Support and Other Funding………………………………….. 8 

6. Evaluation Criteria……………………………………………….. 8 

7. Grant Process……………………………………………………….. 11 

8. Grant Terms………………………………………………………….. 12 

9. Grant Disbursement and Accounting……………………. 13 

10. Proposal Contents………………………………………………… 14 

11. Submittal Instructions…………………………………………… 16 

12. Contacts and Additional Information…………………..… 16 

13. Tools and Resources…………………………………………….… 16 

4

Attachment "2" 



1. Background 
Climate change is forcing communities across California to become more resilient to drought, 
flood, wildfire, extreme heat, and rising seas. Climate resilience aims to anticipate and prepare for 
impacts to reduce the damage from extreme weather events, as well as chronic, long-term shifts, 
including those resulting from or aggravated by climate change. Taking steps today to adapt to 
climate change in a climate friendly way will yield significant future benefits for public health, 
safety, infrastructure, the economy, and the environment. However, California lacks dedicated 
funding for comprehensive, statewide climate adaptation planning. California’s extraordinary 
geographic, economic, environmental and cultural diversity calls for an equally diverse array of 
climate adaptation projects that can serve as a model for countries around the world.  

Senate Bill (SB) 379, enacted in 2015, requires cities and counties to incorporate climate 
adaptation and resiliency strategies into their general plans. Specifically, SB 379 requires general 
plans to include the following features: 

• A vulnerability assessment identifying risks climate change poses to the local government and 
the geographic areas at risk from climate change impacts.  

• A set of adaptation and resilience goals, policies and objectives.  

• A set of feasible implementation measures designed to carry out the goals, policies and 
objectives, including feasible methods to avoid or minimize climate change impacts associated 
with new land uses and the location of new essential public facilities outside of at-risk areas.  

SB 246 (2015, Wieckowski) directs the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) to 
establish an Integrated Climate Adaptation and Resiliency Program to coordinate regional and 
local adaptation efforts with state climate adaptation strategies. SB 1000 (2016, Leyva) further 
tasks municipalities, when updating their general plans, to include an environmental justice 
element identifying objectives and policies to reduce the unique health risks in disadvantaged 
communities, including pollution reduction, air quality improvement, and the promotion of public 
facilities.  
 
SB 1072 (Leyva, 2018) established a state program at the Strategic Growth Council to assist 
under-resourced communities in building their resources, capacity, implementation experience, 
and technical expertise to implement multi-benefit climate mitigation and adaptation projects.  SB 
1072 focuses on building local capacity through collaboration between multi-sector partners to 
more effectively and equitably develop competitive funding proposals in partnership with 
impacted communities. 
 
SB-1320 (2020, Stern) requires the Governor’s OPR, in consultation and coordination with other 
agencies, to complete a California Climate Change Assessment every five years. The Assessment 
must provide an “integrated suite of products” that report the impacts and risks of climate change, 
based on the best available science, and identify potential solutions to inform legislative policy. 
These “products” must include, among other items: regionally specific reports that can inform 
regional and local vulnerability assessments, adaptation planning, and community resilience 
efforts; and examples of best practices for planning for future climate conditions and approaches 
to building adaptation and resilience. 
 
On October 7, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-82-20, which directs state agencies 
to deploy a number of strategies to store carbon in the state’s natural and working lands and 

5

Attachment "2" 



remove it from the atmosphere. Specifically, state agencies are directed to pursue innovative 
actions, strategies and partnerships to maximize the full climate benefits of our natural and 
working land through healthy soils management, including planting cover crops, hedgerows and 
compost applications; wetlands restoration to protect coastal areas; active forest management to 
reduce catastrophic risk and restore forest health; and boosting green infrastructure in urban 
areas like trees and parks. 

The Governor’s Office of Emergency Services may offer financial resources to prevent or lessen 
impacts from climate change. 

To complement these and other climate change resilience planning efforts, the California 
Resilience Challenge is providing funding by means of its 2021 Grant Program for eligible 
resiliency planning projects aimed at improving local resilience to climate impacts, including 
drought, flooding (including sea level rise), extreme heat and increasing frequency of hot days, and 
wildfire challenges, and water and air quality impacts of the foregoing. Selected plans will be 
innovative and replicable for other locations, will help protect critical infrastructure, and will 
require broad community support; significantly, the focus of the 2021 Grant Program will be on 
projects that serve under-resourced communities.  A key goal of the California Resilience 
Challenge is to support a diversity of projects in terms of scale, type, and readiness with a focus on 
supporting planning projects that could fast track implementation. 

2. About the California Resilience Challenge 
1. The California Resilience Challenge is a statewide effort, led by businesses, utilities, and a 

diverse range of partners, to build local and regional climate resilience and to support a shared 
vision for a resilient California in the face of increasing climate threats. The Challenge is 
providing grants for diverse, replicable and innovative climate change adaptation planning 
projects across California. These projects will reflect California’s diverse geography and 
showcase leadership in climate change adaptation.  

2. The California Resilience Challenge is an initiative of the Bay Area Council Foundation, a 
nonprofit corporation, qualified as a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. The Challenge is administered by the Bay Area Council, a business-
sponsored public policy advocacy organization for the nine-county Bay Area that was founded 
in 1945. Learn more at bayareacouncil.org. 

3. The California Resilience Challenge has assembled a Grant Fund in excess of $1.5 million. The 
sources of the Grant Fund include businesses, utilities, nongovernmental organizations, and 
foundations. Donors to the Grant Fund are identified at ResilientCal.org/leadership.  

3. Request for Proposals 
California Resilience Challenge (CRC) is pleased to invite eligible local California public entities 
(including California Native American Tribes), non-governmental organizations, and community-
based organizations to respond to this Request for Proposals (RFP) for grants in support of climate 
resilience planning projects, with a preference for projects that will lead to implementation of 
resiliency infrastructure. (See definitions in Section 6.) Selected proposals will be for specific 

6

Attachment "2" 



planning projects that will commence on or before July 31, 2022 and are to be completed by July 
31, 2024. It is CRC’s expectation that individual grants will be awarded for between $100,000 and 
$200,000, but CRC reserves the right to make smaller or larger grants, and the right to award less 
than the maximum amount of its Grant Fund.  

4. Eligibility 
California-based non-government organizations, including community-based organizations, 
representing under-resourced communities are encouraged to apply, as are local California public 
entities that represent under-resourced communities. CRC intends “under-resourced 
communities” to include and prioritize the following communities that are susceptible to the 
impacts of climate change and face large barriers to accessing public funds, while also adjusting for 
significant cost-of-living variations throughout the state.  

• “Disadvantaged communities” as defined by CalEnviroScreen (Health and Safety Code Section 
39711); 

• “Low-income communities”, defined as census tracts with median household incomes at or 
below 80% of the statewide median income or with median household incomes at or below the 
threshold designated as low income by the Department of Housing and Community 
Development’s list of state income limits (Health and Safety Code 39713);  

• “Disadvantaged communities”, defined as a community with a median household income less 
than 80% of the statewide average; and “severely disadvantaged communities”, defined as a 
community with a median household income less than 60% of the statewide average” (Public 
Resources Code 75005);  

• Frontline communities and underrepresented communities, which are those that experience 
continuing injustice—including people of color, immigrants, people with lower incomes, those 
in rural areas, and indigenous people; and 

• “Climate vulnerable communities,” as defined in the Governor’s OPR resource, Defining 
Vulnerable Communities in the Context of Climate Adaptation. 

 
Eligible applicants consist of the following: 

• California-based non-government organizations (NGOs) that have as a principal mission, 
serving or advocating for under-resourced communities. Such NGOs may include community-
based organizations, and may be supported by fiscal sponsors. Such NGOs need not be 501(c)
(3) organizations, but must be legal entities authorized and empowered to enter into contracts 
and hold funds. NGOs are encouraged to partner with a local California public entity.  

• Local California public entities applying for projects targeted at benefitting under-resourced 
communities in their constituencies must partner with community-based organizations.  Such 
public entities may include: 

• California incorporated cities, whether or not charter cities 

• California counties 

• Local agencies and districts at the county level 

7

Attachment "2" 



• Joint Powers Authorities  

• Special Districts such as, but not limited to, Geologic Hazard and Abatement Districts, 
Community Facilities Districts, Utility Districts and others   

• California Native American Tribes  

• Metropolitan Planning Organizations  

• Councils of Governments 

State-level and regional public entities, including the State of California and its departments, 
commissions and agencies, and interstate compact entities are not eligible for this program 
focused on local efforts. 

5. Support and Other Funding 
CRC may make grants that would provide the required match funding to release other funding or 
grant opportunities. CRC wishes to fund viable projects. If additional funding is needed in addition 
to the CRC funding for the project to be executed, details must be provided including the likely 
timescale for securing the additional funding. Proposals should include letters of support from the 
applicant’s lead (and supporting) department(s), and from project partners and local community 
organizations.  

6. Evaluation Criteria 
Eligible Projects 

Eligible projects will consist of planning projects that are targeted at improving local or regional 
resilience to one or more of the following four climate challenges (listed in no particular order), 
and water and air quality impacts of the foregoing: 

• Drought 

• Flooding, including from sea level rise 

• Extreme heat and increasing frequency of hot days 

• Wildfire 

Project Evaluation Criteria 

Competitive grants will address as many of the following criteria as possible, although it is 
understood that it is unlikely that a project would be able to address all:  

• Community Support 

8

Attachment "2" 



• Does the project have strong community support from elected officials, neighborhood 
associations, business and civil leadership organizations, environmental advocacy and 
environmental justice groups, etc.?  

• Benefit Under-resourced Communities  

• Will the project directly and meaningfully benefit disadvantaged, low income or other 
disproportionally climate-vulnerable communities, involve or build on community 
priorities based on a substantial public engagement process involving members of 
these communities, and will it help build or support climate leadership and 
sustainability efforts in those communities? 

• Impact & Sustainability  

• Will the project help protect critical infrastructure?  

• Can the project be scaled to provide increased resilience in the future?  

• Can the project be replicated in other geographies? 

• Does the project avoid greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions or integrate elements that will 
help reduce emissions or sequester carbon?  

• Does the project use the best available science and locally specific data and/or tribal 
ecological knowledge? 

• Will the project meaningfully lead to implementation actions and the 
operationalization of climate resilience considerations in decision-making, risk, and 
finance in operations? 

• Collaboration 

• Is the resilience planning effort integrated with or can fast track project 
implementation/ delivery?  

• Can the project leverage other sources of private, local, state or federal funding?  

• Does the project involve collaboration with neighboring jurisdictions?  

• Does the project involve collaboration with the private sector?  

• Co-Benefits 

• Does the project provide resilience against multiple climate stressors (e.g., drought, 
heat, flood, and wildfire?) 

• Does the project achieve multiple benefits across sectors (e.g., public health and safety 
is enhanced while also improving environmental conditions)?  

CRC encourages those public entities that have not yet progressed resilience planning in their 
jurisdiction to apply, as well as those who are further ahead. Projects that reach both vulnerable 
and disadvantaged communities and meet multiple criteria will be evaluated favorably. 

Eligible Project Examples 

The examples below are provided to illustrate the range of projects eligible for funding. They are 
not meant to be exhaustive and are listed in no particular order. Note that while there is a 

9

Attachment "2" 



preference for CRC to fund planning projects designed for implementation of resilience 
infrastructure, the CRC is looking to fund a range of project types which may be earlier in the 
adaptation planning cycle.  

• Infrastructure adaptation and resilience plans, including “green” or nature-based 
infrastructure planning.  

• Additional modeling or feasibility studies to help fill knowledge gaps about vulnerabilities and/
or costs and benefits; for example, a study to understand the impact of sea level rise on rising 
groundwater, or the combined impact of increased precipitation and sea level rise.  

• Hazard mitigation plan updates coupled with deeper planning around some specific adaptation 
solutions.  

• Climate vulnerability assessments.  

• Integration of climate resilience planning considerations and strategies into existing plans, 
such as Local Coastal Programs and General Plans, including efforts to meet requirements of 
SB 379 and integration and alignment of multiple planning documents to comprehensively 
address climate resilience.  

• Projects that enable, deepen or extend inclusive and equitable community participation in 
existing or new projects. 

• Projects that address water and air quality impacts resulting from drought, flooding (including 
sea level rise), extreme heat and increasing frequency of hot days, and wildfires, resulting from 
climate change. 

• Projects that address economic resiliency and consider livelihoods threatened by climate 
change resulting from drought, flooding (including sea level rise), extreme heat and increasing 
frequency of hot days, and wildfires. 

• Projects that meaningfully engage under-resourced communities directly in the planning, 
implementation, and evaluation phases of the project. Examples include public entity 
partnerships with community organizations that serve under-resourced communities, 
community organizations that do not directly serve under-resourced communities but partner 
with organizations that do, or community organizations who serve under-resourced 
communities by engaging their clients or members. Types of meaningful engagement include 
conducting community needs assessments with under-resourced communities, developing 
community-based plans, establishing advisory committees, conducting focus groups, and 
creating coalitions.  

Eligible Activities and Expenses 

Activities eligible for funding are those related to climate resilience planning. The focus of CRC is 
on use of its grants to leverage planning efforts across the state. 

Examples of eligible activities include: 

• Feasibility studies  

• Public consultation, planning, and economic analysis 

• Funding/financing analysis 

• Conceptual drawings and design 

• Data and geospatial analysis 

10

Attachment "2" 



• Projects that create a plan for, or concurrently involve and leverage, climate adaptation 
activities that pull together collaborative, cross-sector action that builds capacity in 
communities through activities such as: 

• Convening stakeholders to discuss community needs regarding potential climate 
change mitigation and adaptation projects eligible for statewide competitive grant 
programs with specific allocations for under-resourced communities. 

• Developing community and project plans, including climate action plans, demonstrating 
local needs and identifying multiple-benefit projects for implementation. 

• Supporting the development of partnerships between stakeholders and potential 
public and private funding sources. 

• Providing policy, program, and technical advice to stakeholders to develop and align 
multi-benefit projects with potential funding sources.   

Examples of eligible expenses include: 

• Staff time 

• Consultant time 

• Community/stakeholder meetings and advisory groups (e.g., stipends, catering) 

• Project-specific staffing 

• Travel costs  

 
Ineligible Activities  

• The following activities are not eligible for CRC grants: 

• Projects not related to climate resilience planning.  

• Projects that do not improve local resilience against at least one of the four climate challenges: 
drought, flooding (including sea level rise), extreme heat and wildfire.  

• Projects that may inadvertently cause maladaptation or increase GHG emissions 

• Engineering plans and design specification work. 

• Construction projects or capital costs, such as the building of a facility. 

7. Grant Process 
The following is an overview of the grant proposal evaluation process, including financial, 
contracting, subcontracting and legal requirements pertaining to the CRC 2021 Grant Program. 
Applicants are encouraged to review the contents of this section when developing their proposals. 
Upon award of grant funds, grantees will receive more specific guidance, and will acknowledge and 
agree to comply with the terms of this RFP.  

11

Attachment "2" 



Application Review Process 

All proposals submitted for the CRC 2021 Grant Program will be reviewed by the CRC Advisory 
Committee and administrative staff, who will review applications for eligibility, content, 
submission of proper documentation, meeting technical requirements, overall relationship to 
statewide planning efforts, and compliance with state planning requirements. Applications will be 
evaluated based on how well they describe the project, justify the need for the project and for the 
CRC funding, reflect the program evaluation criteria, and articulate a concrete scope of work and 
project timeline. Advisory Committee recommendations will be presented to the CRC Board for 
their consideration. The CRC Board will make a final determination on all grants in the Fall of 
2021.   

 
RFP Timeline 

• July 12, 2021: RFP opens 

• September 13, 2021: RFP closes  

• September and October 2021: Proposals reviewed and evaluated  

• December 2021: Grant awards announced 

8. Grant Terms 
Project Start Date 

The project must commence on or before July 31, 2022.  

Project Timeline 

Applicants must provide a timeline that outlines key tasks by month at a minimum (see Proposal 
Submittal Section).  

Completion Date 

All grant funds from CRC must be used to pay or defray project expenditures on or before July 31, 
2024, and the project must be planned to be complete on or before July 31, 2024.  

Case Study 

CRC is looking to identify and share the lessons learned from this grant opportunity to inform 
other existing or new state grant programs. To this end, all grant recipients will prepare a short 
case study describing the project process, and completed project outcomes including maps, 
photos, drawings, etc. (as appropriate for the project type). A template will be provided (Word and 
PowerPoint).  

Case studies should emphasize processes, or results that can be adapted or replicated for use in 
various parts of the state, as well as documentation of the involvement of disadvantaged 
communities throughout the entire planning process, and any other lessons learned. These studies 
will be used to develop guidance for future resiliency and adaptation projects in the state.  

12

Attachment "2" 



Case study reports and presentation materials must be completed and delivered no later than 
three months after the completion of expenditure of CRC funds. Final case studies will be 
submitted to the Governor’s OPR for possible inclusion in the Adaptation Clearinghouse.  

Work Product 

All reports funded through the CRC Grant Program shall credit CRC financial participation on the 
cover or title page. An electronic copy of all final reports shall be forwarded to CRC.  

Any reports or presentation materials funded through the CRC Grant Program are in the public 
domain and may not be copyrighted, sold, or used exclusively by any business, organization, or 
agency. Applicants must not transmit any material to CRC that the applicant considers to be 
confidential or proprietary. Any material the applicant transmits to CRC will be considered non-
confidential and non-proprietary. This policy serves to avoid potential misunderstandings or 
disputes regarding ownership of ideas. To the extent that the applicant owns or controls any 
patent rights, copyright rights, trade secret rights, or any other intellectual property or 
proprietary rights that may be required for access to work product submitted under the CRC 
Grant Program, the applicant grants a license to such rights to any person accessing and using such 
work product. CRC reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, 
publish, or otherwise use and to authorize others to use the reports for public purposes.  

Third-Party Contracts 

The agreements between a grantee and a sub-recipient, consultant, or sub-consultant are referred 
to as “third-party contracts.” Grantees will be expected to use and comply with their individual 
procurement procedures in awarding third-party contracts. Work for which a CRC grant is 
provided can only be contracted if it has been stated in the applicant’s Scope of Work and Project 
Timeline.  

Grantees are fully responsible for all work performed by their sub-recipients, consultants or sub-
consultants, and CRC shall not be liable to any of such entities for the performance by grantees. 
Grantees are responsible to ensure that all third-party contractors adhere to the provisions of this 
RFP.  

9. Grant Disbursement and Accounting 
CRC intends to disburse funds from a grant under the 2021 Grant Program in installments. The 
amount and timing of each installment, and the process for invoicing and disbursement, shall be 
determined by CRC in its sole discretion. The final disbursement shall be conditioned on a 
certificate by an authorized representative of the grantee certifying compliance with the terms of 
this RFP and verifying that the CRC funds have been or will be used for project expenditures 
reasonably incurred and required for project purposes. Each grantee shall also make financial 
reports, within 90 days after the end of each of its fiscal years, during the progress of the project 
and upon project completion, and provide reasonable evidence of project progress and project 
sources and uses of funds.  

Each grantee shall maintain true and complete records of performance of work on the project and 
of the sources and uses of funds for such project, and shall maintain such records for a period of 
not less than 3 years after the later of completion of the project or the last disbursement by CRC. 

13

Attachment "2" 



CRC and its representatives may access such records on reasonable notice and during regular 
business hours for the purpose of confirming the grantee’s compliance with the terms of this RFP.  

10. Proposal Contents 
This section provides applicants with information regarding submittal of proposals for grants of 
funds from the CRC 2021 Grant Program. 

Application Information 

Applicants should present their proposal in Microsoft Word format using 12-point Times New 
Roman font or Microsoft Excel format. Proposals should include the following information:  

Project Summary Provide a one-sentence description of the project that includes the 
name of the primary applicant, the type of work envisioned by the 
project, and the climate threat(s) targeted by the project. For example, 
“Neighbors for Climate Resilience proposes an Urban Tree Canopy 
Analysis to help the community of Resilientville adapt to extreme heat 
events.”

Project Description Provide a brief (approximately 500-word) description of the project, the 
agencies involved, the project start/end dates, the general project 
planning area, and why the project is necessary. The proposal should 
identify a lead entity with primary responsibility for the project.  

If the project is part of a larger effort, please describe how the CRC-
funded project would fit in, and provide the total budget of the overall 
project. Provide a vicinity map that shows where the project will be 
implemented and/or where the under-resourced community is located. 

Organization 
Information

If the application is by or for a non-governmental organization, provide 
a description of the organization, its mission, governance and 
management, and partners or funding, and include links to its public 
website pages, if available. 

If the application is by or fiscally sponsored by a 501(c)(3) organization, 
provide IRS Letter and Organizational Budget. If the application is 
supported by a fiscal sponsor, provide a letter or Memorandum of 
Understanding.

Grant Amount 
Requested

State maximum amount of grant that the applicant is seeking. CRC 
expects grants to be issued in quantities between $100,000 and 
$200,000, but reserves the right to make smaller or greater grants. 

14

Attachment "2" 



Description of 
Resilience 
Challenges Project 
Addresses

Demonstrate that the planning efforts for which funding is sought are 
targeted at improving local or regional resilience to one or more of the 
following four climate challenges, and water and air quality impacts of 
the foregoing: 

•Drought 
•Flooding, including from sea level rise 
•Extreme heat 
•Wildfire 

If applicable, describe whether the project provides resilience against 
other non-climate-related natural disasters (e.g., earthquakes). If 
known, please describe the projected impacts by timeframe proposed 
for the project (e.g., increase in extreme heat days expected by 2050)

Other Project 
Eligibility Criteria

Applicants should also describe how the project responds to the criteria 
listed in section 6.

State Law 
Requirements

Is the proposed project mandated by state law? If so, explain how grant 
funds will extend or improve outcomes.

Scope of Work Provide a detailed Scope of Work by task. This preferably should be 
detailed enough that it can be used to hire an external consultant or 
guide internal staff without further reworking (for the sake of 
efficiency).

Project Timeline Provide a detailed proposed project timeline (preferably by month). 
Identify anticipated start and end dates, planning milestones, and dates 
when released funds would be required.

Local Support and 
Approvals

List entity departments and partners that support the project (and 
attach copies of available letters of support).   

Identify Planning Commission, City Council, Board of Supervisors, or 
other responsible body support that will be needed to proceed with 
projects that may be developed through the grant (letters of support 
not required).  

Other Sources of 
Funds

Provide details if a potential CRC grant would provide the required 
match funding to release other funding or grant opportunities.  

Provide details of any additional funding that must be secured (in 
addition to the CRC funding) for the project to be executed. 

Describe project activities that will be funded in whole or in part by 
other funding sources. 

If there are in-kind contributions, state the basis for valuing such 
contributions.

Uses of Funds Provide a budget summary, including the following major line items: 
Staff hours (salaries and benefits); professional service firms (lump sum 
per task); travel; and other costs. Distinguish between direct and 
overhead costs.

15

Attachment "2" 



11. Submittal Instructions 
All grant proposals are required to be submitted via e-mail. An applicant may only submit one 
application package per e-mail. The required information outlined above must be attached to the 
e-mail, in Word or Excel documents.  

Please submit your application package to resilience@bayareacouncil.org with “Resilience 
Proposal” in the subject line. Applications must be submitted via e-mail no later than September 
13, 2021 by 5:00 pm. Hard copies will not be accepted, and late applications will not be 
reviewed.  

12. Contacts and Additional Information 
General Questions: 
Adrian Covert, Senior Vice President of Public Policy, Bay Area Council: 
resilience@bayareacouncil.org 

Webinar: 
A webinar to discuss expectations for RFP and Q&A will be held on July 19, 2021 at 11am. RSVP at 
https://bit.ly/2SGiPxK 

13. Tools and Resources 
The following climate adaptation tools and resources are intended to provide applicants with 
additional information that CRC considers relevant to resilience planning and its grant program. 
While the below resources are recommended, applicants are not required to consult or follow 
these tools and resources in developing their proposals.  

Defining Vulnerable Communities in the Context of Climate Adaptation 
https://opr.ca.gov/planning/icarp/vulnerable-communities.html 
The Governor’s OPR, with input from the Integrated Climate Adaptation and Resiliency Program 
(ICARP) Technical Advisory Council, developed this resource guide as a starting point for 
practitioners to use when first considering how to define vulnerable communities in an adaptation 
context. 

CalAdapt 

Deliverables Describe the final products that will be produced at the successful 
completion of the project. A financing plan for a resiliency 
infrastructure project (such as government incentives, developer 
financing, third-party financing, public support, bond proceeds, issuance 
of new bonds) is a desired deliverable for infrastructure- focused 
planning projects (including those that are nature-based).

Access to Site If access to private property is necessary for project planning efforts, 
describe plan for permission to conduct planning activities.

16

Attachment "2" 



http://cal-adapt.org/  
Cal-Adapt provides a view of how climate change might affect California. Find tools, data, and 
resources to conduct research, develop adaptation plans and build applications.   

California General Plan Guidelines 
http://opr.ca.gov/docs/OPR_COMPLETE_7.31.17.pdf 
The 2017 General Plan Guidelines developed by OPR provide guidance to help local governments 
incorporate climate resiliency goals and strategies into their general plans pursuant to SB 379. 
Guidance specific to updated the Environmental Justice section of the General Plan is also 
available in Chapter 4. 

California Adaptation Planning Guide 
http://resilientca.org/apg 
The 2020 California Adaptation Planning Guide developed by the Governor’s Office of Emergency 
Services provides guidance to support regional and local communities in proactively addressing 
the unavoidable consequences of climate change. It provides a step-by-step process for local and 
regional adaptation planning, and is available in both a downloadable PDF and an interactive, 
online format on the State Adaptation Clearinghouse. 

California’s State Adaptation Strategy 
https://resources.ca.gov/Initiatives/Building-Climate-Resilience 
California’s State Adaptation Strategy organizes state government climate change adaptation 
activities, across a variety of state agencies. The Strategy was last updated in 2018, though is 
currently being updated with release scheduled for fall 2021.  

State Adaptation Clearinghouse 
http://resilientCA.org 
The State Adaptation Clearinghouse, managed by OPR as part of ICARP, serves as a centralized 
source of information that provides the resources necessary to guide decision makers at the state, 
regional, and local levels when planning for and implementing climate adaptation projects to 
promote climate resiliency. 

California’s Fourth Climate Assessment 
http://www.climateassessment.ca.gov/  
California’s Climate Change Assessments contribute to the scientific foundation for 
understanding climate-related vulnerability at the local scale and informing resilience actions, 
while also directly informing State policies, plans, programs, and guidance, to promote effective 
and integrated action to safeguard California from climate change.  

Ocean Protection Council Sea-Level Rise Guidance  
http://www.opc.ca.gov/webmaster/ftp/pdf/agenda_items/20180314/Item3_Exhibit-
A_OPC_SLR_Guidance-rd3.pdf  
The State of California Sea-Level Rise Guidance reflects advances in sea-level rise science and 
addresses the needs of state agencies and local governments as they incorporate sea-level rise 
into their planning, permitting, and investment decisions.  

California Coastal Commission Sea Level Rise Policy Guidance  
https://www.coastal.ca.gov/climate/slrguidance.html 

17

Attachment "2" 



The California Coastal Commission’s Sea Level Rise Guidance provides recommendations for how 
to plan for and address sea level rise impacts, including a set of projections recommended for use 
in planning, permitting, investment, and other decisions. 

18

Attachment "2" 



July 21, 2021

Item No. 16: SIGN REGULATIONS -

 No materials available at this time. Request the City 
Council discuss sign regulations in the City of 
Escondido.



- 1 - 
 

 
FUTURE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

Updated July 15, 2021 

AGENDA ITEMS AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE.
CHECK WITH THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (760) 839-4617

July 28, 2021 NO MEETING (Summer Break) 
 

August 4, 2021 NO MEETING (Summer Break) 
 



 
July 15, 2021 
 
Washington Park Skate Spot Update  
In February 2021, the City released a Request for 
Proposals for the construction of the Washington Park 
Skate Spot. The project bid award was made by the City 
Council on April 21 and construction started on June 7, 
2021. When completed, the 7000-sf skate spot will offer 
multiple features including a quarter pipe, pump bump, 
grind edge, banked hip with rail, and a 5-sided pyramid. 
The project is expected to take approximately three 
months, stay tuned for updates. More information about 
this project can be found here. 
 
Drought-Related Water Conservation 
Last week, the State of CA expanded the emergency 
drought declaration and called for Californians to 
voluntarily reduce water use by 15%. Though facing hot 
and dry conditions, the San Diego region is thankfully 
drought-safe this summer due to planning and 
investments in new water supplies and storage. 
 
The City of Escondido thanks and encourages our 
customers to continue to use water wisely. Use everyday 
conservation tactics like taking shorter showers and 
reducing sprinkler run times; as well as long-term 
conservation measures such as replacing lawns with 
drought-resistant plants. For conservation tips, device rebates, and other water-efficiency ideas, 
visit watersmartsd.org/ or escondido.org/water-conservation-1. 
 
Family Roller Skating 
Parks and Recreation month celebrations continue this Saturday, 
July 17. We are hosting a Family Roller Skating Party from 1:30- 
3:30 p.m. at the Kit Carson Park Sports Center, so bring your 
skates and your best moves. Entry is free - join us for a lesson, 
music, and giveaways. Learn more here.   
 
 
 
 
  

https://www.escondido.org/wa-park-skate-spot
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwatersmartsd.org%2F&h=AT2-L1yjA3xC78Bo4leFiwmFr_sXT4nPGlG7M_ae90SZs1ZmNeGCzWZFVVdm3-vfdl86be61-qDJ8ywLEdh3rBISspSjAB0CLYht6AmmVAOJkwzH15kGr3QJVuQ1A8KQPjJZ634zO6sGJt-OUu9L0om8yCnG6_n8YAfRrD3KC72dvCFYP7Zx3RusvDJrW1OsciGX5yL_VgL5iVVWEOo_mfj4R9GQBnDqU9ujrjCHOMx_EEfJDgx9uY2x-x11mw1VErEqDIhV2TlWhOmR8YvpUjz8-kQ9x7jD7ExMnAd6KCJmZE5pFtgO5VAwbHtRPOX92umLwqVgrlo1hvJLx7CGs_Gl2KiEm-mYclhK35j_SUjMeTfRkuvZSWfd2fhCHgYnV3UND5faXaFEDYE9wb98mZrnOSxgEBl8Ly15J3V1D2-Rqccxno-AJRDwj7JrytFv4kKo8ney9bKKYdYR6MUXK9GESR66Zf-TQXZWk-aRUGuDJ7bfxIqlWfT6BCOq0iKK88Fv322R5sbTh7ixlJbwRuZ7JCyweUxIwk9lVge6ocrdS4PGjfNqTBBzFeIay0WdfMkCeHRRadbIldiraIZhn171KDQ5j6xl_h65NZGT9QhP9Rfa0exbrNyfG53ZqlsNwYM5lhIGbINX4Ku_3EHUoX-n2HmpUp3ILHolhN8pWrFD6Qy-h64DLh0OTcJBP5FOMRND5-gmKx7TK7VTNJ6gpp1eLl0nR01x1PJWw_ykpJhrYFqj0pKjX60
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fescondido.org%2Fwater-conservation-1&h=AT099oRaO66kdjCrJJDa9FrZKxCUk8Ju4dC5kETPn5_0WtHAZq-p7FIF64i9bzsW7FQOhFlGyyUUjAjRTLXytFuofSjV81ArX29mL129uTwYO5fbPeKhQYHh_d0eSm2WVBo6tEkX7M-C-UVWNlYxaHjCSKm2sVKaMs0_DhWDc5n_dnVUi9kDu2pNHZMdAJdMQB4brEdaIfhb2PHk7yetrStaEVeZSdENN0fcVtj-w6b56ozddlm1v7zpYBVnGeMpf9nqb1Bci10viUISP78GxhoilSA7WdqZyOzK-GZYcmOmQ6dn6Mhf3aPhaSnpBO6YkFFs7g41OUaxk75Dhk78Poq6jeIaJcEl_x6bQvco1G4rW5Civ1Wm4ArVgIMBnajua-wXzL9BceB72J4JkOm6k5Hn1yy4diuv0OThsqH7GltMpYiDEJh32jTS5Dmwx_E52H7wKylu4GDmNMR9lOPVgjOli6g0215QKf1bAw4gmevyW9JR0_uY3Vu3wu8a-XzqQ46cLspq_i0zuPVoQoi8pnl0Mm0w104NZ79nh2B8kQKL9-ro8vtoTnSKKmPWF2e1X74MS8JggrHXlmE6kNoM5c7sJQtQNwJ1c_rcBt0oF7cSXCx0d1j_gIPlBB8cZOzF2P10K24gUYa06YxyY5COrV7d-SJd4ZLXabXde-T0RfVyib0_0bIZ7O-gItHjmnj6KR4kZ9AazDuU8OoprK6bCeSmik-sg3arBt00lmaWFOI-XYk1-2NCB_s
http://www.recreation.escondido.org/july-is-parks-and-rec-month


City of Escondido Water Quality Report  
The City of Escondido 2020 Water Quality Report is 
out now. Water Quality Reports are a snapshot of 
drinking water quality in Escondido during a given 
calendar year. These reports include details about 
where Escondido’s water originates, what elements 
the raw water contains, how it is tested and 
disinfected by the Water Division, and how the treated 
water compares to standards set by regulatory 
agencies.  
 

 
BY THE NUMBERS 

Business License: 
 

 
Code Enforcement:  

 
 

Total Code Cases (Year to Date) 1040 

178 Total Active Cases

48 New Cases 

98% Voluntary 
Compliance

17 Notices 
Issued

40 Cases 
Closed

3 Citations 
Issued

https://www.escondido.org/water-quality-reports


Public Works: 

 

 
 
Graffiti Restitution: 
 

Collected Past Week Collected Year to Date 

 $80 $9,251.5 

 
  

2303

3267

5061

5071

4616

2623

3032

3793

3440

2949

2872

2498

2756

2040

June
May

April
March

February
January

December
November

October
September

August
July

June
May

0 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000 6000

Number of Graffiti Tags Removed 
May 2020 - June 2021

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Ja
n

u
ar

y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

e
r

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

e
m

b
er

Number Of Shopping Carts 
Removed

2018

2019

2020

2021

Voice 
Mail, 22

Report It!, 
215

Eradication 
Team, 244

Email, 0
Phone, 2

How Graffiti Was Reported 
June 

Voice Mail Report It!

Eradication Team Email

Phone



POLICE DEPARTMENT UPDATES: 
 
On July 6, multiple witnesses provided statements about a domestic violence incident that 
occurred on East Via Rancho Parkway. A female victim was punched and slapped by her 
boyfriend, causing injury.  
 
According to the World Health Organization, 1 in 4 young women (aged 15-24 years) who have 
been in a relationship will have experienced violence by an intimate partner by the time they 
reach their mid-twenties. If you or someone you know needs helps, the National Domestic 
Violence Hotline is here for you. Call 1-800-799-SAFE (7233) or Text “START” to 88788. Other 
resources include the California Partnership to End Domestic Violence and The Victim of Crime 
Resource Center.  
 
On July 7, a witness called police to report that individuals were 
stealing a catalytic converter. Officers located the suspect 
vehicle and found eight catalytic converters, burglary tools and 
other evidence. The suspects may be facing charges of Grand 
Theft, Conspiracy, and Possession of Burglary Tools.  
 
Community Resources: 

 Anonymous Tip Line: 760-743-8477 (TIPS) 
 Crime Data/Mapping: https://www.crimemapping.com/ 
 Helicopter Announcement Transcription:  

o Call 858-866-4356 or text “Hello” to 858-866-4356 
 Megan’s Law Information: https://www.meganslaw.ca.gov/ 
 Mental Health & Crisis Intervention: 

o Access and Crisis Line: 888-724-7240 
o It’s Up to Us Campaign: www.Up2sd.org 
o Get Connected. Get Help: Dial 211 

 Non-Emergency Line: 760-839-4722 
 
New 4-legged Member of EPD 
Dakar is a 14-month-old Belgian Malinois, born in the city of Martin in central Slovakia. He will 
be serving the EPD with his handler, Officer Adrian Garcia. Over the next six weeks, Dakar and 
Officer Garcia will attend the Police Canine Academy.   
 
 
 
 
.  
 
 

https://www.who.int/news/item/09-03-2021-devastatingly-pervasive-1-in-3-women-globally-experience-violence
California%20Partnership%20to%20End%20Domestic%20Violence
https://1800victims.org/crime-type/domestic-violence/
https://1800victims.org/crime-type/domestic-violence/
https://www.crimemapping.com/
https://www.meganslaw.ca.gov/
http://www.up2sd.org/


 

 
June Abandoned Vehicle Data 

 
 

 
 
 
 
  

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Monthly Police Calls for Service by Year 

2019 2020 2021

Emergency, 
31,033, 25%

Non-Emergency, 
70,616, 58%

Outgoing , 21,115, 
17%

2021 YTD Police/Fire Communication Center Call 
Volume 

Emergency Non-Emergency Outgoing

225
Warnings issued to 
remove suspected 
abandoned vehicles 
within 72 hours

44
Abandoned vehicles 
impounded (removal 
of vehicles found 
littering city streets)

303
Total abandoned 
vehicles impounded 
(Year to Date)



FIRE DEPARTMENT UPDATES: 

On July 6, Escondido Police and Fire, CalFIRE and Valley 
Center Fire responded to reports of a vegetation fire in 
the area of Lake Wohlford Road and Valley Parkway. Fire 
crews arrived to a 1-acre vegetation fire moving at a slow 
rate of spread, in steep terrain with no immediate 
structures threatened. The Valley Center grade was 
closed during the fire mitigation efforts. The cause of the 
fire is under investigation.  
 
On July 8, fire crews responded to a two-story townhouse 
at 170 West Vermont Ave. Initially, smoke appeared to be 
coming from both floors and the roof, but it was determined that a smoldering fire was originating 
inside the walls of the building. Aggressive action by firefighters contained the fire. The residents 
of the primary and neighboring townhouse units were displaced due to damage and the San 
Diego Red Cross responded to assist with temporary housing. The cause of the fire is under 
investigation. 
 
On July 8, in an effort to perform preventative 
maintenance to the Fire Station 1 Training Facility, on 
duty crews in collaboration with Public Works conducted 
a confined space entry to the 25,000-gallon tank used for 
the training tower pump system. This collaborative effort 
not only provided valuable real-life training but will help 
to increase the life of the training equipment by removing 
years of built up dirt and debris. 
 
A few weeks ago, Escondido Firefighters volunteered 
their off-duty time to collect donations for the San Diego 
County Burn Institute at two intersections in Escondido. The generous donations from our 
community totaled $10,500. A signature Burn Institute program that is supported by donations 
is Camp Beyond the Scars, an annual camp for young burn survivors. This year, part of the 
camp will be virtual, so each camper receives a box full of supplies and treats. To make this year 
a little extra special, Escondido fire and police delivered Joshua and Peter’s boxes in person 
with lights and sirens The Burn Institute always welcomes donations to support burn victims in 
San Diego and Imperial Valley counties: https://burninstitute.org/donate  
 

 
 

https://burninstitute.org/virtual-camp-resource-page
https://burninstitute.org/donate


 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & ENGINEERING  
 
Permits and Inspections:  
 
Building Division 

1. Counter staff conducted in-person meetings with 132 applicants, processed 94 
applications, and issued 87 permits.  

2. The total permit valuation for the week was $3,506,974. 
3. Building inspectors completed 283 building inspections. 

 
Field Engineering Division 

1. Field Engineering inspectors processed 36 permits. 
 

Development and Capital Projects Update:  
 
Curious what’s happening with development projects around the City? Below is a list of active 
projects currently in various stages of the development process. Items with bold text have been 
updated since last week’s report. To learn about previous applications for residential and 
commercial development permits, please visit the Development Project Information Archive 
page or contact the Planning Division. 
 
Commercial / Office / Industrial:  

 
1. Interfaith Recuperative Care Facility/Hotel – (Developer: Interfaith) 555 N. Centre City 

Parkway – Conversion of the existing lodging facility (America’s Best Value Inn) and 
construction improvements to establish a residential care facility designed to provide a 
variety of transient stays for at-risk individuals, homeless, etc.  The Conditional Use 
Permit was approved by the Zoning Administrator on May 25, 2021. Grading, 
landscaping, street improvement, and building plans are currently under review.     
 

2. Medical Office Building West - Palomar Health Hospital Campus (MOB-West, Developer 
Palomar Pomerado Health) – A three-story medical office/outpatient facility of 
approximately 72,000 square feet.  Approval for design review was issued by the Planning 

14

13

266

43

Fires

Vehicle Accidents

EMS Responses

Other

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

Fire Emergency Responses
July 4 - 10

https://www.escondido.org/development-project-information.aspx
https://www.escondido.org/planning.aspx


Division on January 17, 2013.  The applicant recently requested some changes to the 
zoning permits and a substantial conformance determination was approved March 5, 
2021.  Grading and building permits are currently under review.     
 

3. ERTC/Palomar Health Parking Structure (Developer: McCarthur Construction).  An 
application request was received on October 21, 2020 to build 1,906 parking spaces at 
the new hospital campus.  The proposed parking garage is six stories. Approval for design 
review was issued by the Planning Division on April 4, 2021.  Grading and building permits 
are currently under review. 
 

4. Carvana – (Developer: Jo Ryan, Carvana) 559 N. Hale Avenue – A vending machine car 
dealership, consisting of 5,800 square feet within an eight-tier glass and steel tower 
structure up to 75 feet in height.  The project was approved by the City Council on August 
23, 2020.   Construction is underway and can be seen on the east side of Interstate 15. 
 

5. Meyers Avenue Industrial (Developer: OnPoint Development) – 68,900 square foot 
industrial building on an existing 4.95-acre vacant lot located at 2351 Meyers Avenue. 
The application was originally submitted in November 2020, and is currently in the 
entitlement process. 
 

6. Mercedes Benz Expansion – (Developer: Jody Stout, Integrity Design and Construction) 
1101 W. 9th Avenue – A Master and Precise Plan modification to demo the existing 
dealership showroom and construct a new showroom, office, parts storage and service 
building.  The project is still in the entitlement phase; however, the applicant is completing 
final revisions to the project materials in response to City comments.  It is anticipated that 
this project will be reviewed and considered by the Planning Commission at its July 27, 
2021 meeting. 
 

7. Raising Cane’s Restaurant – (Developer: Ada Fermin, PM Design Group) 1280 W. 
Valley Parkway – A 3,744 square foot drive-through restaurant located on the east side 
of the southbound off-ramp on W. Valley Parkway.  The project was approved by the 
Planning Commission on July 14, 2020 and is now under construction. Construction of a 
modified right-turn pocket from East Valley Parkway is anticipated to begin next week. 
 

8. 7-Eleven Gas and Convenience Store – (Developer: Golcheh Group) 900 W. Mission 
Ave. – A 4,000 square foot convenience store with eight fuel dispenser pumps on the 
northeastern corner of Mission/Rock Springs.  The project was approved by the City 
Council on January 13, 2021.  Building plans were submitted for review on July 1, 2021, 
however grading, landscaping and public improvement plans remain outstanding. .   
 

9. Solaris Business Park Annexation – (Developer Whalen and Associates) 657 N. Country 
Club Lane – A four-lot, light-industrial and medical office complex on approximately 45 
acres of land, just northwest of the Palomar Medical Center.  The annexation will be 
processed as a new specific plan.  The application is still in the entitlement phase.  It is 
anticipated that an Environmental Impact Report will be prepared for this project.   

 
  



Residential: 
 

10. Oak Creek (Builder: KB Homes) – A 65 single-family home development on 
approximately 44 acres at Felicita Road and Hamilton Lane.  City Council approved the 
project on March 4, 2015 and a map extension was approved by the Planning 
Commission on April 18, 2018.  Building permits were issued for 45 homes the week of 
June 21, 2021, and construction is underway.   
 

11. Conway Drive Subdivision (Developer: Conway Stanley Properties, LLC) – This project 
is a 41-lot subdivision on the west side of Conway Drive, both north and south of Stanley 
Place. The project would include 40 single-family homes and seven affordable 
condominium units. The application was submitted on June 3, 2021, and staff sent initial 
comments to the applicant on July 2, 2021.  

 
12. Palomar Heights (Developer: Ninia Hammond, Integral Communities) – An approved land 

use development application consisting of the demolition and redevelopment of the old 
Palomar Hospital site with 510 multi-family units with 10,000 square feet of commercial.  
This project was approved by City Council on February 10, 2021.  The next step for the 
project’s implementation involves the submission and approval of grading, landscaping, 
street improvement, and building plans.  The City approved a design review submittal on 
June 11, 2021 addressing some of the project’s conditions requiring architectural building 
design changes. The City is currently reviewing demolition plans to remove the existing 
structures from the premises. Grading and improvement plans, and final map were 
submitted for first round of review the week of July 5, 2021.   
 

13. Del Prado (Developer: California West Communities) 2329 South Centre Parkway – A 
113-unit townhome-style Planned Development located at the southwestern corner of 
Brotherton Road and the Centre City Parkway frontage road.  The City Council approved 
this project on May 11, 2016.  Building plans were submitted on May 20, 2021. The Final 
Map was approved by the City Council on May 26, 2021 and has recorded with the County 
Clerk.  Rough grading of the site has been completed and building plans are currently 
under review. 
 

14. Warmington (Developer: Warmington Residential California, Inc.) – A 62 air-space 
condominium development, consisting of 10, three-story buildings located in the Southern 
Entry District of the South Centre City Specific Plan at 2200 S. Escondido Boulevard.  The 
project was approved by the Planning Commission on March 23, 2021.  The Planning 
Commission is the final decision-maker for the project.  Grading and building plans are 
under review by the City.  
 

15. Habitat for Humanity 10-Unit Condominium Development (Developer: San Diego Habitat 
for Humanity) – A 10-unit development at 245 E. El Norte Parkway.  All units will be for sale 
to low-income households.  This project was approved by City Council on February 10, 
2021. Grading and building plans are currently under review.  
 

16. North Avenue Estates (Developer: Casey Johnson) – A 34 single-family home 
development at North Avenue/Conway Drive. The project was approved by the City 
Council on January 10, 2018.  Grading is currently underway on the site. 
 



17. Apollo Residential Care (NOAA Group) – An assisted living and memory care facility, 
with 78 units accommodating 99 beds at 3141 East Valley Parkway.  The project was 
approved on January 14, 2020.  The applicant has requested to add approximately 3,000 
square feet of common space (no new units or beds), which is anticipated to be presented 
to the Planning Commission for consideration in July or August.   
 

18. Henry Ranch (Builder: Joe Martin, Trumark Homes) – A 97 single-family home 
development on 74.35 acres at the eastern terminus of Lincoln Avenue.  The City Council 
approved this project on December 13, 2006 and the project is now under construction.  
The developer, Trumark, has nearly completed onsite water, storm drain and sewer 
utilities and is working on pedestrian ramps and sidewalks.  Model homes are now open 
to the public, and the contractor is now focusing on new home construction. 
 

19. The IVY (Applicant: Howard Blackson, AVRP Studios) – The project, located on the 
corner of Second Avenue and North Ivy Street, was originally approved in 2019 with 127 
units and a small commercial space, including 24 units allocated from the City’s Density 
Transfer Program and density bonus units for the provision of several affordable housing 
units.  The current application consists of a request for a modification to the approved 
project and would include 126 affordable residential units and potentially a child care 
facility in-lieu of the commercial space. The current request was submitted in January 
2021 and is currently in the entitlement process. 
 

20. The Villages at Escondido Country Club (Builder: Lennar Homes) 380 residences located 
on the former golf course off of Country Club Lane, north of El Norte Parkway.  The project 
was approved by City Council on November 15, 2017 and the project is now under 
construction.   
 
Villages I – Work has started on the fitness center in the commercial village.   
 
Village II - Rough grading is nearing completion.  
 
Village III - Rough grading is nearing completion.  The contractor is installing a new sewer 
manhole and main line at the intersection of La Brea and Country Club along with private 
water and sewer lines. In track curb and gutter have started to be placed. 
 

21. Quince Street Senior Housing (Developer: Matt Jumper, 220 Quince, L.P.) 145 apartment 
units at 220 N. Quince Street – The five-story affordable senior housing apartment project 
was submitted on November 21, 2017.  The City Council approved the project on October 
23, 2019. The next step for the project’s implementation involves the submission of and 
approval grading, landscaping, street improvement, and building plans.  Building plans 
were submitted on May 10, 2021.  Plan check review was completed the week of June 
21.  City staff will coordinate a building plan check resubmittal with the applicant. 
 

22. Jack’s Creek TR 951 and SUB 17-0026 – (Developer New Pointe Development).  An 
approved 12-lot, single-family residential subdivision on 3.31 acres.  The site is located 
at the westerly terminus of Jack’s Creek Road, north of El Norte Parkway, addressed as 
640 Oakwood Creek Glen, formally 2888 E. Washington Avenue.  The project was 
approved by the Planning Commission on November 13, 2007 and an extension of time 



was approved on September 12, 2017.  The developer recently started construction on 
the final six homes.  
 

23. Casa Mercado Apartments (Developer: Paul Mayer, Pemcor) – A four-story, 120-unit 
apartment complex on 2.31 acres on Second Avenue and Pine Street.  The City Council 
approved the project at its May 12, 2021 meeting.   The next step for the project’s 
implementation involves the submission and approval of grading, landscaping, street 
improvement, and building plans. 

 
24. North Iris Residential Development (Developer: Hallmark Communities) – An application 

for a Master and Precise Development Plan and Tentative Map for 102 condominiums at 
the southeast corner of North Iris Lane and Robin Hill Lane.  The project is still in the 
entitlement phase.  The initial application was submitted on March 11, 2021.  The City 
completed its review and issued a comment letter on April 9, 2021 regarding the 
completeness of the application (i.e. notice of incomplete application). A Notice of 
Preparation of an EIR was issued this week. 

 
25. Canterbury Gardens Apartment Project (Developer:  Kensington Canterbury Gardens, 

LLC) - A Plot Plan application was submitted on January 26, 2021 for the development of 
an apartment project at 2402 South Escondido Boulevard (the site of the Canterbury 
Gardens retail store).  The project proposes to demolish the existing structures on the site 
and construct 44 townhome-style, market-rate rental units.  Units will range in size from 
1,028 to 1,254 square feet, will be three stories in height, and will have two to three 
bedrooms.  The project is still in the entitlement phase.     
 

26. Villa Portofino – (Developer: Chris Post, ATC Design Group) 15 apartment units in a 
three-story building with parking garage at 2690 S. Escondido Blvd.  The project is still in 
the entitlement phase. 
 

27. Hacienda De Vega Redevelopment – (Developer: Tony Cassolato) An approved 
proposed residential condominium development consisting of 42 three-story attached 
townhomes on 1.75 acres.  The project was approved by the City Council on October 21, 
2020.  The next step for the project’s implementation involves the submission and 
approval of grading, landscaping, street improvement, and building plans. 
 

28. Sager Ranch/Daley Ranch Resort Specific Plan (Developer: J. Whalen Associates, Inc., 
Sager Ranch Partners) - 203 housing units and 225-room resort hotel on 1,783-acres, 
just north and east of Daley Ranch. The project is still in the entitlement phase and was 
deemed an incomplete application.  A project webpage containing draft documents and 
plans can be accessed at the following link:   
https://www.escondido.org/daley-ranch-resort-specific-plan.aspx 

  
29. Fig Apartments (Developer Claude Marengo) – A 15-unit, three-story, multi-family 

residential apartment complex on 0.59 acres.  The project is still in the entitlement phase.     
 

30. Reed Road Assisted Living Facility (2525 Reed LLC) – A new residential care facility is 
proposed on a 4.2-acre site on 2525 Reed Road.  The project is still in the entitlement 
phase.     
 

https://www.escondido.org/daley-ranch-resort-specific-plan.aspx


31. East Valley Parkway Apartments (Developer: John Wurster) – A 50-unit mixed use 
affordable apartment complex consisting of four stories situated on a 21,000 square foot 
vacant parcel on the corner of E. Valley Parkway and Ivy Street. The project was 
approved by the Planning Division on June 21, 2021, and building, grading, landscaping, 
and public improvement plans were submitted on July 1st, 2021. 
 

32. Nutmeg Condo General Plan Amendment (Developer: Jim Simmons, CCI) – A 137-unit 
townhome condo project, located on both sides of Nutmeg between I-15 and Centre City 
Parkway.  The first phase of the project was approved by the City Council on November 
20, 2019.  The second phase was approved by the City Council on November 18, 2020.  
The next step for the project’s implementation involves the submission and approval of 
grading, landscaping, street improvement, and building plans.     
 

33. Harvest Hills, (Developer: Concordia Homes) - 550 residential subdivision, east of 
Rancho San Pasqual.  A project webpage including draft documents and plans can be 
accessed at the following link:   
https://www.escondido.org/safari-highlands-ranch-specific-plan.aspx 
 

City Projects or Other Capital Improvement Projects:  
 

34. Membrane Filtration and Reverse Osmosis (“MFRO”) Facility – The MFRO will treat 
a portion of the City’s existing recycled water supply from the Hale Avenue Resource 
Recovery Facility and blend it with recycled water that has not been treated by the MFRO 
process to produce water with a salt concentration appropriate for agricultural 
irrigation.  The blended water will then be pumped to agricultural users.  The MFRO 
Facility will provide high‐quality water that is low in total dissolved solids and chlorides to 
high-water-demand agricultural growers who serve a vital role in the City’s economy.  The 
location at 901 W. Washington Avenue was approved on April 3, 2019.  The contractor, 
Filanc Brown & Caldwell Joint Venture, submitted building permits on March 9, 2021 and 
has received comments/corrections.  Grading plans were approved on June 2, 2021 and 
the demolition of small structures on site is underway.  Building plans have been 
resubmitted and are currently being processed. 

 
35. Lake Wohlford Replacement Dam – The project involves a new dam downstream (west) 

of the existing dam and partial deconstruction of the existing dam. The replacement dam 
would feature an outlet tower that is integrated into the dam’s upstream face; the top of 
the existing outlet tower would be demolished, and the bottom of the existing outlet tower 
and the outlet pipe would be filled with sand and abandoned in place. The project would 
entail improvement and extension of an existing unpaved access road located west of the 
Lake Wohlford Marina, extending it to the right (north) abutment of the replacement dam.  
The project’s EIR was certified on August 23, 2020.  The next step for the project’s 
implementation involves the submission and approval of permits and agreements by the 
wildlife agencies.  In order to obtain environmental permits for construction, the City has 
prepared upstream restoration and mitigation plans, short-term and long-term habitat 
management plans, a watershed evaluation, perform field protocol surveys, and update 
the Jurisdictional Wetland Delineation survey. 
 

  

https://www.escondido.org/safari-highlands-ranch-specific-plan.aspx


36. Grand Avenue Vision Project – The Grand Avenue Vision Project is a streetscape 
improvement project for Escondido’s historic downtown aimed at improving walkability 
and creating a pedestrian-friendly environment. The project will narrow Grand Avenue to 
one lane in each direction, provide wider sidewalks and additional parking opportunities 
via diagonal parking, and remove center medians. The project will also include the 
installation of curb bulb-outs at intersections and installation of three round-abouts (at 
Maple Street, Broadway, and Kalmia Street). Wayfinding signs and ornamental lighting 
are proposed, and there will be opportunities for public art. This will be a phased project 
that will occur over several years as funding becomes available. A Mitigated Negative 
Declaration has been prepared and is scheduled for consideration by City Council on July 
21, 2021.  The first phase is anticipated to begin construction in the fall of 2021. 

                                                
37. School and Traffic Safety Projects - Each year the Traffic Commission prioritizes and 

funds traffic safety projects focused on improving pedestrian and vehicle safety.  Projects 
are nominated by each School District, COMPACT, residents and staff. This year four 
priority projects were completed, including crosswalk improvements at Oak Hill and 
Citrus, crosswalk improvements on Lincoln Avenue near Pioneer Elementary, pedestrian 
countdown timers at five intersections and an Audible Pedestrian Signal at El Norte and 
Centre City Parkway that serves the sight impaired. 
 

38. Spruce Street/Transit Center Pedestrian Bridge Project – This storm drain channel 
project continues to near the end of the construction phase with the final plantings being 
installed north of Valley Parkway.  Vegetation management will be conducted by the 
contractor for the area between Grand and Valley Parkway in the coming weeks as 
required by the environmental permits.  Public Works continues to maintain the sections 
south of Grand as part of the City’s storm drain system.   

 
39. Creek Trail Crossing - The final design for the Creek Trail Crossings project that improves 

all seven Creek Trail intersections between Juniper and Citrus was approved. 
Improvements include a signal at Midway and rapid flashing beacons with bulb-outs, 
where the roadway width permits, at other locations. The project also fills in sidewalk gaps 
along Citrus and Midway.  It is anticipated that construction will begin by late summer. 
 

40. Citracado Parkway Extension - The project will extend Citracado Parkway between 
Andreasen and Harmony Grove Village Road, including a bridge over the Escondido 
Creek in the western portion of the City. In February, the Public Utilities Commission 
approved the relocation of electric transmission facilities necessary for the project. 
SDG&E has ordered the steel poles necessary for the relocation and expects to begin 
electric facility relocation in August. Bid and award of the actual road project is anticipated 
this summer with construction beginning in fall 2021 and completing in early 2023. 



 
41. Escondido Entry Monument Signs – 

Installation of the three new “Welcome to 
Escondido” entry signs is complete. They 
are located at Grand Avenue near the 
Gateway Center, Via Rancho Parkway at 
Sunset Drive, and El Norte Parkway near 
Woodland Parkway. 
 

42. Juniper Elementary Safe Routes to School 
Project - The purpose for this project is to 
provide missing portions of sidewalk, curb 
and gutter, and Class II bicycle lanes along 
Juniper Street creating a continuous, 
separated pedestrian pathway near Juniper 
Elementary and provide Safe Routes to 
School information at Juniper, Oak Hill, and 
Central Elementary Schools.  This project 
also involves modification of traffic signals at 
Juniper Street & Felicita Avenue and 
Escondido Boulevard & Felicita 
Avenue.  The start of construction is 
estimated to be summer 2022. 
 

43. Escondido Creek Trail – In 2020 the City was awarded $8.5 million from the California 
Department of Parks & Recreation through the Proposition 68 Parks and Water Bond Act 
of 2018 to improve approximately 4.5 miles of the existing Escondido Creek Trail 
(between Harmony Grove Road and Midway Drive) and add approximately 0.4 miles of 
new bicycle path (between Harmony Grove Road and the Citracado Parkway extension) 
to the linear park. This project will create a double-sided trail on approximately 1.7 miles; 
on one side will be the existing Class I bicycle path, on the other will be a new DG trail.  
After stakeholder meetings and community workshops, 60% construction drawings are 
complete.  Design review of the construction drawings will be conducted by the Planning 
Commission, tentatively scheduled for late summer 2021.  It is anticipated that 
construction would start in early 2022.  
 

44. Washington Park Skate Spot – 501 N. 
Rose. The City recently awarded this project 
bid to Geocon Skateparks. When 
completed, the 7000-sf skate spot will offer 
multiple features including a quarter pipe, 
pump bump, grind edge, banked hip with 
rail, and a 5-sided pyramid. The bid award 
was made by the City Council on April 21, 
2021.  Construction started on June 7, 2021 
and is expected to take approximately three 
months. The contractor will be placing 
shotcrete for the park features next week.  
 



45. Storm Drain Pipe Lining and Rehabilitation Project Phase II – The Contractor is continuing 
to clean and make repairs to the storm drain flow line.  The work consists of storm drain 
cleaning, inspection, CCTV, repairing and grouting voids, point repairs, grouting existing 
flow line, cured in place pipe lining, storm drain structure floor repairs, post CCTV and 
inspection, and overall rehabilitation of existing corrugated metal pipe storm drain 
systems.  Contract work for this project has been completed.  Notice of Completion will 
be presented to the City Council within the next few weeks. 

 
46. SDG&E 16” Gas Main Replacement – In January 2019, the CPUC’s Safety Enforcement 

Division approved SDG&E’s test or replace plan for Line 1600, a 16-inch natural gas 
transmission pipeline which was not strength tested in 1949 when it was constructed. This 
next phase of PSEP projects will include 19 separate projects that will take place in the 
cities of San Diego, Escondido and Poway, as well as the County of San Diego.  
Approximately 5.4 miles of replacement and 2.7 miles of strength testing are expected to 
occur in Escondido from 2020-2024. The portion of the project along Bear Valley Parkway 
(Phase II) has been installed and is on-line, with only street paving remaining to do as of 
July 7, 2021. Phase III, which will be the final phase in Escondido, is currently being 
reviewed by Engineering Department staff, and includes portions of Lincoln Avenue 
(between El Norte Parkway and Midway Drive), El Norte Parkway (Lincoln Avenue to La 
Honda Drive), and La Honda Drive (El Norte Parkway through Daley Ranch).   
 

47. 2021 Street Rehabilitation and Maintenance Projects - Phase I (Concrete and Tree 
Removal and Replacement): This year’s work will be in the North West Zone, which is 
bordered by Broadway to the east, State Route 78 to the south and City limits to the north 
and west. The scope of work will include the removal and replacement of over 30,000 
square feet of concrete sidewalks, driveways and cross gutters. 52 pedestrian ramps will 
be upgraded to current standards and approximately 90 new trees will be planted.  Work 
has started in the Escondido Hills area with tree removal, removing and replacing 
damaged concrete sidewalks, driveways, curb and gutters. Phase II of the Street 
Maintenance Project will focus on street repair and rehabilitation and is anticipated to start 
late summer.   
 

48. Multi Neighborhood Street Light L.E.D. Retrofit Project Phase II - This project generally 
consists of the removal of approximately 725 non-LED street light fixtures and safety light 
fixtures, and the replacement with specified L.E.D. street light fixtures and L.E.D. safety 
light fixtures at various locations within the City of Escondido. The contractor is continuing 
to retro fit the new LED lights and has moved to the South East Zone, west of Midway 
Drive.  The project was recently completed and a Notice of Completion will be presented 
to the City Council within the next couple of weeks. 

 
 

### 

If you would like to receive this report by email on Thursdays, email: mthorne@escondido.org. 

mailto:mthorne@escondido.org

	CONSENT CALENDAR
	1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/RRB)
	2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council)
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None Scheduled
	4. SETTING SPECIAL TAX LEVY FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2000-01 (HIDDEN TRAILS) -
	Attachment 1
	Resolution No. 2021-75 
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-75 

	5. SETTING SPECIAL TAX LEVY FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006-01 (EUREKA RANCH) -
	Attachment 1 
	Resolution No. 2021-76 
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-76 

	6. SETTING SPECIAL TAX LEVY FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020-2 (THE VILLAGES) -
	Resolution No. 2021-78 
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-78 

	7. SETTING SPECIAL TAX LEVY FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020-1 (PUBLIC SERVICES) -
	Resolution No. 2021-77 
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-77 

	8. ESTABLISHING THE PROPERTY TAX RATE AND FIXED CHARGE ASSESSMENTS FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED INDEBTEDNESS -
	Resolution No. 2021-79  
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-79 (page 1 of 2) 
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-79 (page 2 of 2)

	9. AMENDMENT AND NOVATION AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION TO EXAMINE SALES AND USE TAX RECORDS FROM THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TAX AND FEE ADMINISTRATION -
	Resolution No. 2021-101 
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-101 

	10. ADOPTION OF SPECIFIC ALIGNMENT PLAN FOR GRAND AVENUE -
	Resolution No. 2021-108 
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3

	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-108 
	Exhibit B - Resolution No. 2021-108 
	Exhibit C - Resolution  No. 2021-108 

	11. PROCUREMENT OF STREET LIGHT POLES, FIXTURES AND STRING LIGHTING FOR THE GRAND AVENUE VISION PROJECT – PHASE 1 -
	Attachment 1 
	Resolution No. 2021-104 

	12. NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE STORM DRAIN PIPE LINING AND REHABILITATION PROJECT - PHASE 2 -
	Attachment 1 
	Resolution No. 2021-105

	13. PAYMENT TO SDG&E FOR RELOCATION OF ELECTRIC FACILITIES FOR THE CITRACADO PARKWAY EXTENSION PROJECT -
	Resolution No. 2021-106 
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-106  

	14. DECLARATION OF VACANCY - HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION - 
	Attachment 1 
	Attachment 2 


	CURRENT BUSINESS
	15. 2021 - 2022 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK PLAN -
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2

	16. SIGN REGULATIONS - 

	FUTURE AGENDA
	FUTURE AGENDA - 

	CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT
	Weekly Activity Report




